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RPXE  FELE

Pursues progress while maintaining sound, to achieve steady and

long-term operations

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of Hengdeli Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “year” or the
“year under review”) for your review.

Complicated and ever-changing international landscape
appeared in 2023. Under the combined effect of trade
protectionism, geopolitical conflicts and intensified regional
wars, global economy remain sluggish. In China, the year
of 2023 was a recovery year following the diminishing
COVID-19 prevention and control measures. China’s
economy has stepped out of a recovery curve to pick up
despite of continuous pressure. Confronted with complicated
environment, the Group continued to adhere to the principle
of “sound, steady and long-term operations” and engaged
in its business in a steady and proactive manner to adapt to
the market conditions, so as to ensure a sound development
and to safeguard the interests of shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 the Group recorded
revenue of RMB1,421,454,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB1,259,5679,000), representing a year-on-year increase
of 12.9%; high-end consuming accessories business
recorded revenue of RMB710,708,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB630,330,000), representing a year-on-year increase of
12.8%; international commodity trading recorded revenue
of RMB710,746,000 (31 December 2022: RMB408,956,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 73.8%. The Group
recorded a net profit of RMB35,191,000 (31 December 2022:
loss of RMB88,139,000) and profit attributable to equity
shareholders amounted to RMB33,885,000 (31 December
2022: loss of RMB80,022,000). The Group achieved higher
profit was mainly attributable to the improvement of gross
profit and the discontinuation of the watch business, which
led to a significant decrease in the inventory provision and
operating expenses of the watch business.
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During the year under review, China's economy began to
recover following the diminishing COVID-19 prevention
and control measures. In terms of high-end consuming
accessories business, the Group is stability-rooted and
pursues development through innovation. The Group has
taken various measures to address the complex business
environment, including continuously diversifying business
models and enhancing informational and automatic
management, which have brought forth remarkable
effectiveness. During the year, revenue and profit from
high-end consuming accessories business have improved
significantly compared with the same period last year.

During the year under review, in response to the rise in
mineral sand prices, the Group’s international commodity
trading business steadily trended upward, with both its sales
and profits improving over the same period last year. In
2023, the global bulk shipping industry remained seasonal
volatility. The Group has always maintained its prudent
and steady business strategy by insisting on customers
oriented and ensuring the safety of ship navigation as its
seized new opportunities to expand its business. In addition
to deepening its efforts in the traditional shipping routes,
the Group opened up a coal shipping route from Colombia
to South Korea for the first time, which contributed to the
Group’s positive returns. During the year, the Group’s
revenue from the shipping business increased and kept
positive returns despite the overall profits recorded a
decrease.

The Group’s core values of “respect, commitment,
cooperation and innovation” have enabled us to build a solid
foundation for corporate governance and fulfillment of social
responsibilities. Believing that business coexists as a part
of society and prospers along with it, the Group, apart from
its efforts in achieving business results and creating brand
value, has been improving its social values by protecting the
environment, managing environmental quality, conserving
resources and developing talents. The Group also actively
participated in public welfare activities with an aim of
growing together and sharing with the community.
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At present, the global political situation is experiencing
a high degree of unrest, making the global economy
more perplexing and the business environment remain
complicated and grim. China’s economy is struggling for
recovery amid external instability and uncertainties as well
as internal challenges. However, it is undisputed that the
economy will recover and achieve growth in long run. With
multiple measures implemented by the Chinese government
to promote stability and progress, it is believed that the
momentum of Mainland China’s economic development will
continue to strengthen with sustainable growth.

In the new year, the Group will continue to adhere to the
principle of “sound, steady, and long-term operations”, and
will leverage the stable business environment in Mainland
China that “pursues stability while seeking progress” to keep
abreast of the market trend and further advance the process
of international trade steadily. Additionally, the Group
will continuously expand and strengthen the international
shipping business which is closely related to international
trade, and strive to become a stronger participant in the
international shipping supply chain and achieve new
breakthroughs in corporate development.

The Group will continue to adapt to market demands and
continuously enhance the service standard of its integrated
services for commercial space in both Mainland China and
international markets. The Group will continuously adjust
the manufacturing of high-end accessories for renowned
watches while embarking on a limited number of diversified
business activities to include the manufacturing of high-
end consuming accessories in high-end lifestyle products
such as jewellery, cosmetics and mobile phones, and to
expand its commercial space beautification services to
include living space beadutification services, thus becoming
an indispensable independent segment in the industry
ecological chain of high-end consuming accessories.
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On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, suppliers, customers and
other business partners for their ongoing trust and support
and to all our staff members for their dedication and
wholehearted contributions over the past year.

By order of the Board
Zhang Yuping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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The directors of the Company are pleased to present to you
this report and the audited accounts of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group’s business
was primarily focused on the manufacturing of high-end
consuming accessories, building up of high-end consuming
service platforms, international commodity trading and its
related supply chain services.

High-end Consuming Accessories Service

The Group has a relatively mature industrial chain for high-
end consuming accessories manufacturing, mainly covering
the manufacturing of watches,
accessories and packaging products, commercial space
design, production and decoration. The companies are
mainly located in Suzhou, Guangzhou and Dongguan.

jewellery, cosmetics and

The two companies, “Guangzhou Artdeco” and “Dongguan
Born Talent”, mainly produce high-end watch boxes and
watch accessories for various types of watches. After years
of development, we have achieved great success in all
aspects. We have transitioned from low-end products to
high-end products, from simple processing to independent
innovative designs, and from purely handmade to products
automated.

“Suzhou Henge” is a commercial space integration
service enterprise engaged in design, production, on-site
installation and after-sales service, comprising the design
and decoration for each type of counters, props and various
stores.

After years of development, all companies under the Group
have achieved ISO9000 quality management certification,
which provides strong support for the manufacturing
of high-quality products; the companies have earned a
solid reputation in their respective fields, forming tight
relationships, mutual trust and interest sharing with brand
suppliers. Moreover, a wide customer base covering China,
Switzerland, the United States and other countries in the
Asia Pacific region has been established. The application
of advanced information management systems, such as the
industry-leading ERP, BIM, and MES, provides practical
guarantee for efficient and compliant corporate operation.
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During the year under review, in terms of high-end
consuming accessories business, the Group took various
measures in order to respond to the difficult operating
environment under the backdrop of the economic
resurgence in China. The Group laid a solid foundation
by maintaining stability, sought development driven by
innovation, and continuously broadened its business modes.
While engaging in sectors including accessories, jewellery,
cosmetics and mobile phones, the Group continued
focusing on its advantages in the field of watch accessories,
watch boxes, showcases production and exhibition service.
Additionally, the Group continued to improve its informational
and automatic management. All measures mentioned
above achieved remarkable results. During the year, good
performance was recorded for both the revenue and profits

of high-end consuming accessories business.

In the new year, the Group will adapt to market changes
and adjust such businesses as appropriate,
strengthening the industrial management together with

further

technical R&D and innovation, taking quality as the priority
and driving growth by innovation. We will continue to seek
opportunities to conduct vertical and horizontal industry
integration of products, so as to maintain and improve
our leadership in the industry. The Group will focus on
expanding the development in manufacturing of high-end
consuming accessories, and engage in deeper cooperation
with brands and international counterparts in various ways.
The Group will continue to enhance the service standard
of its integrated services for commercial space in Mainland
China and international markets. The Group will also fully
embark on a limited number of diversified business activities
to capitalize on the potential of the manufacturing of high-
end consuming accessories in other high-end lifestyle
products such as jewellery, cosmetics and mobile phones,
and to expand its commercial space beautification services
to include living space beautification services, striving to
become an indispensable independent segment in the
global industry ecological chain of high-end consumption.
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International Trading

During the year under review, in accordance with the
established strategy, the Group continued to carry out the
international commodity trading business. During the year,
the business mainly covered the importation of iron ore,
thermal coal and coking coal to Mainland China. In response
to difficult operating environment, the Group actively
adapted to the market dynamics and accordingly made
flexible and precise delivery as much as possible, in order
to increase sales and decrease costs. Since international
commodity trading business was on a steady upward trend
due to efforts from various parties, its sales and profits both
improved as compared to the same period last year.

In the new year, the Group will continue to keep abreast of
the market and carry out international commodity trading
activities as appropriate in a prudent manner in order to
lay a solid foundation for the Group’s healthy operation and
development.

International Shipping

During the year under review, in line with the Group’s
established strategic direction and the development of its
international trading business, the Group continued the in-
depth development of its international shipping business
which mainly focused on global maritime transportation of
dry bulk cargo, such as steel, coal, iron ore, manganese
ore, food and industrial salt.

In 2023, the global shipping market for dry bulk cargo
maintained seasonal fluctuations. Our shipping company
therefore adhered to its prudent and sound operating
strategies, and seized every favorable opportunity to expand
its business while keeping the customer service as the core
and prioritizing the shipping safety. Since the resumption
of coal importation from Australia to China at the beginning
of the year, the Group has successively secured new
customers with large importation of Australian coal, including
Yankuang Energy Group Company Limited and Jidong
Cement Co., Ltd. in order to address the transportation
demand of Australian coal from major customers. In
addition to engaging in original traditional transportation
routes, the Group initiated its first coal transportation
route from Colombia to South Korea, the revenue of which
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significantly outperformed the shipping market in the same
period. At the same time, the Group continued to maintain
good communication and cooperation with major central
enterprises and state-owned enterprises in China which
have concentrated overseas large-scale mining and import
businesses. By doing such, the Group overcame difficulties
and strived for development. During the year, the Group’s
revenue from the shipping business increased and kept
positive returns despite the overall profits recorded a
decrease. The shipping business made positive contribution
to the Group’s healthy operation and future development.

With China being a major importer of bulk raw materials in
the world, although there are certain uncertainties in global
economy growth and demand from China, the fundamentals
of long-term upward trend of Chinese economy remain
unchanged. In the coming year, our shipping company will
maintain its prudent and optimistic attitude to keep align with
the market and continue its expansion in China’s shipping
market, so as to provide existing customers with better-
quality shipping service. At the same time, maintaining our
prudential and stable operating strategy, the Group will
also explore new customers, new cargoes and new routes
to enhance the Company’s vessel capacity and market
competitiveness, so as to achieve robust profit growth.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s operations, financial condition, business
directions and prospects may be affected by various risk
factors and uncertainties. The major risks and uncertainties
for the Group are identified below. Except as stated below,
there may be other risks and uncertainties unknown to the
Group or not material at present but could become material
in the future.

Strategy Risk

The business environment in the market keeps changing
over time. Setbacks in economic activities pose a
particularly adverse effect on the sale of high-end products.
As a service provider of high-end brands, if our strategies
are unable to predict or adapt to the changes, the Group
may suffer from uncertainty risk. In this regard, the Group
will closely monitor the market and revise our strategic
approaches from time to time in order to put us on track for
healthy growth and mitigate potential impacts of risks on the
business.
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Commodity Risk

Currently, the Group’s business and operating results to
some extent rely on brand suppliers. If brand suppliers
no longer appoint the Group as their service provider, or
there arise quality issues regarding their services, there will
be a risk that the Group’s operating results may fluctuate
vigorously. The Group has maintained good cooperative
relationships with many international brand suppliers, so
that the risk of reliance on any single brand supplier can
be reduced, which leads to the continuous health of the
Group’s business.

The Group is currently engaged in the international trading
business. Factors as price trends of trading products or
changes in customer demands are beyond our control and
any adverse changes in such factors could have material
adverse impact on the Company’s operating results.
Therefore, the Group will monitor the international situation,
the price trends of products and customer demands closely
to reduce the risks therefrom.

Operation Risk

Operation risk refers to the risk that losses will be incurred
because of the shortage or failure of an internal business
process, staffing or system, or attributable to an external
event. Managing the operating risk is, in general, the duty of
each functional department. The Group is of the opinion that
operating risk cannot be eliminated entirely and will have an
impact on our operating results and earnings.

The Group has issued guidance about internal standard
operating procedures, authorities and reporting hierarchy.
The Internal audit department will identify and assess
major operating risks and report any such risk to senior
management for appropriate countermeasures. Take
inventory control as an example, besides scientific
management and stringent controls on its operating process,
the Group will also make provisions so as to control risk to
the greatest extent.

12 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Financial Risk

The Group’s financial risks mainly include market risk
and liquidity risk. Monetary condition, interest rates and
interest rate cycles may pose a risk to the financial position,
operating results and business of the Group.

Market risk refers to the risk that the Group’s earnings
and capital or the ability to achieve the desired business
goals may be adversely affected by changes in exchange
rates and interest rates, etc. The Group timely monitors the
relative foreign exchange positions of assets and liabilities
and makes appropriate adjustments to minimize foreign
exchange risk. Interest rate risk is regularly managed and
monitored by the Group’s senior management.

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group is unable to
obtain sufficient funds or realize assets, leading to failure
of meeting its contractual obligation when it falls due. In
managing liquidity risk, the Group monitors cash flow and
maintains adequate capital and credit facilities to ensure the
supply of funds for the Group’s operations and to reduce the
impact of fluctuations in cash flow.

Talent Pool Risk

Recruiting the right people is an essential factor for the
development of an enterprise. Competition is intense in
the industry and regions in which the Group operates its
business. The shortage or loss of personnel with appropriate
skills or experience could pose a potential risk impacting
the Group’s ability to achieve its goals. The Group provides
competitive salaries and benefits as well as various
incentives to attract the right talent so as to satisfy the needs
of corporate development.

OUTLOOK

At present, the global political situation is experiencing
a high degree of unrest, making the global economy
more perplexing and the business environment remain
complicated and grim. China’s economy is struggling for
recovery amid external instability and uncertainties as well
as internal challenges. However, it is undisputed that the
economy will recover and achieve growth in long run. With
multiple measures implemented by the Chinese government
to promote stability and progress, it is believed that the
momentum of Mainland China’s economic development will
continue to strengthen with sustainable growth.
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In the new year, the Group will continue to adhere to the
principle of “sound, steady, and long-term operations”, and
will leverage the stable business environment in Mainland
China that “pursues stability while seeking progress” to keep
abreast of the market trend and further advance the process
of international trade steadily. Additionally, the Group
will continuously expand and strengthen the international
shipping business which is closely related to international
trade, and strive to become a stronger participant in the
international shipping supply chain and achieve new
breakthroughs in corporate development.

The Group will continue to adapt to market demands and
continuously enhance the service standard of its integrated
services for commercial space in both Mainland China and
international markets. The Group will continuously adjust
the manufacturing of high-end accessories for renowned
watches while embarking on a limited number of diversified
business activities to include the manufacturing of high-
end consuming accessories in high-end lifestyle products
such as jewellery, cosmetics and mobile phones, and to
expand its commercial space beautification services to
include living space beadutification services, thus becoming
an indispensable independent segment in the industry
ecological chain of high-end consuming accessories.

COMPLIANCE OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the knowledge of the Company, there was no major
change to the relevant laws and regulations that have major
impacts on the business and operation of the Group for
the year. Also, the Group has complied with such laws and
regulations in all major respects covering sale of products,
protection offered by online platforms to brand suppliers,
labor standards, environment protection and anti-corruption
and bribery prevention policies.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group maintained a sound and stable financial position.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
revenue of RMB1,421,454,000 (2022: RMB1,259,579,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 12.9%; the revenue
from high-end consuming accessories business amounted
to RMB710,708,000 (2022: RMB630,330,000), representing
a year-on-year increase of 12.8%; the revenue from
commodity trading amounted to RMB710,746,000 (2022:
RMB408,956,000), representing a year-on-year increase of
73.8%.

Breakdown of revenue: (for the year ended 31 December)
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High-end Consuming Accessories SIEHERE 710,708 50.0 630,330 50.0
Commodity Trading AREmES 710,746 50.0 408,956 32.5
Watches Trading* BB 5B - - 220,293 17.5
Total Bt 1,421,454 100 1,259,579 100

The Group liquidated its remaining watch stocks and
completely ceased its renowned watch operations during
2022, and accordingly, the revenue of watches trading
during the year under review was nil.

Commodity Trading
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s gross
profit amounted to approximately RMB215,265,000 (2022:
RMB94,174,000), representing a year-on-year increase
of 128.6%. Gross profit margin was approximately 15.1%
(2022: 7.5%), representing a year-on-year increase of 7.6
percentage points. The increase in gross profit and gross
profit margin was mainly attributable to the fluctuations in
commodity trading prices and a significant decrease in the
inventory provision as a result of the discontinuation of the
watch business.

Profit for the year

The Group recorded a profit of RMB35,191,000 during the
year (2022: loss of RMB88,139,000), representing a year-
on-year increase of 139.9%. Profit attributable to equity
shareholders amounted to RMB33,885,000 (2022: loss of
RMB80,022,000), representing a year-on-year increase of
142.3%. The main reason for the increased profit for the year
was the improvement in gross profit and the discontinuation
of the watch business, which led to a significant decrease in
the inventory provision and operating expenses of the watch
business.
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Financial status and net debt to equity ratio

The Group maintained a sound and stable financial
position. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total
equity of RMB3,245,634,000 (2022: RMB3,219,834,000)
and net current assets of RMB1,855,619,000 (2022:
RMB2,064,563,000), with cash and cash equivalents
and deposits with bank of RMB1,309,252,000 (2022:
RMB1,322,888,000) and total bank loans of RMB94,136,000
(2022: RMB81,721,000). As at 31 December 2023, bank
loans bearing interests at floating rates of 2.3% to 3.7%
(2022: 2% to 3.7%). As at 31 December 2023, approximately
80% (2022: 67%) and 20% (2022: 33%) of bank loans
were denominated in RMB and NTD, respectively. The
maturity profile of bank loans is set out in note 23 to the
accompanying financial statements. During the year under
review, there was no sign of significant changes in the
Group’s demand for loans in a particular quarter.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total debt amounted
to RMB94,136,000 (2022: RMB81,721,000). The net debt to
equity ratio of the Group was zero (2022: zero) (Net debt is
defined as total debt (which includes total interest-bearing
borrowing) less cash and cash equivalents). It established
a solid foundation for the further business expansion of the
Group.

The Group adopts prudent treasury policies in financial and
cash management, manages bank credit availability and
monitors risks of credit cost centrally in various ways. The
Group maintains a good partnership with a number of banks
which provide financing facilities, and reviews its funding
liquidity and financing needs regularly.
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Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in HKD,
RMB and USD. Therefore, the Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risks. During the year under review, the Group
has been actively monitoring its foreign exchange risk and
will adopt a foreign exchange hedging policy for significant
foreign exchange risks.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had land and buildings
equivalent to RMB179,902,000 (2022: RMB187,885,000)
pledged as security for mortgage.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023,
contingent liabilities (2022: nil).

the Group had no material

Current assets

As at 31 December 2023, the current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,170,351,000 (2022:
RMB2,339,060,000), comprising inventories of approximately
RMB258,115,000 (2022: RMB237,768,000), trade and
other receivables of approximately RMB558,072,000 (2022:
RMB703,627,000), loans to associates of approximately
RMB33,789,000 (2022: RMB67,273,000),
equivalents and deposits with banks of approximately
RMB1,309,252,000 (2022: RMB1,322,888,000).

cash and cash

As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents of
approximately 19% (2022: 25%), 49% (2022: 58%) and 32%
(2022: 17%) were denominated in RMB, HKD and other
currencies, respectively.
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Current liabilities

As at 31 December 2023,
Group amounted to approximately RMB314,732,000
(2022: RMB274,497,000), comprising bank loans of
approximately RMB76,653,000 (2022: RMB56,799,000),
trade and other payables of approximately RMB226,920,000
(2022: RMB201,935,000), lease liabilities of approximately
RMB8,313,000 (2022: RMB10,802,000) and current taxation
of approximately RMB2,846,000 (2022: RMB4,961,000).

the current liabilities of the

Capital structure

The Company’s capital structure is composed of issued
share capital,
December 2023, the issued share capital of the Company
was 4,404,018,959 shares (2022: 4,404,018,959 shares),
with reserves and accumulated profits of RMB3,164,782,000
(2022: RMB3,140,286,000) in total.

reserves and accumulated profits. As at 31

Significant investment,
disposal

material acquisition and

The Company has no material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the
year under review, except as disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Except as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
the Company did not hold other significant investments
during the year under review.
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SIGNIFICANT PROPERTIES HELD FOR EAXRE#EREYE
INVESTMENT

Particulars of the Group’s significant properties held for AKER-ZE=_=F+-_H=1T—HZEKXH
investment purpose as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:  {EREMZE 2 FFIBEEINOT :

Address Existing Use Land Use Period

ikl A% b 358158 FIHA PR

Unit No. 2701 on 27th Floor, Commercial Commencing from 31 August 2004 to 30
Building 1, Court No. 86, Jianguo Road, August 2074

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

R [EES —EENENA=ZT—HEREZZELHFNA
It RmEGE =& o=l

22 B 8655 Pt 15748

272701

Unit No. 2801 on 28th Floor, Commercial Commencing from 31 August 2004 to 30
Building 1, Court No. 86, Jianguo Road, August 2074

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

A s BE-ZEENFNA=1+—HBE_FTtWFENA
e R =

ZE L8655 157 1E

282801

The above properties were acquired by the Group by way of  F#l¥ZE I AREBEBRIABREUNERBAR
judicial auction at a total consideration of RMB140,016,408.  #140,016,408 7048 - #1552 M A A7 A
For details, please refer to the announcement of the HIA-ZTE-_=FN\A=B2Z2R % ZEAL[A
Company dated 3 August 2023 and titled “Discloseable EBRAZHENRNBZEMEZETEER
Transaction in relation to the Acquisition of Properties by 5] -

Judicial Auction”.

As at 31 December 2023, the properties were held for RZZE=_=F+=-—A=+—0H ' ZEWEH

investment purpose and might be leased out for rental {E&&ERE @ WAIAERN B & H AR I
income in the future. A e
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THE COMPANY

During the year, the Group’s business was primarily focused
on the manufacturing of high-end consuming accessories,
the construction of high-end consuming service platforms,
international commodity trading and its related supply chain
services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
which materially affect the results, assets and liabilities
of the Group are set out in note 14 to the accompanying
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount
of distributable reserves of the Company was
RMB1,192,072,000 (31 December 2022: RMB1,180,497,000),
which is set out in note 28 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Company’s ability to pay dividends depends on, the
Group’s current and future operations, liquidity position
and capital requirements. The payment of dividends by the
Company is also subject to compliance with any restrictions
under the Laws of the Cayman Islands, the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board will review
the dividend policy from time to time and may exercise at
its absolute and sole discretion to update, amend, and/or
modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any specific period.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: nil).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summary of the Group’s results and assets and
liabilities in the last five financial years (for the year ended
31 December) are set out on page 89 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REPURCHASE OF
SECURITIES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities (2022: repurchased 60,788,000
shares).

As of 31 December 2023, the issued share capital of the
Company was 4,404,018,959 shares (31 December 2022:
4,404,018,959 shares).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share award scheme

On 25 March 2015, a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Company to recognize
the contributions of certain participants to the Company
and to attract suitable personnel for the growth and further
development of the Company.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid for a term
of ten (10) years commencing on the adoption date. The
Board may select any participants, other than any excluded
participant, for participation in the Share Award Scheme
and determine the award amount for the purchase of the
awarded shares to be awarded to the selected participants.
Among which:
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The “Participant” refers to (i) any senior management
employee, including without limitation the director, executive
officer and manager-grade employee, whether full time or
part time, employed by the Company and/or its subsidiaries
from time to time; and (ii) any consultant employed by the
Company and/or its subsidiaries;

The “Excluded Participant” refers to (i) at the time of
the proposed grant of an award under the Share Award
Scheme, any Participant whose service in the Company
or its subsidiaries (as the case may be) does not exceed
one year from the expiry date of his or her probationary
period as stated in his or her employment contract with the
Company or its subsidiaries (as the case may be), or (ii) any
Participant who is resident in a place where, in the view of
the Board or the trustee of the Share Award Scheme (the
“Trustee”) (as the case may be), the grant, vesting and/
or settlement of the awarded shares pursuant to the terms
of the Share Award Scheme at the time of the proposed
grant, vesting and/or settlement is not permitted under the
laws and regulations of such place, or compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations of such place makes it
necessary or expedient to exclude such Participant.

The Board is entitled to impose any conditions (including a
period of continued service within the Group), as it deems
appropriate in its absolute discretion with respect to the
entitlement of the selected Participants to the awarded
shares. No consideration for the awarded shares is needed
to be paid by the selected Participants to the Company. The
Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares
which will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded
by the Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected Participant under the Share Award
Scheme in a 12-month period shall not exceed 0.5% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date
or such number of shares as determined by the Board from
time to time.
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There is no minimum vesting period for the awarded shares
awarded under the Scheme, provided that the Board shall
have absolute discretion to determine the vesting conditions
for any awarded shares. The Share Award Scheme does not
require the grantees who are awarded the awarded shares
to accept the awards within a prescribed time period, but
in the event that the Company receives a rejection letter
within three (3) business days from the date of the offer
letter issued for the awarded shares, the Company’s offer to
the grantees shall for all intents and purposes be deemed
withdrawn from the outset as if no offer letter had ever been
issued.

If the Company decides to award the awarded shares
to the Participant under the Share Award Scheme, the
Company will instruct the Trustee to acquire the shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange, and the Trustee
will transfer such awarded shares to the Participant upon
vesting. No consideration for the awarded shares is needed
to be paid by the persons who are awarded the awarded
shares to the Company or the Trustee. For the avoidance of
doubt, all awarded shares awarded and to be awarded are
existing shares of the Company, and no new shares will be
issued for the Share Award Scheme.

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the tenth
anniversary date of the adoption date or such date of early
termination (whichever is earlier) as determined by the
Board.

During the year, the Company did not grant any awarded
shares to the employees of the Group (2022: nil). As of
the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
of the Company available for award under the Share
Option Scheme was 435,437,095 shares, representing
approximately 9.89% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company.
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Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
15 May 2015, the share option scheme was adopted
conditionally. The share option scheme of the Company (the
“Share Option Scheme”) was adopted to grant options to
selected participants including but not limited to directors
and employees of the Group as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to the Group. Subject to any early
termination as may be determined by the Board, the Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on the adoption date, with a remaining
life of approximately two years as of the date of this annual
report.

Under the Share Option Scheme, subject to the discretion
of the directors, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. Each option
has a maximum valid period of ten years after which the
option shall lapse. The total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options (including share
options exercised and outstanding) granted to the eligible
participants in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options to such
participant which would result in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the shares issued by the Company,
must be subject to separate approval by shareholders,
with such participant and his or her close associates (or
associates (if such participant is a connected person))
abstaining from voting. The exercise price shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer; (ii) the average of the closing
prices per shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares.
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Under the Share Option Scheme, the grantee shall accept
the option within ten days from the date of the offer to grant
the share option and pay HKD1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant upon acceptance of the option.

As of the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares of the Company available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 478,437,095 shares, representing
10.86% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company, and there was no option outstanding (2022: nil).
During the year under review, the Company also did not
grant any option (2022: nil).

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

under review and as of the date of this report, none of the
Directors were considered to have any interests in any
business which competed or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group required to
be disclosed under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with each
of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors for a term of three
years. The Company did not enter into service contracts
that cannot be terminated without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation) within one year.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director has

entered into any service agreement with any member of the
Group.
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REMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION AND
DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, the
Directors, among others, shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur
or sustain by or about the execution of their duty in their
offices.

A directors’ and officers’ liability insurance is in place to
protect the Directors and officers of the Group against any
potential liability arising from the Group’s activities which
such Directors and officers may be held liable.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS AND THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

During the year, save as disclosed under the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual
report and related party transactions disclosed in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements, no Directors
or any entities connected with Directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, subsisted during the year under review.

Save as described in this annual report, during the year
under review, there was no contract of significance
between the Company or its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/
EMPLOYEES

Details of remuneration of the Directors made in accordance
with specific basis during the year under review are set out
in note 7 to the accompanying financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the five highest paid individuals
during the year under review are set out in note 8 to the
accompanying financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the senior management during
the year under review are set out in note 31(a) to the
accompanying financial statements.

The remuneration policies of the Group are as follows:

= The amount of remuneration for the Directors or the
employees is determined according to their relevant
experience, responsibilities, workload and years of
service in the Group;

7 The non-monetary benefits are determined by the
Board and are provided in the remuneration package
of the Directors or the employees;

— The Directors and the eligible employees shall
be granted with options or awarded shares of the
Company as determined by the Board to be part of
their remuneration package.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit scheme are set out
in note 25 to the accompanying financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OF
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of
each of the Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO; or were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO); and were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Name of Director and
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Approximate

Chief Executives Nature of Interest Number of shares Percentage
(Note 3)
EERBETHRAEHS EHEME BB AR KNAEDLE
(K1723)
Mr. Zhang Yuping Interest of Controlled Corporation
and Beneficial Owner (Note 1)
R F SR A ZEGEBESEERESA (KiE1) 748,902,047 8% (L) 17.00%
Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony Interest of Controlled Corporation
and Beneficial Owner (Note 2)
SRKBE A REtEEEa R ESER A (Hi22) 704,643,034/% (L) 16.00%
Mr. Huang Yonghua Beneficial Owner
EmOKELAE Gt TN 56,172,800/%(L) 1.28%
Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan Beneficial Owner
e R E ERERA 5,920,000/% (L) 0.13%

FRAERA RAT R =44 29



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEREE

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the Shares.

Note 1:Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share
capital of Best Growth International Limited ( “Best
Growth™ ), which in turn held 657,178,447 shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2023. During the year
under review, Mr. Zhang Yuping held 91,723,600 shares
of the Company under his name. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang
Yuping was interested in a total of 748,902,047 shares of
the Company, representing 17.00% of the issued share
capital.

Note 2:Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony owned 100% of the issued
share capital of Empire Charm Limited ("Empire Charm"),
which in turn held 704,643,034 shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2023. Accordingly, Mr. Cheung
Wing Lun Tony was interested in 704,643,034 shares of
the Company, representing 16.00% of the issued share
capital.

Note 3:Shareholding percentage is based on 4,404,018,959
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors and chief
executives of the Company were aware, as at 31 December
2023, none of the Directors and chief executives had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO);
and were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing
Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

As far as the directors were aware, as at 31 December
2023, the interests or short positions of the persons in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:
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Approximate

Percentage

Name of Shareholder Number of shares (Note 2)
KADL

RERHH R #E (Kizt2)
Best Growth International Limited
FIEEIFR AR A A 657,178,4478%(L) 14.92%
Mr. Zhang Yuping (Note 1)
SREIF T (Afat1) 748,902,047 % (L) 17.00%
Empire Charm Limited
EHRAR AT 704,643,0348%(L) 16.00%
Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony (Note 2)
SRKBE ST (Afat2) 704,643,0348%(L) 16.00%
The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited (Note 3)
The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited (47:£3) 437,800,000/% (L) 9.94%
The Swatch Group Limited (Note 3)
The Swatch Group Limited (#7:£3) 437,800,000/% (L) 9.94%

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the Shares.
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Note 1:Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share capital

of Best Growth International Limited, which in turn held
657,178,447 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2023. During the year under review, Mr. Zhang Yuping
held 91,723,600 shares of the Company under his name.
Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Yuping was interested in a total of
748,902,047 shares of the Company, representing 17.00%
of the issued share capital.

Note 2:Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony owned 100% of the issued

share capital of Empire Charm Limited, which in turn
held 704,643,034 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2023. Accordingly, Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony
was interested in 704,643,034 shares of the Company,
representing 16.00% of the issued share capital.

Note 3:These 437,800,000 shares were held in the name of and

registered in the capacity of The Swatch Group (Hong
Kong) Limited as a beneficial owner. The entire issued
share capital of The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited
was beneficially owned by The Swatch Group Limited.
The Swatch Group Limited was taken to be interested in
all the shares held by The Swatch Group (Hong Kong)
Limited under the SFO.

Note 4:Shareholding percentage is based on 4,404,018,959

issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the
Company had not been notified by any persons, other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company, who had

any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying

shares of the Company which were required to be recorded

in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Equity-Linked
Agreements” above, at no time during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2023 was the Group, holding
company of the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements which enabled the Directors (including their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age) to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or subsisting during the year
under review.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OR ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there had been
no contract or service contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to ensuring high standards of
corporate governance practices. Corporate governance
report of the Company is set out on pages 44 to 61 of this
annual report.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The environment is the foundation for corporate presence
and development. For many years, environmental
protection has been regarded as one of its top corporate
governance priorities by the Company. The Company
implements a series of mechanisms and measures relating
to environmental management and energy conservation
in its daily operations to strive to protect the environment
and conserve energy, with a view to promoting harmonious
development in terms of economic, social and ecological
benefits, which has achieved significant results.
Environment, social and governance report of the Company
is set out on pages 62 to 88 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group has always been committed to advocating
the “people-oriented” core culture and strives to practice
an entrepreneurial spirit of “mutual respect, shouldering
responsibility, close collaboration and ongoing innovations”.
We will continue to utilise this philosophy as the cornerstone
of both our corporate management and corporate social
responsibility policies. As at 31 December 2023, the Group
had a total of 1,467 (2022: 1,565) employees in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Malaysia.

The Group has always been committed to developing and
adding value to human resources. The Group implements
a standard recruitment system and allocates resources
to various kinds of training for our managers, front-line
service staff and maintenance technicians, which covers,
among others, the art of management, sales skills, brand
knowledge and service awareness, with an aim of enhancing
knowledge, marketing skills and service capabilities of our
staff and assisting them in their continuous improvement and
development.
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The Group offers a competitive remuneration package and
various incentives to all employees, as well as regularly
reviews the structure of relevant mechanisms to cope with
corporate development needs. Options and awarded shares
are granted to the general management staff and associates
of the Company in recognition of their contributions to
the Group and as an incentive for their greater future
commitment. Meanwhile, the Group also offers various
other benefits to its employees, including pension plans,
mandatory provident fund scheme, insurance scheme,
housing and meal allowances.

Under a solid human resource assurance system, the
Group is enabled to create a high level of harmony among
employees of different nationalities and cultural backgrounds
under one shared vision.

The Group has maintained good and well-coordinated
partnerships with brand suppliers and various retailers.
Backed by our partners’ wide and strong support, our
operations have been able to achieve mutually beneficial,
harmonious and win-win development. During the year
under review, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its suppliers and customers. For
further details of relationships between the Company and
its employees, suppliers and customers, please refer to the
Company’s environment, social and governance report set
out on pages 62 to 88 of this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and revenue for the year
under review, attributable to the Group’s major suppliers’
purchases and customers’ sales respectively, are as follows:

FEREFRMHAER
REBFER  RAAEBIBHEFHRES
ZRBRHEDBEBERERBRATSLMT :

Purchase £RHE

— the largest supplier — mARER

— five largest suppliers combined — AAHEREET
Sales HE

— the largest customer — AR

— five largest customers combined —AAREFEF

20%
59%

36%
69%

The Swatch Group Limited constituted one of the five largest
suppliers through its subsidiary. Save as disclosed above,
none of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
interest of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in
the above major suppliers or customers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year under review, the Company renewed a
continuing connected transaction. On 31 March 2023,
the Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
and Shengshi Watch and Clock Group Ltd. (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries, “Shengshi”’) entered into a
renewal agreement of the master services agreement and
a renewal agreement of supplementary agreement to the
master service agreement on 17 November, 2023. Shengshi
is an indirect and non-wholly owned company of Mr. Zhang
Yuping, the chairman and an executive Director of the
Company. Pursuant to the master services agreement and
the supplementary agreement, the Group provided the shop
design and decoration services to Shengshi Group and its
subsidiaries from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 with
a cap of RMB26.5 million while the actual amount incurred
was RMB26.2 million.
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The above continuing connected transaction is renewed in
consistent with the Group’s past business and operation
and the Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
entered into the master services agreement and the
supplementary agreement, which is in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Such continuing connected transaction is subject to
announcement, annual review and annual reporting
requirements but exempts from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements and has been annually
reviewed by independent non-executive Directors. The
Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transaction. The independent non-executive Directors
confirm that the above continuing connected transaction
is: (a) entered into in the ordinary course of business of
the Group; (b) entered into on normal commercial terms
or more favorable terms; and (c) entered into according
to the agreement of the relevant transaction with fair
and reasonable terms, which is in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Board has engaged the auditor of the Company to
carry out a review of the continuing connected transaction
of the Group in accordance with Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules, the auditor has confirmed that: (a) nothing has come
to its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction has not been approved
by the Board; (b) for transaction involving the provision
of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to
its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction was not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group; (c) nothing has come to its attention that causes
it to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transaction was not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transaction; and (d) with respect to the aggregate amount
of the continuing connected transaction, nothing has come
to its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction has exceeded the annual
cap as set by the Company.

DONATIONS

During the year, the charitable and other donations made by
the Group amounted to RMBO (2022: nil).

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as
at the date of this annual report, there was a sufficient
prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year under
review have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
(“ZHONGHUI ANDA™).

ZHONGHUI ANDA will retire and is willing and eligible
to offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
ZHONGHUI ANDA as the auditor of the Company. There
were no other changes in the Company’s auditor in the past
three years.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no important
events affecting the Group after the end of the year under
review and up to the date of this annual report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 7 May
2024 to Friday, 10 May 2024 (both days inclusive) to confirm
the members on the register of members who are eligible to
attend and vote at the general meeting. In order to establish
entitlements to attending and voting at the general meeting,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 6 May 2024.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuping (alias Cheung Yu ping) (5k%1F), aged 63,
is the chairman and an executive Director of the Company.
He is the founder of the Group and is in charge of the
Group’s strategic development and overall management. He
has over 30 years of management experience in watches
and other high-end consuming accessories manufacturing
and international trade industries. Mr. Zhang is also the
director of Best Growth International Limited, the substantial
shareholder of the Company, and the father of Cheung Wing
Lun Tony, the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

Mr. Huang Yonghua (& 7k %), aged 53, is an executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2001 and is in charge of the
Group’s operational supervision and customer service. Mr.
Huang has over 20 years of experience in watch accessories
services and management.

Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan (ZE#/8), aged 64, is an executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible for
the Group’s business including accessories manufacturing.
He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree and has pursued
further studies in business administration. He has nearly 30
years of experience in watch accessories manufacturing and
distribution.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Shi Zhongyang ($£ff%), aged 49, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Shi graduated from Nanjing University in the
PRC and University of Goetting in Germany with a Master’s
Shi joined The Swatch Group Limited
in 2000 and joined the Group in 2006. He is currently a

Degree in Law. Mr.

legal counsel of the legal department of The Swatch Group
Limited.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cai Jianmin (2 # &), aged 80, is an independent
non-executive Director. He graduated from the industrial
accounting faculty (I % &€ 5 X) of Shanghai College of
Finance and Economics (LB EFE). Mr. Cai holds a
Certificate for Professional Accountants (EFH{EEEIREE)
in the PRC. He was senior financial management for various
companies including Shanghai Hualian (Group) (E/&%EH
(£3) ). Mr. Cai joined the Group in 2005. He is currently an
independent director of Jiangsu Guotai International Group
Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 002091).

Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William (& % #), aged 64, is an
independent non-executive Director. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in 2005. He graduated from University of Edinburgh,
Scotland with a bachelor degree and a doctorate degree
in Electrical Engineering. Mr. Wong is currently a council
member of the seventh Hong Kong Legislative Council, a
professor in the Department of Systems Engineering and
Engineering Management in the Chinese University of
Hong Kong and a member of the 14th national committee
of CPPCC. He obtained the qualification as a Chartered
Engineer (CEng) in 1991, and is now a fellow of the
Institution of Engineering and Technology and a professional
member of the Association for Computing Machinery. Mr.
Wong has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 25 September 2023.

Mr. Liu Xueling (8] £
non-executive Director. He graduated from East China

%), aged 66, is an independent

Normal University in Shanghai with a doctorate degree
in history. At present, he is a senior lawyer in Shanghai
Tongyan Law Firm (/8T @HREMEHFT). He joined the
Group in 2007. He served as an independent director
of Shanghai Qiangsheng Holding Co., Ltd. (listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600662) from 2014
to 2020.
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Ms. Qian Weiqging (4 %), aged 51, is an independent
non-executive Director. She graduated from Massey
University of New Zealand with a master degree in finance
management. Ms. Qian has been engaged in financial
investment for a long time and has rich experience in
commodity trading. She had hold positions in China
International Futures Co., Ltd. and COFCO Futures. Co.,
Ltd.. Ms. Qian has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 21 March
2023.

Senior Management

Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony (5R%B), aged 34, is the Chief
Executive Officer and the president of high-end consuming
accessories business of the Group. He graduated from
Western Sydney University in Australia with a Bachelor's
Degree in Applied Finance and Management Accounting.
Mr Cheung joined the Group in 2012, and successively
served as assistant to president of high-end consuming
accessories business, assistant to executive director and
executive vice president of high-end consuming accessories
business of the Group. Mr. Cheung Wing Lun is the son of
Mr. Zhang Yuping, the chairman and executive Director of
the Company.

Ms. Tan Li (% RB), aged 59, is the vice president and
secretary to the Board and is in charge of the Board office
and human resources of the Group. Ms. Tan Li graduated
from Nanjing Normal University (F R Al# AX£2) with a Master
of Arts degree. She joined the Group in 2001. Before joining
the Group, Ms. Tan Li taught at the branch colleges of
Peking University in China.

Mr. Ng Man Wai (2 X {&), aged 53, is the company
secretary and financial controller. Mr. Ng graduated from the
University of Toronto with a bachelor degree in commerce.
He joined the Group in 2004. Mr. Ng is a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA).
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere thanks to all the shareholders for their
continuous support and to all our staff for their dedication
and contribution to the Group during the year under review.

GENERAL INFORMATION

As at the end of 2023 and the date of this report, the
executive directors are Mr. Zhang Yuping (Chairman),
Mr. Huang Yonghua and Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan; the
non-executive director is Mr. Shi Zhongyang, and the
independent non-executive directors are Mr. Cai Jianmin,
Mr. Liu Xueling and Ms. Qian Weiqing.

By Order of the Board
Zhang Yuping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

S IR

INTRODUCTION

Since its establishment, the Company has been committed
to maintaining high-standard corporate governance practice
to ensure transparency of the Group’s management, so
that the long-term development of the Group as well as our
shareholders, customers, employees can be safeguarded.
The Group has established a board of directors, an audit
committee, a remuneration committee and a nomination
committee that are diligent, accountable and professional.
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA has been appointed as the Group’s
external auditor.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. The Directors
are of the opinion that the Company complied with the
Corporate Governance Code during the year under review.

Composition of the Board

To maintain high-level independence and objectivity in
decision-making, and supervise the management of the
Group in a comprehensive and equitable manner, the Board
of the Group comprises three executive Directors (Messrs.
Zhang Yuping (Chairman of the Group), Huang Yonghua and
Lee Shu Chung, Stan), one non-executive Director (Mr. Shi
Zhongyang) and three independent non-executive Directors
(Messrs. Cai Jianmin, Liu Xueling and Ms. Qian Weiging).

To ensure that the Board operates in an independent and
accountable manner, the three executive Directors have
been assigned with different responsibilities. Mr. Zhang
Yuping, the Chairman,
management and strategic development, while Mr. Lee Shu

Chung, Stan is in charge of the overall business operation

is in charge of the Group’s overall

of the Group, and Mr. Huang Yonghua is responsible for

coordination and supervision.

44 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

D%ﬁﬁ
i

RAEIBRM AR - O RFRBENQ

F BREEEEMNSEHE - J//(1%’§§HX

*EI&E@mﬁL%E°%%’$
—AER- - a8 BEEBZERW
%ﬁéﬂa FMEEgRIREE

SEITEESR EETRESET

& ) 5N IR A% A

y
o
S

/,

=]

|
%EHM‘“T\

B2
=

\

WDED%&D

EPE

\
A

&
& o
=]
E3E]

5

>
e
m
B
\4}

381 TR
7

MRAMECIE 2 X E)
C RARFREBEFERASEST

=2

S
.E”
o

H

v

H
B

P B R

HME
il
i)
—

EEE4AMX

SRBEFERRBY FEMUEEEETT
EEERAENER SENEEEH =2
EX(Rm¥iE (REXER) BKELRER
FRALE)  —RIFNTES (RHHELLE)
R=%2BIFNTER (BEREL  2BE
EREETZLT) EK

REREFQEFABUIELRREAN
TEZEDHNEETEANITIEHRE - TFEREF
TEBRSERBEERRBER  FTHEE
SRERERBEBNES  MEKELRLR
BEGRHEEE -

=R



The three independent non-executive Directors have
extensive experience in the areas of accounting, economics,
law and commodities trading, respectively, and can
adequately act for the benefits of our shareholders. Their
terms of office are as follows:

Cai Jianmin: 26/9/2023-25/9/2026;
Liu Xueling: 01/6/2022-31/5/2025;
Qian Weiging: 21/3/2023-11/3/2026.

Mr. Shi Zhongyang, a non-executive Director of the
Company, has professional expertise and extensive
experience in the areas of law and business management.
He will supervise the Company’s daily operation, and
provide corresponding opinions and recommendations in
a timely manner, which is beneficial to the standardized
operation of the Company and safeguarding the interests of
our shareholders. His term of office is 15/2/2024-14/2/2027;

Duties of the Board

The Board of the Company is accountable to the general
meeting and performs the following major duties: reporting
duties to the general meetings; executing the resolutions
of the general meetings; determining investment and profit
distribution proposals of the Company; formulating plans
as to the increase or decrease of the registered capital of
the Company; preparing plans in respect of the split-up,
consolidation, alteration and dissolution of the Company;
appointing and dismissing the general manager of the
Company and determining his or her remuneration.

In respect of the corporate governance functions, during
the year under review, the Board discharged corporate
governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference,
or to be specific, the following corporate governance duties
during the year under review:

o reviewing policies and practices on corporate
governance;
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° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;
o reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements;

° reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to the Directors and employees; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Members of the Board are provided with appropriate
and sufficient information in a timely manner for their
understanding of the latest developments of the Group,
which is helpful in the discharge of their duties.

The management of the Company is accountable to the
reporting
to the Board, executing the resolutions of the Board, and

Board and performs the following major duties:

completing all the tasks assigned by the Board.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group has established effective risk management and
internal control systems to provide reasonable (though
not absolute) assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage (rather than eliminate) risks of failing
to achieve business objectives. The Board is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness.
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In order to safeguard the interests of our shareholders,
the Group has established an enterprise risk management
framework to provide top-down and bottom-up approaches
to identify, assess, mitigate and monitor key risks in a
proactive and structured manner. The Group has established
departments dedicated to the supervision and control of
financial and operational risks, including an internal audit
department. Such departments formulate annual internal
audit plans and are responsible for performing daily and
special internal control procedures in aspects relating to
business operation, financial reporting and compliance
control and in accordance with the targets set by the
senior management, which includes conducting audits
and examination of all aspects and at all departments
once or twice a year, so as to enhance internal control
and ensure the sound development of the Company. Such
departments will report the audit and examination results to
the audit committee and the Board for them to assess the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
of the Company, any significant failures or weaknesses in
internal control, and to take necessary actions promptly to
remedy any significant failures or weaknesses. If necessary,
such departments will follow up regularly on remedial
actions in response to significant internal control failures or
weaknesses.

The Company has established a disclosure mechanism
regarding the procedures of proper information disclosure to
ensure that inside information remains confidential until the
disclosure of such information is appropriately approved,
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made.

The audit committee and the Board have reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group
and completed the annual review on the risk management
and internal control systems (including their effectiveness).
Based on the reviews made by independent auditors and
the Group’s self-assessment of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, the Group believes
that, these systems are effective and adequate. However,
the Group will continue to review the effectiveness of these
systems as well as further improve the internal administration
and control systems of the Company if required.
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ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS AT THE EEHZ2EZHEER

MEETINGS
In 2023, a total of six Board meetings and an annual general R-_ZF—=FF  ARQFHBH AL EEE
meeting were held by the Company. The attendance of the &% ZBZEET —FAREBEEAD  KEZHH
Directors at the meetings was as follows: EEEMT
Frequency of Frequency of Frequency of
aftendance attendance at attendance at
atthe Board  Rate of the general  Rate of the commitiee Rate of
Name % meetings attendance  Remarks meeting attendance  Remarks meetings  aftendance  Remarks
e LEVN- zeges
LERE  BEE B HERE  HEE G HERH HEE
Zhang Yuping FHE 4 67%  Abstained 1 100% 2 100%
2 times
2R
Huang Yonghua akE 6 100% 1 100% N/A Non-member of
the committee
iyelii FREENE
Lee ShuChung, Stan & 6 100% 1 100% N/A Non-member of
the committee
0yelii FEREHR
Shi Zhongyang il 3 50% By proyy 0 0% N/A Non-member of
3 time* the committee
SRER Iyelii FZEENE
Cai Jianmin BER 6 100% 1 100% 4 100%
Wong Kam Fai, William*  &§5i&" 4 80% By proxy 1 100% 2 100%  Asresigned
1 time on 25 September
1RZIK 9RBARE
Liu Xueling H=E 6 100% 1 100% 4 100%
Qian Weiging* By 5 100% 1 100% N/A As appointed
on 25 September
)i 9A2R R
% Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William resigned on 25 September * =R IB 5L A R 2023F9 A25H BHE ¢ SIS

2023; Ms. Qian Weiging was appointed on 21 March 2023

Z+MR2023F3 21 HER T

Members of the Board are provided with appropriate and =Z=E&KESHEBEGEE LRTCER » UE
sufficient information in due course for their understanding ®ETHMAEE SHERE  EHAHEEE
of the latest developments of the Group, which is helpful in  THREE -

the discharge of their duties.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introductory
session so as to ensure that he/she will gain appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and his/her duties
and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements. The Company
provides regular updates on the business development of
the Group. The Directors are continually updated on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance with
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are committed to complying with the
requirements under the Code A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code on Directors’ training so as to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the year under review, the Directors of the
Company attended relevant training in accordance with the
Listing Rules and provided the relevant training records to
the Company. According to the records, details of Directors’
attendance at the training sessions during the year under
review are as follows:

Updates on corporate governance,
laws and regulations
EER  EBEREH

Seminar/training
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Accounting/financial/management
and other professional expertise
Bt MK EERAEMEERE

Seminar/training

Name "E Material reading attending Material reading attending
SEER SEER S

EREE 3 ERIBE 3

Zhang Yuping of B0 < v v/ 4 2
Huang Yonghua HKEE v v v v
Lee Shu Chung Stan & s 4 v/ v v
Shi Zhongyang 52 {HE5 v 7 4 v/
Cai Jianmin £ER v v v v
Wong Kam Fai, William &7 # v v v v/
Liu Xueling 22T v v 4 7
Qian Weiging BIET v v v v
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CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received confirmation from all the
independent Directors regarding their independence made
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that all the incumbent independent Directors have
met the requirements of the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and remained independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Zhang Yuping serves as the Chairman of the Board and
Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony serves as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. The Chairman’s responsibility is to
oversee the functioning of the Board and the strategies
and policies of the Group and the Chief Executive Officer’s
responsibility is to manage the Group’s business. Mr.
Cheung Wing Lun Tony is the son of Mr. Zhang Yuping.

Save as disclosed above, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s)) between members of the Board.

MEETING BETWEEN CHAIRMAN AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year under review, one meeting was held
between Chairman and independent non-executive directors
of the Company without the presence of other directors,
mainly to discuss the impact of the year’s political and
economic situation on the Company’s operations and the
Company’s future direction and other related matters.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company had adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the
Company’s code for securities transactions by its Directors.
After making specific enquiries with all the Directors serving
during the year under review, the Company has confirmed
that during the year under review, all of them had complied
with the standard as required by the above code.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial reports of the Group in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company on their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out on pages 90 to 96 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit fee payable to the auditors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2023 will be approximately
RMB1,811,000 (2022: approximately RMB1,612,000). During
the year under review, in addition to the auditing services,
the Company’s auditors also provided the Group with
services such as taxation planning and due diligence. The
total non-auditing service fees were RMB289,000 (2022:
RMB275,000).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The audit committee
comprises four independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Messrs. Cai Jianmin (Chairman), Wong Kam Fai,
William (as retired on 25 September 2023), Liu Xueling
and Qian Weiging, who are responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company as well as significant or unusual items, internal
controls, financial reporting, risk management and control
matters, which included a review on the audited annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
interim report for 2023. According to the terms of reference
of the audit committee adopted and implemented by the
Company, the audit committee is responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company as well as significant or unusual items, internal
controls, financial reporting matters and duties of risk
management and control.
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During the year, the audit committee of the Company held
meetings on 21 March and 22 August 2023 to review the
annual report and interim financial reports of the Group
respectively. All members of the committee, namely Messrs.
Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai, William and Liu Xueling,

attended the meetings.

The audit opinions from the audit committee in respect of
the Group’s financial report, risk management and control

for the year are summarised as follows:

The 2023 financial report of the Company is objective in
all material aspects, and gives a fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2023 and
the operating results and cash flow in 2023. During the
reporting period, given the uncertainties, unstable factors
and the evolving situation stemming resulting from the
sophisticated and changeable economic environment,
the Company's business continued to operate steadily.
The financial indicators were improved while maintaining
stability. The Company's overall operation was positive.
During the reporting period, the standard and system of
risk control of the Company played a synergistic role in
the curse of activities and made satisfactory contributions.
Confronted with severe environment, the Company is still
required to examine the situation and actively respond to it
to ensure the stable operation of the Company and achieve
a better performance.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year
under review, the remuneration committee comprises three
Directors including Messrs. Liu Xueling (Chairman) and Cai
Jianmin, being independent non-executive Directors, and
Mr. Zhang Yuping, Chairman and executive Director of the
Group. The primary duties of the remuneration committee
are to review and determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to
the Directors and senior management of the Group, and to
review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes as
set out in Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the
year to review matters related to the remuneration structure
of the Directors and senior management of the Company. All
members of the committee, namely Messrs. Liu Xueling, Cai
Jianmin and Zhang Yuping, attended the meeting.

According to the terms of reference of the remuneration
committee adopted by the Company, the remuneration
committee acts as a consultant regarding the remuneration
matters of the Directors and senior management of the
Company, while the Board retains the ultimate power to
approve the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year
under review, the nomination committee comprises three
Directors, including Mr. Zhang Yuping (Chairman), executive
Director and Chairman of the Group, and Messrs. Cai
Jianmin and Liu Xueling, being independent non-executive
Directors. The Company has adopted and implemented
the terms of reference of the nomination committee. The
nomination committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and succession of the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company adopts the nomination and selection
policies for the Board members, including the criteria and
procedures for appointment, by-election and re-election of
Directors.

Selection and Recommendation Criteria

In determining the suitability of the candidates for Directors,
the factors the nomination committee and the Board should
consider shall include integrity, professional ability, business
experience, independence and potential contribution to
the Company and the Board and diversity in terms of age,
culture, race, and gender, under the laws and regulations
of Cayman lIslands, Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations. These criteria shall mainly include:
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o candidates shall be persons of integrity, honesty,
good reputation and professional status;

° candidates should be able to meet the needs of the
current Board structure, size, diversity and talent mix;

o candidates’ business experience and professional
knowledge and ability in the operation of the Board;

o candidates can spare sufficient time to ensure the
proper performance of their duties as a Director;

o candidates for independent non-executive Directors
must meet the independence requirements of the
Listing Rules, possess independent character and
judgment, and be able to effectively handle the
Company’s affairs in a manner that is in line with and
represents the best interests of all shareholders of the
Company.

These criteria are not to be exhaustive or decisive. The
nomination committee and the Board will take into careful
consideration any other factors that are in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders when selecting
candidates for Directors.
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Nomination Procedure

When the Board determines that it is necessary to appoint
additional or replacement Directors, the nomination
committee shall adopt such methods and channels as it
deems appropriate to find suitable candidates for Directors,
including recommendations from the Directors, shareholders,
management and external headhunters. After working out
the list of potential candidates, the nomination committee
shall draw up a shortlist of candidates for discussion by
the Board based on the selection criteria and other factors
it deems appropriate. The nomination committee and the
Board will ensure that the composition of Directors complies
with laws and regulations of Cayman lIslands, Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations.

Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself for
re-election, the Board may recommend such retiring Director
to stand for re-election at a general meeting. A circular
containing the requisite information on such retiring Director
shall be sent to the shareholders before the general meeting
under the Listing Rules.

The nomination committee and the Board shall review the
above nomination policy from time to time to ensure that the
Company remains compliant with the relevant regulatory
requirements and maintains a good corporate governance
standard.

The nomination committee held one meeting during the
year to review matters related to retirement by rotation and
re-election of Directors of the Company and the appointment
of Ms. Qian Weiging as an independent non-executive
director of the Company. All members of the nomination
committee (namely Messrs. Zhang Yuping, Cai Jianmin, and
Liu Xueling) attended the meeting.
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SUMMARY OF THE BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

To improve the performance of the Company, the Board has
adopted policies on board diversity. The Board believes
that board diversity can be achieved by taking into account
various factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, term of services and other
talents. All the appointments have been made based on
the Company’s business models and specific needs from
time to time, and candidates have been assessed with due
regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board on objective
business conditions. The nomination committee will be
mainly responsible for identifying suitable and competent
candidates for Board members and assessing such
candidates in light of objective conditions. As a part of the
annual performance review for the efficiency of the Board,
considerations of the nomination committee will be balanced
between skills and experience as required for accomplishing
the business targets of the Company and diversity factors.
To achieve board diversity, the nomination committee will
discuss and develop measurable objectives from time
to time, and propose the same to the Board for adoption
and implementation. Generally speaking, the selection of
candidates by the nomination committee shall be based on
a range of diverse perspectives including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
race, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
term of services. However, the final decision will depend
on the strengths of the candidates and their prospective
contributions to the Board. The Board may improve one
or more diversified perspectives from time to time, and
measure the progress on such basis. The nomination
committee will review the policy from time to time, including
conducting assessments on the effectiveness of the policy.
The nomination committee will also discuss any amendment
that may be necessary, and submit amendment proposals to
the Board for approval.
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During the year under review, Ms. Qian Weiging was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
thereby increasing the diversity of the Board.

Please refer to the disclosure in page 76 of this annual
report for the gender ratio of the Group’s employees as at
31 December 2023.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Man Wai was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company in 2004. His biographical details are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management”.
2023, Mr.
not less than 15 hours in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the

For the financial year ended 31 December
Ng attended relevant professional training for

Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration payment of the Group’s Directors and
senior management for the year ended 31 December 2023
falls within the following bands:

REEFER BEBELXTERE/REULIF
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RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

How the Shareholders Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting and Make Recommendations at
General Meetings

According to the articles of association of the Company,
any shareholder holding at the date of filing the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right to vote at a general meeting
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business or resolutions
specified in such requisition and for the purpose of adding
resolutions to the agenda of the meeting; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the filing of such
requisition. If the Board fails to convene such meeting within
twenty-one (21) days of such filing, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed by the
Company.

The letter demanding the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting mentioned above shall be sent to the
principal office of the Company indicating the Board or the
company secretary of the Company as the addressee.

How to Make Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may send letters to the principal office of
the Company for any enquiries indicating the Board or the
company secretary of the Company as the addressee.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

On 21 March 20283, the Board proposed to amend the
existing amended and restated memorandum and articles
of association of the Company (the “Memorandum and
Articles”) to, inter alia, (i) allow a general meeting to be held
as an electronic meeting (also referred to as virtual general
meeting) or a hybrid meeting; (i) bring the Memorandum
and Articles in line with the amendments made to Appendix
A1 to the Listing Rules which became effective on 1 January
2022 and the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands;
and (iii) make certain housekeeping amendments to the
Memorandum and Articles (collectively, the “Proposed
Amendments”).

The amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association incorporating the Proposed Amendments has
become effective upon approval of the shareholders of
the Company by way of a special resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 12 May 2023.

Save as disclosed above, during the year under review,

there was no other significant change in the articles of
association of the Company.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company firmly believes in the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders and the investors
in attaining high-level transparency in the Group and
enhancing understanding of the Group’s development
strategy and direction by investors. Since its listing, the
Group has maintained close communications with the
shareholders, media, analysts and fund managers through
various communication channels such as one-on-one
meetings, roadshows, press conferences, press releases,
telephone communications and emails, in an attempt to
answer the enquiries of the investors in a timely manner and
provide accurate and timely information to the investors,
so as to enhance their understanding of the development
strategy and direction of the Group.

During the year under review, the Company mainly
communicated with analysts, investors and potential
investors in different regions by means of telephone and
online meetings. It enabled the investors in different
countries and regions to have a timely and in-depth
understanding of the Group, whilst the senior management
capturing the concerns of the investors in a timely manner,
so as to continuously improve the efforts of the Company in
investors relations. Accordingly, the Company considered its
shareholders’ communication policy is effective.

In the future, the Group will continue to maintain a close
relationship with its domestic and overseas investors and
constantly improve their understanding of and confidence in
the Group.
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GROUP PHILOSOPHY

Following Hengdeli's motto a hundred years ago and
believing that businesses exist as a part of society and
prosper along with it, the Group has been shouldering
social responsibility in terms of environmental protection,
environment quality management, use of resources, and
talent development, all of which are contributing to the
Group’s healthy development.

Hengdeli has always regarded social responsibility as
an essential part of corporate governance, and attached
great importance to the benefits and relationships that its
corporate social responsibility actions generate among its
customers, employees, local communities, shareholders,
business partners and supervisory authorities. We are fully
aware that strengthening social responsibility is not only
crucial for Hengdeli’s future development, but is also a
compelling obligation as a part of Hengdeli’s participation in
civil society.

Over the years, the Group has been concerning ourselves
with environmental protection and committed ourselves
to achieving an ecological balance as part of our efforts
towards becoming a green enterprise. We have been
maintaining integrity in our operations in providing quality
and safe products to customers, which has earned us social
credibility and made us a reliable company. We respect and
value talents, and aimed at creating an environment that
offers a win-win development objective for both employees
and the enterprise. The care of our employees’ working
conditions and career development has driven us to create
a welcoming, harmonious and mutually beneficial corporate
culture for employees, in which we share with them the
success brought by the company’'s growth and thus
integrate individual, corporate and social values. We have
also been getting more involved in public welfare activities,
actively participating in a range of social undertakings
such as education and social welfare activities, serving
the community with sincerity and bringing new hope to
those in need. Hengdeli has been striving to establish itself
as a responsible and reliable company that customers,
employees, shareholders and society can trust, and one that
is committed to sustainable development.
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In 2023, the global political environment remained unstable,
and China’'s economy experienced an upward recovery
the Group
continued to operate its business in a positive and prudent
In 2023,
the Group enhanced its social corporate responsibility

curve amidst continuous pressures. However,

manner with a view to achieving healthy growth.

activities at different levels as usual, and further integrated
the concept of social corporate responsibility into its daily
operations. We continued to provide quality and safe
products and services to our customers, while also ensured
the mutual benefits and common development of customers,
employees and the society.

Governance structure

The Group’s Board is responsible for leading the overall
development and operation of the Group, which includes
monitoring the strategies and performance of environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) of the Company. Good ESG
performance is an essential element for long-term corporate
success and long-term operations. At the level of business
operation, the Group has established an ESG Committee
responsible for formulating the Group’s ESG development
strategies, assessing and monitoring environmental, social
and corporate governance related risks, overseeing and
reviewing the work progress of the ESG working groups, and
reporting regularly to the Board to ensure that the Board has
maintained high standards of management and compliance
with regulatory requirements. This report has also been
approved by the Board in March 2024 and set out in the

Company’s annual report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group is committed to close liaison and ongoing
interaction with key stakeholders including shareholders,

investors, customers,

the community to gather feedback through various
communication channels to identify and assess the

importance of ESG issues. The communication channels with

key stakeholders include, but are not limited to the following:

Stakeholders
Fz=tEEEE

Communication Channels
BEEE

BHESHE
AEERNRBFEFRNEBERE &E&
% TP BB HEARMENERHEBE
employees, suppliers and &% BRASBEAREKEREER
HEmBARMTHESCGE BEEMEEE - HE
ERHENERRETIEREATRNET ¢

Concerns and Expectations

BERHE

Shareholders and Investors

BREEE

Customers

Employees

7l
]

General meeting

Regular reports and
announcements

Investor relations activities

BERAE
ERRERAE

REEBRED

Website disclosure and
corporate brochure
Daily communications
In-person visit

At % 7R e E A1

HE &l

EEFES

Trainings and team-building
activities, seminars
Employees care activities
Telephone, email and meeting
Internal communications
In-person communication
BN EREE - e
STEEES

B BEREE

AER A

TE0 1 T 38
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Return of investment
Information disclosure and
corporate transparency

Rights and interests protection
of shareholders and investors
& B ¥
EEBBEREFEBEAE

f&R kI & E IR E

Quality and safety of products
Integrity in operation
Corporate transparency

EmEGERTE
HIERE

TEERE

Benefits protection of employees
Working conditions
Career development
opportunities
Salaries and benefits
Health and safety
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Stakeholders
F=iEEE

Communication Channels
BEEE

BE - g LEIRRE

Concerns and Expectations
ERHAE

Suppliers/Business Partners

"Em,AERH

Supervisory Authorities

Business meeting, email and
visit

Bidding process

Regular reviews and
assessments

¥Bg% BERFED
%&*ﬂ?/ﬂb#ﬂi

Mt Rt S E

Annual report

Information disclosure
Participate in trainings and
seminars

Ongoing dialogues by email and
telephone communication, etc.

Stable business relationships
Resource sharing
Growth together

IR A ERRR
ﬁ/ﬁ/\?

Corporate governance and risk
management
Good cooperation

EEHE . FERE . rRERERAREE
. EEHE . RiFaE
. %EPW&HJA
. BH  EEBASHEUE
Local Communities ° Media consultancy ° Environmental protection
° Annual report ° Contribute to society
° Website disclosure
° Participate in charity and social
activities
Zan . BHREA . RGRE
. FERSE . Olfgit &

. BUBRE
. EERHEEDEA

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In accordance with the “Guidelines of Environmental,
Social and Governance” set out in Appendix C2 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange, the Group has, based on communication
with key stakeholders and its actual situation, assessed
environmental, social and governance issues that are
relevant with and material to its business from two
perspectives, namely the materiality of issue to stakeholders
and the materiality of issue to environment and society, so
as to clarify the overall materiality of each sustainability
issue and hence a prioritised list is made as the basis for
the Group’s ESG focus and disclosure.
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The ESG materiality matrix of the Group during the year [EIEEERN @ NEEESGEAZEBMEMIT -
under review was as follow:

ubiH
it

siapjoysyels ay1 0} soueliodw|
TR B 5 R o K 2

Low Importance to the Company High
& HAQNRNEERM =
Importance Issues
EEMHF o
Highly material issues mEZMERE 1 Products Quality and Safe Production
EmEBHEAELD
2 Operational Compliance
BEARER
3 Pollutant Emission Control
VEE SUke 9 el
4 Energy Saving and Consumption Reduction
EBEPEFE
5 Sustainable Profitability
AR E R
Moderately material issues FEEMEE 6 Fair Employment
RTERE
7 Employee Care
ETME
8 Avoid child and Forced Labour
B E T RS T
9 Anti-corruption
R&S
10 Training and Development
EIIEER
ih Technological Innovation
Esh=lE
12 Supply Chain Management
HIEEER
13 Intellectual Property Rights Protection
FHE R
Less material issues EEZMHER 14 Community Development
=R
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We have identified potential issues of importance to the
Group through materiality assessment, and continued to
focus on material issues for monitoring and reporting by
disclosing relevant key performance indicators (“KPIs”)
and setting targets and plans, establishing appropriate and
effective management policies and internal control systems.

A summary of the Group’s 2023 social corporate
responsibility performance relative to various quantitative
KPls, with comparison to previous years, are disclosed in
the section headed “Scope of Reporting”. Information of the
standards, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation
references, and sources of key conversion factors used
on these KPls are stated wherever appropriate. As far
as reasonably practicable, consistent methodologies are
adopted when calculating these KPIs or any changes that
affect a meaningful comparison would be stated.

Scope of Reporting

The report covers the operations of the Group and each of
its high-end consumable manufacturing subsidiaries. There
are no significant changes in the scope of reporting as
compared with the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” under the 2022 Annual Report of the Group dated 3
April 2023.

ENVIRONMENT

For many years, Hengdeli has taken environmental
protection as one of its top corporate governance priorities.
The Group implements a series of mechanisms and
measures relating to environmental management and energy
conservation in its daily operations aimed at protecting
the environment and conserving energy, with a view to
promoting harmonious balance and sustainable development
in terms of economic, social and ecological benefits.
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Emissions

Most of the Group’s emissions are produced from the
industrial production processes of high-end consumable
manufacturing subsidiaries located in Mainland China. The
branches and subsidiaries of the Group are all in strict
compliance with national and local regulations regarding
emissions of pollutant gas, sewage and greenhouse gas
and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
produced in the production process, including but not
limited to the Environmental Protection Law, the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste,
the Water Pollution Prevention Law, the Air Pollution
Prevention Law, the Environmental Protection Tax Law, the
Administrative Measures for Pollutant Discharge Licensing
(for Trial Implementation) and the Environmental Impact
Assessment Law of Mainland China, and has formulated
internal management systems such as the “Pollutant
Emission Management System” and the “Environmental
Monitoring Management Measures”. The Group is
committed to achieving sustainable development goals in a
responsible manner with aims to effectively reduce various
emissions in the course of growing production scale and
increase in sales. To this end, the Group launched the
internal self-development and testing of the “water-based
paint replacing oil-based paint” solution in respect of
industrial coatings with the aim of replacing oil-based
paint currently in use gradually by water-based paint so
as to effectively reduce the emission of formaldehyde in
industrial coatings. By adding industrial sodium carbonate
and other treatment agents, the Group filtered, purified and
recycled the industrial waste water to reduce the overall
sewage discharge. Moreover, with absorbent carbon
adsorption and the installation of central vacuum system,
the Group also effectively reduced the dust contamination
in the production rooms. The Group is inspected regularly
by the Environmental Protection Bureau. During the year,
the monitored results of all polluting emissions (including
sewage and gas) for each of the relevant factories passed
the annual inspection and met national standards, with
no incident of non-compliance. In the future, the Group
will continually revise and improve various environmental
protection rules and regulations, thoroughly implement
pollutant emission monitoring and upgrade production
process, so as to achieve effective emission reductions,
and strive to reduce single-digit percentage of emissions of
equivalent output value within the next three years.
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In 2023, the emission of pollutant gas
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of the Group was as

BE - g LEIRRE

T_=F SEERFEREENT

follows:

2022 2023
Type of emissions HmyiEsE 20224 20234
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) (g) RE(EW(NOX) (52) 482,891 314,293
Sulfur oxides (SOx) (g) HEEY(SOx) (52) 1,416 1,198

Note: The calculation of emissions and energy consumption
was based on Reporting Guide of Environmental Key
Performance Indicators of the Stock Exchange (the same

below).

In 2023,

the main sources of the Group’s greenhouse

gas emissions were the industrial production, electricity

consumption, office paper use, and company vehicles. The

total emissions were as follows:

Volume (tonnes CO2-eq)

BRERERERNGTESE THIMRE
MREBIERERESISEH (TR) -

—E=F KENA
ITELXE 8FE #A
PR -

EREHBREERRE
Fﬁriﬁ 3 /\miﬁﬁ { /Ml»

Density (tonnes CO2-eq/HKD
one million revenue)

BE (ZEREEM,/

Type of emissions HEiEs E (ZEtREEM) 5-EBBRTURE)
2022 2023 2022 2023
20224 20234F 20224 20234
Direct greenhouse gas emissions ~ HIEREREHHNE 334 266 0.27 0.19
Indirect greenhouse gas emissions  f&#%8 = RASHHE 6,720 6,916 583 4.87
The total emissions of hazardous and non-hazardous waste HBAEEZEYMEEREZY -T - =F@HH0M
in 2023 were as follows: TS &
Density
Volume (tonnes) (waste generated per sales unit)
Type of emissions HEriEs 2 (W) (GHEBNMELENEEY)
2022 2023 2022 2023
20224 20234 20224 2023
Hazardous industrial waste TEEZREEY 245 280 0.19 0.20
Non-hazardous industrial waste THEEREEY) 222 259 0.18 0.18
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To facilitate the effective implementation of 1SO14001
environmental management system, the Group entered
into contracts with relevant professional industrial waste
treatment companies, and hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes generated in the production process were
recycled by nationally recognised professional companies.
Furthermore, in order to achieve the goal of effectively
reducing waste emissions while expanding production
scale, the Group collaborated with a well-known university
in the UK since 2017 on a project to explore the feasibility
of transforming the existing sawdust waste from wood into
usable materials by mixing these waste with other materials.
After research and development and internal testing, we
have made a partial success in the trial, demonstrating that
the blended material achieved satisfactory performance
in effectively reducing the Group’s industrial waste
emissions. In recent years, the Group also carried out a new
experiment with the university to explore the feasibility of
using a new kind of steel that advances the production level
of automation. The success of the experiment is expected
to improve production efficiency, reduce consumption
and effectively reduce waste emissions. Since the density
of waste per unit of output value in the year under review
increased year-on-year mainly due to the increase in
industrial waste emissions from Dongguan Born Talent,
reasonable measures will be taken in due course to reduce
industrial waste emissions in the future.

Use of Resources

The Group conducts operation and production in a
responsible manner and aims to save energy and reduce
consumption while developing business. Specifically, the
Group actively promotes the concept of environmental
protection and to this end, implements various policies
to optimise its working environment, which emphasises
green operations and green initiatives in the workplace.
The Group has adopted an eco-friendly approach to
the interior design of its office. Our open space designs
maximise the use of outdoor natural light and shared light.
Original furniture is retained, remodelled or reinstated as
much as possible during renovation to make rational use
of existing resources and reduce waste; and the traditional
high-energy-consuming incandescent light bulbs have been
gradually replaced with energy-saving LED light bulbs that
enjoy higher efficiency and longer life cycle.
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The Group thoroughly implements a number of measures
designed to reduce emissions and cut down its consumption
of energy and natural resources, for example, printing
office paper on both sides and reusing waste paper, used
envelopes and kraft envelopes. Waste paper recycling
bins are placed in office to regularly recycle used paper
and old newspapers and magazines, and employees are
encouraged to read and send files electronically to reduce
printing. The Group actively embraces the concept of a
“paperless” office and puts it into practice, in which most
office documents are digitalised to save space and reduce
paper use. For documents after classification and archiving,
it is more efficient to search and use, while human errors
in the process can be avoided effectively. This not only
protects the environment, but also reduces the administrative
burden and the daily operating costs. The Group uses an
online office automation system to improve its administrative
functions, such as the filing and approval processes for
applications for business trips and expenses reimbursement.
It also uses an online platform to publish the Group’s
notices, policies and regulations to share information, which
not only improves work efficiency but also significantly
conserves energy. Meanwhile, the upgrade and integration
of internal ERP system and the use of innovative cloud
technology facilitates have enabled the sharing of data and
seamless collaboration among different departments within
the Group and the enhancement of corporate resources,
which maintains the business continuity of the Group and
improves its resource efficiency and competitiveness.

In addition, the Group encourages and implements remote
conference system, while also advises employees to use
public transport for business trips, and constantly reviews
and makes adjustments on the goods delivery process, so
as to reduce energy consumption and carbon emission.
A Group-wide campaign that promotes turning off lights
when leaving has been launched to integrate environmental
awareness into the everyday work life of employees.
Moreover, smart finger print attendance machines have
gradually replaced traditional paper attendance cards.
Our Hong Kong office regularly sends the coffee capsules
used in the pantry to brand suppliers for recycling, and
encourages employees to recycle and reuse red packets.
The Group has also formulated internal operational
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guidelines containing detailed requirements regarding water
and electricity consumption and the operating hours and
temperature setting of air-conditioners. In particular, the
Group adheres to the energy-saving policy throughout every
production process during manufacturing, continuously
upgrades high-efficiency and energy-saving equipment
to phase out energy-intensive production equipment
gradually. Besides, the Group improves production process,
production environment and service efficiency of equipment
on an on-going basis to reduce energy consumption during
the process.

The water consumption of the Group is mainly attributable
to the industrial production of high-end consumable
manufacturing subsidiaries, and the water is sourced from
the water supply system of local government. However,
the water consumption during the production process is
not significant. The Group is committed to environmental
protection and sustainable development although it has
not encountered any issues in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose. At present, the Group has recycled water by using
water curtain booth which effectively saves water resources
for industrial use. By adding industrial sodium carbonate
and other treatment agents, the Group has filtered, purified
and recycled the industrial wastewater to effectively reduce
the overall sewage discharge. The Group strives to reduce
water consumption per unit of output by 3-5% within three
years.

An overview of resource consumption:

AFRE - KRETHIE T AEIRERES - HA
K- AEARZERAMBARERREEEFHAR
EoHBHRERBTIRLAET  HMABRKLELH
RETHEFRAEENEERES - TEHTRSH
EigERE BT HAABRELERE T
EELTE BEEAERR  RARBEANR
X AR ETERETMEERERE -

SERKIZXREREHHEERELEELEN
TEAE - KFEKRERE BT KRR
BAEBREHKNEREL TEKN - AEBEH
RRBE IS ERKR BRI ERFERE - B4
AUARFRERAIFERRACE - BAIKE
ERAEMRKEREAKBREBN  BHEHET
TER/KERBERE  XWEBRIMTRAAmRNE
EBE NN - & ITEEEREKERBRBF
X ETRRMNA - BROBE T BT KN
B NREZFREMELFEKERD3-5% °

BRBEFREBAME

Total volume Density
2022 2023 2022 2023
Item o 20224 20234 20224 20234
Electricity consumption (kWh)  # & (FRA) 11,030,478 11,347,837 8,757.13 7,983.28
Office paper used (kg) MARME (F52) 347 392 0.28 0.28
Venhicle fuel (L) BRI s (RF) 93,978 77,926 74.61 54.28
LPG (kg) R (F=) 26,392 18,179 20.95 12.79
Water consumption (m?) FEK (LK) 105,121 117,504 83.46 82.66
Packaging materials for
finished goods (tonnes) RURK on B AR (IE) 349 373 0.28 0.26
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Environment and Natural Resources

Most of the Group’s emissions and use of resources are
produced from the industrial production processes of
high-end consumable manufacturing subsidiaries located
in Mainland China. The Group has been committed
to environment protection, energy conservation and
consumption reduction. In order to raise awareness of the
environmental impact from us and our activities at all levels
of the Group, we are constantly working to reduce carbon
footprint by various policies, measures and actions (for
details, please refer to the sections headed “Emissions” and

“Use of Resources” as set out above).

The Group aims for sustainable development by constantly
monitoring the environmental impact of its operations and
implementing appropriate measures to minimise harm to the
environment, while at the same time integrating the concepts
of conserving natural resources and reducing waste into the
corporate culture.

Taking Action on Climate Change

Prolonged climate change may induce rising sea levels,
reduced water sources and loss of biodiversity. The extreme
events arising from climate change such as storms, floods,
fires and epidemics may have a potential impact on the
operation of the Group. In the event of such risks occurring,
production facilities may be damaged and supply chain
would be disrupted, which will pose a risk to the Group’s
assets, damage our operation capacity and reputation and
cause direct business losses.
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Although such risks are hard to predict, the Group is
committed to continuously monitoring and reducing its
direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions in order
to reduce the potential impact of climate change on the
Group. Therefore, the Group has established Carbon
Inventory Accounting Procedures based on international
standards such as the GHG Protocol and local guidelines.
The Group also acknowledges the urgency of addressing
climate change and is taking every possible step to manage
and reduce climate risks. Furthermore, we closely monitor
international efforts towards decarbonisation, including
carbon neutrality target of Hong Kong and Mainland China,
to guide our low-carbon roadmap. The Group aims for
sustainable development by constantly monitoring the
environmental impact of its operations and implementing
appropriate measures to minimise harm to the environment,
while at the same time integrating the concepts of
conserving natural resources and reducing waste into the

corporate culture.

SOCIETY

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group has always regarded its employees as critically
valuable assets of corporate operation and development.
Under its “people-oriented” core culture, the Group strictly
complies with all local labour standards and relevant
employment regulations such as the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China. The Group has actively
implemented its Personnel Management System and
in a bid to
provide employees with a healthy, safe and welcoming
protect employees’ rights to rest
days, statutory holidays, paid annual leaves and maternity

adopted a standardised recruitment system,

working environment,

leaves according to laws, and build a fair, just and

transparent working platform, therefore to create a promising
development prospect for employees.
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Employment

The Group places great emphasis on upholding the basic
rights of its employees. It respects diversity in its employees
and adheres to the principle of equal opportunities in
employment, recruiting and cultivating talents regardless of
race, religion, color, nationality, gender or age. The Group
also reviews its mechanism and structure in different aspects
from time to time in order to adapt to the development of the
enterprise and, at the same time, to benefit the employees’
development. The Group held professional seminars and job
fairs from time to time in order to recruit outstanding talents
to join the Company.

The Group has adopted a comprehensive work assessment
management system, under which it regularly reviews its
recruitment system and its internal policy for grooming
talents so as to ensure transparency and to maintain fairness
and equality.

The Group implements scientific remuneration management
and various other incentives, and regularly reviews its
remuneration packages and promotion opportunities for
different positions to guarantee their market competitiveness.
To attract talents, the Group also offers various welfare
incentives to its employees, including pension plans, MPF
plans, medical insurance schemes, and housing and meal
allowances.

Further, the Group grants awarded shares and share options
to the senior management staff (including but not limited to
directors, executives and manager-level employees) and
relevant persons of the Company in recognition of their
contributions to the Group, and as an incentive encouraging
initiative and good performance in the workplace.
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As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 1,467
employees (2022: 1,565) in Mainland China, Hong Kong and

other places shown as follows:

BE T -_=F+-_A=+—HB £@RAFTH
i - B SEMERL1,467RET (T =

—4F :1,565%)  EASMMOT ¢

No. of staff
BTEH
2022 2023
20224 20234
Mainland China B A 3t 1,525 1,428
Hong Kong BB 38 37
Taiwan/Malaysia A&/ BREE 2 2
Total FEE 1,565 1,467
No. of staff
BTEH
2022 2023
20224 20234
Aged 18-25 18-255% 93 80
Aged 26-55 26-555% 1,409 1,325
Aged 56 or above 565% A 63 62
Total FEE 1,565 1,467
No. of staff
BTEH
2022 2023
20224 20234
Male E 867 816
Female T 698 651
Total HEt 1,565 1,467
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No. of staff
ETHE
2022 2023
20224 2023%F
Full-time 2% 1,553 1,466
Part-time E 3 12 1
Total HEt 1,565 1,467
Employee turnover rate
ETRAZE
2022 2023
20224 2023
Mainland China AR [ (A D 30.3 35.2
Hong Kong and Macau oyl 15.8 10.8
Taiwan/Malaysia = -0 Tk 0 0
Employee turnover rate
BIRAE
2022 2023
20224 20235
Aged 18-25 18-255% 89.2 75.0
Aged 26-55 26-555% &5.5 32.8
Aged 56 or above 5657 A 20.6 24.2
Employee turnover rate
ETRAR
2022 2023
20224 2023%F
Male = 341 31.3
Female L8 42.7 38.7
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The Group places emphasis on employees’ sense of
belonging to the Company, and is committed to providing
them with a pleasant and harmonious working environment.
In addition, the Group actively launches and implements
work that is favourable for building a harmonious relationship
between the enterprise and the employees as well as
facilitating the enterprise’s sound development, so as to
care for employees and strengthen their sense of belonging
and their solidarity with the Group.

The Group’s labour unions at different levels have the
tradition of organizing activities for employees, such as
holding birthday parties for employees and holiday dinner
parties, and arranging employees’ participation in social
sports events. These activities enhanced employees’
physical and psychological well-being and strengthened
their sense of belonging and overall team spirit.
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Team building activity of the Group’s
subsidiary, Dongguan Born Talent
EETEREES RN LEKEREE

20th anniversary celebration of the Group’s Safety production training and fire drill in the
subsidiary, Suzhou Henge Group’s subsidiary, Guangzhou Artdeco
SETEHIMNTTE A R20BFENE D SETEEMNFHRARI L2 EEFIIEY ER
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Health and Safety

The Group is deeply committed to its employees’ well-being
and organises regular health check-ups for them, as well as
providing various medical insurance schemes.

The Group maintains high manufacturing safety standards.
To provide its employees with a safe and comfortable
working environment, the Group ensures it is in strict
compliance with international labour standards and the
relevant laws of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan
and Malaysia, such as the Production Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Fire Prevention Law of
the People’s Republic of China. It also implements internal
guidelines and policies on occupational health and safety
for different working conditions and positions to ensure the
health and safety of its employees. The Group purchases
labour insurance for its employees, equips each workplace
with first aid kit with basic first aid supplies, arranges
employees for regular participation in courses on first-aid
skills, provides employees with training courses and drills on
manufacturing safety, fire and disaster prevention awareness
at the Group’s industrial segment subsidiaries, equips
employees in the position exposing to occupational hazards
with protective gears in line with national and industry
standards, and checks whether they wear the gears on an
irregular basis. The Group arranges regular occupational
disease checkups and maintains health surveillance archives
for its employees. The employee handbook also provides
clear and comprehensive guidelines on handling hurricane
and rainstorm warnings, as well as accidents and work
injuries. The Group’s industrial group also conducts regular
assessments of occupational hazards in the workplace, and,
based on the assessment reports by third parties, improves
the environment of workplace through the transformation
of system engineering facilities. Guangzhou Artdeco
even installed dust collection alarm system to provide a
safer working environment for employees. All production
subsidiaries established dual prevention mechanism of risk
control by ranking and elimination and handling of hidden
dangers. The Group’s safety production situation continues
to improve. During the year under review, the Group had a
very low rate of work-related injuries, while the lost days due
to work-related injuries were 161.5 days (2022: 417.5 days),
and there were no cases of work-related deaths (the last
three years: nil).
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Development and Training

Employee development drives the progress of a company.
The Group encourages employees at all levels to engage
in advanced studies or participate in training to achieve
their personal growth and professional development. While
developing its business and safeguarding the basic rights
of its employees, the Group also provides a platform for
employees to develop their careers, which includes offering
a comprehensive learning and training system that helps
them grow quickly and strengthens their sense of belonging.
The Group formulates suitable training courses according
to the needs of its different departments and businesses.
It also implements an internal recruitment system, in which
employees can choose their career path based on their
interests and strengths.

Every year, the Group offers comprehensive induction
training covering an overview of the Group’s business,
information about business partners, product knowledge,
corporate culture and core values and business-related
policies and regulations to new recruits as well as
pre-service safety training for new recruits of factories to
help them integrate into the Hengdeli family.

The Group also provides its directors and senior
management with regular trainings, so as to maintain
continuing professional development and enhance their
knowledge and skills. The training includes regular updates
on rules for listed companies, and information about
relevant laws and regulations, corporate governance,
inside information, anti-corruption and bribery, internet
risk and international accounting standards as well as risk
management accountability for directors.
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During the year under review, the average training hours per
person provided by the Group were as follows:

Training by type (average training hours per person and

CEFEER  SEFHEIFHENT

REBFERIE Y (FAEIRHLEZEINE

percentage of employees who received training) TEDL)
2022 2023
20224 2023
Middle to senior management HEEEEAE  Average hours per person AR & 7.8 19.0
Percentage EE4 68% 65%
Frontline staff —#RET Average hours per person NS 8.6 12.1
Percentage Btk 100% 100%
Other employees Hin s Average hours per person A& 10.2 19.4
Percentage Aot 96% 96%

Training by gender (average training hours per person and

percentage of employees who received training) )

RIERE S (PRI REREINETH

2022 2023
20224 20234
Male 3 Average hours per person NZ[EE 10.1 13.1
Percentage EEa 99% 100%
Female X Average hours per person ABRE 7.4 15.5
Percentage Bt 96% 96%

Labour Standards 2T
The Group has employees in Mainland China, Hong £BREESMHMERBEANM - BR  5&EKEKE

Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Malaysia. The Group is in strict
compliance with international labour standards and all
relevant local labour and employment laws and regulations.
All of its employees and job applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fair treatment.
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The Group adopts a comprehensive work assessment
management system, and revises its recruitment system
and internal training standards on a regular basis to ensure
transparency and to maintain fairness and impartiality.

During the year under review, the Group was not involved
in any issues relating to child labour or forced labour. The
Group will continue to comply with the strict recruitment
process and internal management system and verify the
identities of job applicants to ensure that they are of legal
age, so as to deter child labour and forced labour.

Operation Practices

The Group,
manufacturers and suppliers to deliver quality and safe
products to customers, and is dedicated to maintaining a

as always, cooperates closely with

high level of industrial production transparency and product
responsibility. Throughout its operations, the Group ensures
that it maintains and carries forward a good social reputation
by complying with all national and regional anti-corruption
and anti-bribery policies.

Supply Chain Management

The Group implements an efficient supply chain
management system that optimises links from suppliers,
product production to after-sales, so as to optimise the
allocation of social resources. Meanwhile, the Group realizes
an effective link between production and sales as well
as a reasonable flow of logistics,
through an efficient information network, and delivers quality
products and considerate services to consumers in a timely

information and capital

manner at reasonable prices.
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The Group’s subsidiaries engaged in high-end product
accessories manufacturing have each formulated
corresponding code and management measures for
raw material suppliers, such as Supplier Development
and Management Procedures, Guidelines for Supplier
Evaluation Work and Environmental Substance Management
Standards, to set up entry standards for qualified suppliers.
The Group also adjusts the assessment criteria based
on the continuous development and changes of market
environment and requirements, and thoroughly screens and
evaluates suppliers to ensure that the materials purchased
feature good quality, reasonable price and timely service.
Each factory of the Group has a detailed supplier survey,
assessment sheet, as well as a standardised supplier
management process and procurement control procedure,
and incorporates the suppliers’ sustainable development,
environmental protection and production safety performance
into the assessment criteria by signing a social responsibility
commitment letter with them. When selecting a supplier
for raw materials, an assessment on products of suppliers
will be carried out by the examination and approval
department of each factory according to various criteria
including relevant national certifications (such as the ISO
quality management system) for the Group’s final approval.
The Group also regularly verifies, gives feedback on and
evaluates each supplier’s products in areas such as quality,
pricing and environmental protection. Those suppliers which
do not meet the Group’s standards will be disqualified in
due course.

During the year under review, the Group’s subsidiaries
engaged in high-end product accessories manufacturing
have a total of 249 suppliers, including 2 suppliers in
Europe, 3 suppliers in Hong Kong, 2 suppliers in other parts
of Asia, and the remaining of which are in Mainland China.
The Group was not aware of any major non-compliance
incidents or potential significant adverse effects of any
major suppliers in the aspects of environmental protection,
business ethics, employment and labour practices.
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Product Responsibility

The Group has a relatively mature industrial chain for
watch accessories manufacturing, mainly covering from
the manufacturing of watch accessories and packaging
products to commercial space design, production and
decoration. Companies are mainly located in Suzhou,
Guangzhou and Dongguan. The Group believes that
providing quality products and excellent after-sales service
is a crucial part of its successful corporate presence.

The Group’s subsidiaries engaged in high-end product
accessories manufacturing carry out strict quality
management in line with national quality standards. The
watch boxes and other packaging products manufactured
by factories of Artdeco Decorating & Packaging Co., Ltd
have all achieved national FSC and ISO9001:2008 or
ISO9001:2015 and SA8000 certifications, and have also
complied with EU Regulation (EC) No. 1907/2006 (REACH).
During the year under review, none of the products sold or
delivered by the Group was recalled on safety and health
grounds. However, customers may submit complaints, and
the Group will conduct an independent investigation and
deal with it in accordance with the internal guidelines.

During the year under review, the Group received 13
customer complaints (2022: 15) over product quality.
Upon timely communication with and explanation offered
to the customers pursuant to the Group’s customer
complaint handling procedures, they were satisfied with our
clarification and arrangements.
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The Group attaches great importance to respecting
and safeguarding the rights of consumers. It is in strict
compliance with “Law of the PRC on the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests” and other regulations
and laws relating to sale of products to safeguard the
interests of consumers. The Group also fully complies with
the provisions of the “Supply of Services (Implied Terms)
Ordinance” and other relevant laws and regulations in
collecting consumer information and privacy protection. In
order to ensure that the privacy protection measures are
implemented more effectively and comply with relevant laws
and regulations, the Group also reviews and amends its
measures on safeguarding customer data privacy from time
to time. During the year under review, the Group had no
incidents of breach of customer privacy or loss of customer
information, nor did it receive any confirmed complaints in
connection therewith.

The Group has established and protected its intellectual
properties, including its trademarks and domain names.
In addition, the Group’s domain names are subject to
continuous monitoring and renewal upon expiry.

To protect intellectual property, the Group also follows
the guidance including that of the Copyright Ordinance in
Hong Kong and requires employees not to use or illegally
download and install pirated computer software. The Group’s
IT department is responsible for monitoring relevant matters.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of
any violations of the regulations governing the provision
and use of the Group’s products and services and had
material effect on the Group, including product and
service information and labels, marketing communications
(advertising, marketing and sponsorship) and intellectual

property.
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Anti-Corruption

The Hengdeli Group is dedicated to establishing itself as a
trustworthy, law-abiding enterprise. The Group abides by
applicable laws and regulations on bribery, fraud and money
laundering in all regions where it operates, including but not
limited to the Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance, the China Anti-Unfair Competition Law and the
Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery. The
Group advocates a work ethic that insists on compliance
with law, integrity, honesty and professional dedication,
and bans any form of acceptance of advantages or acts of
bribery. Explicit rules concerning employees’ professional
integrity are communicated through the employees’
guidebook, training courses as well as guidelines, for
example, on conflict of interest, while the efficiency of the
Group’s entire internal management system is reviewed
regularly. Channels are also available for employees to
report on internal misconduct. The daily operations of the
Group strictly comply with established procedures; the
internal audit department audits each branch and subsidiary
regularly and timely reports to the audit committee while
implementing appropriate measures to ensure all regulations
are complied with. Further, the Group also commissions
external auditors to carry out independent audits. All these
measures effectively promoted the implementation and
improvement of the Group’s regulatory system. During the
year under review, the Group participated in an online
seminar on combating money laundering and terrorist
financing organized by Companies Registry (Money Lenders
Section) of Hong Kong. The Group was not aware of any
violations of laws and regulations on bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering that had a significant impact on
the Group, and not involved in any litigation on corruption
relating to the Group or its employees.
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Investment in Community

Hengdeli has always been actively involved in community
and public welfare activities, serving the community,
undertaking corporate social responsibilities proactively and
contributing to society through a variety of welfare platforms
with its own strength.

OUTLOOK

Come rain or shine, we have been moving ahead through
ups and downs. In an environment full of challenges
and uncertainties, we would like to express our heartfelt
gratitude to the Board of the Group for their continuous
care and leadership and the full support of stakeholders. In
the future, we will continue to uphold the principle of being
responsible for our customers, employees, shareholders and
the society, and will seek and capture opportunities to strive
for a harmonious and sustainable development between
the Company and the society, the Company and the
environment, as well as the Company and all related parties
to make our due contributions for the society.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
P R

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
RESULTS 5 mbdmel —To-f T4 ZEZTFE ZThEF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IS ARETT  ARETT ARETI  AR%TR

Note (i)
Bz (i)
Revenue WA 1,421,454 1,259,579 992,962 1,219,856 2,417,181
Profit/(loss) before taxation BALEH /(E8) 33,238 (87,981) 18,701 (354,200) (337,042)
Income tax credit/(expense)  FiEEEE
(F%) 1,953 (158) 1,509 (32,324) 12,925
Profit/(loss) for the year FERHMN/(BR) 35,191 (88,139) 20,210 (386,524) (324,117)
Attributable to: JE1G
Equity shareholders /NS )
of the Company BEA 33,885 (80,022) 26,282 (383,076) (332,520)
Non-controlling interests g 1,306 (8,117) (6,072) (3,448) 8,403
Profit/(loss) for the year FERMN/(BR) 35,191 (88,139) 20,210 (386,524) (324,117)
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE TECCF et —ETTE ZTNF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IGLEESE ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR
Total assets BERBE 3,599,158 3,525,795 3,531,392 3,628,461 4,641,068
Total liabilities BEEE 353,524 305,961 258,929 188,651 659,481
Net assets BETE 3,245,634 3,219,834 3,272,463 3,439,810 3,981,587
Total equity attributable VNN
to equity shareholders BB AEL
of the Company =B 3,186,036 3,161,540 3,204,598 3,366,694 3,894,615
Non-controlling interests R = 59,598 58,294 67,865 73,116 86,972
Total equity A 3,245,634 3,219,834 3,272,463 3,439,810 3,981,587
Note: BaE
(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 on 1 January (i) AEEER=ZZ—NF— A —BERALEET
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under BWEBRERBEBMEREERE165E
this approach, comparative information is not restated. REFRT » EBRER W EET -
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HENGDELI HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Hengdeli Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 97 to 232, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

i Goodwill and Property, Plant and Equipment

Refer to Notes 11 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group is required to test the amount of goodwill
for impairment. The Group is also required to test
the amount of property, plant and equipment for
impairment when there is an indication that the
assets may be impaired. These impairment tests
are significant to our audit because the balances
of goodwill and property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB52,611,000 and RMB551,137,000
as at 31 December 2023, respectively, are material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s impairment tests involve application
of judgement and are based on assumptions and
estimates.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the identification of the related cash
generating units;

- Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash
flow projections;

- In respect of properties located in Taiwan,
obtaining the external valuation report, discussing
with the external valuer and challenging
the valuation process, methodologies used
and market evidence to support significant
judgements and assumptions applied in the
valuation model;

- Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the
value-in-use calculations and valuation model;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key
assumptions; and

- Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment tests for
goodwill and property, plant and equipment are
supported by the available evidence.

Trade receivables

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the amount of trade receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our
audit because the balance of trade receivables of
RMB338,540,000 as at 31 December 2023 is material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s impairment test involves application of

judgement and is based on estimates.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

BRAMESAZFEE (AR ERE)

# R
Fs K%

FHAEAERRER 2 E A B M ER

MR BEBHNYEMS - BN
ﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁi - BLONER (B AT & R
SREEBRE  PIERNTTA
mﬁﬁ A FEEREF
ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁk#ﬂ%ﬁ&fﬁj“ :

AHEE A EEE N E M REE
RAEER

FHEEREBRNSEKE &

BEHABIRAFRE °

A /i E\K.Eﬁ?ﬁ@»{&mﬁ ﬁ
%Eﬁxﬂéﬁ AR BB BB -

FEW & 5 R K

£ Lo

CEES

Bl & B mRMIFE18

SE RN E Z RN BETRER
A ZREAABRMANEABESR

RE

RR-FE_=ZF+_A=+—84

A A R #338,540,0007T B JE U B 5 B

SN

% HRAMBBEAFEEN - It
B R B R ER B S N R H i

BRI MGRHES -



Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and
transaction history with the customers;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

- Checking the computation of the amounts of
expected credit loss allowances;

- Assessing ageing of the debts;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the
customers; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk in the consolidated
financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for trade
receivables is supported by the available evidence.

Fair value measurements of level 3 financial
instruments

Refer to Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group measured the fair value of the level 3
financial instruments. Determination of their fair
values is significant to our audit because the balance
on other investments categorised as Level 3 of
RMB122,484,000 as at 31 December 2023 is material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s measurement involves application of
judgement and is based on estimates.
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BRAMESAZFEE (AR ERE)

Our audit procedures included, among others:

= Assessing the competence, independence = i EEBEZTREZINBAERD
and integrity of the external valuer engaged by ZEEN ~ WM RHLE
Company;

BERERYNEMTERENE

- Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation =
model;

B SN 5P {5 (BB & w30 AR 4 (B8

- Discussing with the external valuer and =

challenging the valuation process, methodologies
used and market evidence to support significant
judgements and assumptions applied in the
valuation model;

Checking key assumptions in the valuation
model to supporting evidence;

Testing the evidence supporting the unobservable
inputs in the level 3 fair value measurements;

B R ER TSR
DA Sk 4% ft (B 1870 o 5 P B9 B
B R B

- REGEREPOBERBRENAX

FRE

- ARAF =R AREFETAERE
BARBNSRER R

and

- Assessing the adequacy of the Level 3 = AR E M BRRE=ZRAAE
STERBENEE M

fair value measurement disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement HMRE BEEE EAFEF=FcmT
of the other investments categorised as level 3 EMHEMEEN AR B EEERTEX
financial instruments is supported by the available o

evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION HiEE

The directors are responsible for the other information. ESZ=EHHMEEAS HttEz28EF &4
The other information comprises all the information in ®FEHRANEIBEE @ BT RFBESHBEHRE
the Company’s annual report, but does not include the I MAZERDRS

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does BHFIEHGETHERENESE I T REHME

not cover the other information and we do not express any & @ HIPINTMAEZEEME L BRTMAMFERD
form of assurance conclusion thereon. EEBAETR o
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial

and,

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA’s website at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/
Our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Chi Hoi

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P07268

Hong Kong
20 March, 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

B

H 7 7%

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—Z - =+ _-A=+—HI-FE

Note
i3
Continuing operations SEREET
Revenue N 3
Cost of sales SHE AR
Gross profit ER
Other revenue HAn A 4
Other net loss H B8 F 58 4
Distribution costs 2 SHR AN
Administrative expenses THER
Profit/(loss) from operations R F S (&E)
Share of profits of associates FE(RES & R B A
Finance costs B 75 X AR 5(a)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELATDRT (E1E) 5
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe /(FAx) 6
Profit/(loss) for the year from REFELSEELN
continuing operations FERA (FHE)
Discontinued operations EARIEREER
Loss for the year from RE BRI EERR
discontinued operations FEREE 30

Profit/(loss) for the year

FEBEF(BE)

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the

year are set out in note 28(b).

(Expressed in Renminbi)

2023
—E=F
RMB’000
AREET T

1,421,454
(1,206,189)

215,265

47,299
(6,394)
(61,100)
(172,805)

22,265

16,358
(5,385)

33,238

1,953

35,191

(AAR¥Z51)

2022
—z——

RMB’000
AREETT

1,039,286
(915,693)

123,693

32,033
(71,691)
(55,481)

(133,323)

(104,869)

76,457
(3,288)

(31,700)

(2,970)

(34,670)

(563,469)

(88,139)

F10722328 2B EMEHEK —3H ©
ENARRIROGFEEARBEFE R ZKEF
BEHRHIE28(b) °

o
Fhr
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

A iR AR AR

2023
—E_=F

Note RMB’000
HteE AREET T

1,306

Attributable to: FEAL
Owners of the Company RATEEA
— Continuing operations — BEKEER
— Discontinued operations — BRI EER
Attributable to: FEAL
Non-controlling interests IR
— Continuing operations — B E TS
— Discontinued operations — ERIEEEER
Profit/(loss) for the year FEBR (FEB)

35,191

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) BREAREE

per share BR(&ER)
— Continuing operations — BT
— Discontinued operations — ERIEREEE

10

ARE
RMB
AR

RMB 0.008
AE%  0.0087T

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the
year are set out in note 28(b).
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2022

RMB’000
ARBETT

(26,553)
(53,469)

(80,022)

(8,117)

(8,117)

(88,139)

RMB (0.006)
AR (0.006)7T
RMB (0.012)
AR (0.012)7T

RMB (0.018)
AR (0.018)7T

F107E232E 2 MBI EM B HRE—3 D ©
JENARRBRGEEABEFE R ZKREFF
BE KT FE28(b) °



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 1H g S HAR A T A SR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—Z - =+ _-A=+—HI-FE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#25)

2023 2022
—E-=F —To—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hia ARET T AREFIT
Profit/(loss) for the year FERA (&HB) 35,191 (88,139)
Other comprehensive income FEAMRZERA (BER
for the year (after tax and EN D ERER)
reclassification adjustments) 9(a)
ltems that may be reclassified R TS ik S ED
subsequently to profit or loss: BmcEE
Exchange differences on translation BMEGINHTE A )
of overseas subsidiaries’ B MR EEZ
financial statements bE i E 5 109,319
Share of associates exchange BB G INETE (G
differences on translating N H =R
foreign operations 7,163
116,482
ltems that will not be reclassified BEEISENSES
subsequently to profit or loss: B=vIER
Equity investments at fair value through  FiBE {2 EWAIR
other comprehensive income — net AREFEZRA
movement in fair value reserves BE - ARERHBED
(non-recycling) FEE (AT AERE) (59,515) (195,425)
Exchange differences on translation of BREBBHEMEEBA
equity investments at fair value RRARERFEZRAR
through other comprehensive income BEMEELZERZHE 6,596 41,156
Exchange differences on translation of BE R QRSB RE
the Company’s financial statements FEA 2B =58 17,538 89,889
(35,381) (64,380)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEWAZEE 25,800 (36,037)

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial $107£2328 2 MBI EHHRE—FHH °

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Aok 1R S A 2 T A SR

2023 2022
—EBE-=F —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Attributable to: Feth
Owners of the Company RAREE A
— continuing operations —BELEER 11,780
— discontinued operations — BRIEEEER (89,510)
(27,730)
Attributable to: i3l
Non-controlling interests FERER
— continuing operations L (8,307)
- discontinued operations — BRIEEEER -
(8,307)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEUAEZE (36,037)

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR e B IR UL

As at 31 December 2023 R=—ZE-—=F+—-_A=+—8H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#275)

2023 2022
—Eo=F === =
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARET T ARBEFIT
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment properties WEYE 11 266,398 126,694
Property, plant and equipment  #)% - [BE k& 11 551,137 512,032
817,535 638,726
Intangible assets mAE 12 2,727 3,415
Goodwill [EES 13 52,611 52,014
Interests in associates RN P - e 15 137,386 132,780
Other investments HMig & 16 368,582 355,331
Prepayment and deposits BNRIEBERIES 18 46,707 1,748
Deferred tax assets BLEFIREE 27(b)(i) 3,259 2,721
1,428,807 1,186,735
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 17 258,115 237,768
Trade and other receivables FEUL B 5 BR 3k N ELAh e g T8 18 558,072 703,627
Loans to associates IREBES N NRIZER 19 33,789 67,273
Other investments Mg & 16 10,654 7,336
Current tax recoverable ZNHA AT Y (3] £ 38 27(a) 469 168
Deposits with banks RITER 20 318,437 272,701
Cash and cash equivalents HERIHESZEEY 21 990,815 1,050,187
2,170,351 2,339,060
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade and other payables and  FEfIE BRI N E A
contract liabilities JENZRIBEBUARANEE 22 226,920 201,935
Bank loans IRITE 23 76,653 56,799
Lease liabilities HERE 24 8,313 10,802
Current taxation R HRFE R IR 27(a) 2,846 4,961
314,732 274,497
Net current assets REEEFE 1,855,619 2,064,563
Total assets less current liabilities & ERABEE 3,284,426 3,251,298
SRR ABRAT R SRR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Aok 1 B B IR L A

Note
k=2
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Bank loans RITEXR 23
Lease liabilities HEAE 24
NET ASSETS EEFE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARK#HE
Share capital [N 28(c)
Reserves e

Total equity attributable to equity A2 T RP A ARG

shareholders of the Company TR
Non-controlling interests IR

2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
ARET T

17,483
21,309

38,792

3,245,634

21,254
3,164,782

3,186,036

59,598

3,245,634

2022
e —

—_—

RMB’000
ARETT

24,922
6,542

31,464

3,219,834

21,254
3,140,286

3,161,540

58,294

3,219,834

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R-ZT_FE=A -+ AEZ =S & LFE

on 20 March 2024. FIED o
Zhang Yuping Huang Yonghua R
Executive Director Executive Director NITEE

BEKE
HITEF

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial 107 E2328 7 W B i Z 8 1ikk — 25D ©

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

»\/ﬁ

Gxi

VN

£24
i 5

LUIES

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H,Z T ==+ -A=+—HI-FE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREZ5I))
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
NN
Capital PRC  Fairvalue Fairvalue Non-
‘ , Teserve ‘ i
Share Share  redemption Capital ~ Exchange  statutory ~ reserve (1on- Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reseve  (recycling)  recycling) profits Total  interests equity
MBEREE DABRE
R pEEE  (MBA  (FAEA

R RIARE W AXEEB  EXES s E) Ba)  RBET @i ke  EReE

Note RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB000O  RWMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB'000O  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMB000

fi ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 31 December 2021~ R=ZE=-£+=ZF

=t-Hz&R 2516 2570571 1582 1328 (382883) 32,004 - 2437 931043 3204598 67865 3272463

Changes in equity for 2022 WZB-CE
Ea2y

Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - - (8002) (80022)  (8117)  (88,139)

Other comprehensive income 2 ENA 9 - - - - A - - (19542) - 5% (190) 52,102

Total comprehensive income SEBAEE - - - - AT - - (19425  (80022) (27,730 (8307)  (36,087)

Shares repurchase BERR (262 (1659) 262 - - - - - - (1659) - (1659)

Transfer between reserves Bz ey - - - - - 259 - - (259) - - -
Acquisiton of additional equity B AT

interest in a subsioliary g - - - 1264 - - - - - 1,264 (1,264) -
Amounts transferred flom falr -~ HERBEENAE
value reserve (non-recycling) T AGTEIN
0 retained profits upon i) BEEREE

disposal of investments flze® - - - - - = - 1872 (1872 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2022~ WZZ=Z&+Zf

=t+-Rzt 21,254 2563979 1,844 2592 (135,166) 32,263 - (154,116) 838890 3,161,540 58294 3219834
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KAARHHEARE

Capital PRC  Fairvalue Fairvalue Non-
reserve

Share Share  redemption Capital  Exchange  statutory reserve Retained controlling

(non-
capital  premium  reserve reserve reserve  reserve  (recycling)  recycling) profits Total interests

DAfERE
BARD RREE  (TEA
B BiveR [ EARR EXGR B R AR REH i FERER B
Gl RVBOOO RMBOOO RMBOO)  RMBOOO RMBOOO  RMBOOO RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO
il \RRTL ARETR ARRTL ARBTR ARWTR ARBTR ARRTZ ARBTR ARRTZ ARRTR ARETR ARET:R

Balance at 31 December 2022 W=Z-—%
t=A=t-A
i 21254 2553979 2592 (135,166) (154,116) 838890 3,161,540 58204  3219,834

Changes inequity for 2008~ W=F==%

EngH
Profitfor the year EEEH 33885 33885 1306 35,101
Other comprehensive income ~ Et2ERA 9 - (9,389) @ (939
Total comprehensive income ~ 2ERALE 24,4% 1304 25800

Transfer between reserves [k fEh
Amounts transferred from far ~ HERARE

value reserve (nonrecycing) — AAfERE

to retained profits upon (TTEAER)
disposal of investments EEERE
aflze8 (38,730)

Balance at 31 December 2023  W=5==%
t=A=1-A
i3 21254 2,553,979 1,844 2,592 (85,040) 37847 (174,901) 828461 3,186,036 59,598 3,245,634

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial 210722328 2 Bt EFHHzk —HD °
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Operating activities

Cash generated from operations
Tax refund
Tax paid

KERE

BEMSRS
B
BENHIA

Net cash generated from
operating activities

REFRHFEREFHE

Investing activities

Payment for the purchase of
investment properties,
property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property,
plant, equipment and
intangible assets
Payment for the purchase of
intangible assets
(Increase)/decrease in deposits
with banks
Payment for advances to third parties
Proceeds from repayment of
advances to third parties
Payment for acquisition of associates
Payment for advances to associates
Proceeds from repayment of
advances to associates
Payment for purchase of
other investments
Proceeds from sale of
other investments
Interest received
Dividends received from
an associate
Dividends received from
equity investments

REZE

BAREDE W%
B 55 B2 s 4 19 35K

HEME - BE &
N AR B EFR{S50R

BABTEENNK
RITFR (), WL

XNE=TEHK
EBRE=FEN
PIEEE/

LG g NCIE N PN
AV E R BB
EE R E DR BR
PIEEE/

BAEMBENR

hEE MR E PSR

REE)s)
Bl — M E R RIRE

EWBEARER R

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

RETH (FTA)/ Fis
BEFH

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—Z - =+ _-A=+—HI-FE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#25)
2023 2022
—=E_= ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYEET T ARBTIT

239,057
38

(1,709)

237,386

(215,890) (58,305)
13,621 44

(18) (1,447)
(40,471) 25,821

(51,297)

96,288

(3)

(86,694)

34,589 104,024

(108,648) (13,427)
42,478 28,891
30,547 15,400
14,367 B
4,989 9,298
(164,121) 68,593
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

maBlaiigR

2023 2022
—E_= ==
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE ARBT T ARBTT
Financing activities RIEEED
Proceeds from new bank loans FIMBITERATISHE  21(c) 72,900 54,900
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITER 21(c) (60,876) (46,665)
Capital element of lease rentals paid EffHAEHEEH
B REB S 21(c) (11,509) (12,736)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEEREH
MBS 21(c) (388) (656)
Other borrowing costs paid B EMmEERA (3,536) (2,708)
Share repurchased BE B A% (5 = (16,592)
Net cash used in financing activites ~ BIE EEFTiEIR & F4E (8,409) (24,457)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BEE&FIRESEEY
cash equivalents CRA) /12 hnS4E (84,238) 281,522
Cash and cash equivalents REPDZRER
at the beginning of the year R EEY 1,050,187 661,017
Effect of foreign exchange HMESTE RS B S/
rate changes 107,648
Cash and cash equivalents RERZRER
at the end of the year HEZEEY 21(a) 1,050,187

The notes on pages 107 to 232 form part of these financial 510722328 2 MiFE Bt TR #EK —af D -
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i R T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& ZEEAS) « BEEUARE27)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Exchange”). Material accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 comprise Hengdeli Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the
Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

1 EBEASHEXE

(a) BHIZEHH
WERBRRIVBBEEEGAMAE ([FEE
AHEIRR ) BOEMAAER(EENBREE
AN ([BEWBHRELEN] - ZFcERRHME
EROEREEM GRS ER (BESHE
AD(TEEEER]) k)  BEAREG
FRANRE RCEBRAGDD) NEERE R
B WERBRRNMTEBEEHREXIMER
RE (MR Fx MR EREER
E o AREMRANEXNSTTRREENT -

BEGMARERME TRAKEAS
BB R AR A IR BT IR M B ¥ AT G ERT &
B EMEER - EE1(c) P BN UL FF R
R BR 2 TR Ko B 1 & 5 B H R BR M % F B R
=B AR G ET R PTE R I & 5T R &
B2ER -

(b) BIBEEMEREE
HE-FT-=F+-AZ+—ALFRENE
HEBRRETENERARAR ((ARF))
RAEMBAR (5578 [A%E)) -

AN
=]

MEMBBRAAIAEEEREL KA
HETXAESFTBRREAZAEAAREIRZ
BERIN

s,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

- equity investments (see note 1(g))

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

o Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

° Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

° Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(p) or 1(q) depending on the nature
of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(l)),
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is

unless the investment is classified

classified as held for sale).
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for

impairment (see note 1(l)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(f)  Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity
but is not control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial

ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)  Associates (Continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested for
impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and
its share of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)  Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results
in a loss of significant influence represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus
the fair value of any investment retained in that associate
and (ii) the Group’s share of the net assets of that associate
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that associate
and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to apply
the equity method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, are as
follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except
for those investments measured at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see note
32(f). These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

(9)

(i)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into

one of the following measurement categories:

114

amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method (see note 1(v)(vi)).

fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) (recycling), if the contractual cash flows of
the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the investment
does not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

(if) Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’'s perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained profits. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or
FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(v)(v).

(h)  Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(k)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(l)(ii)).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
property less its estimated residual value using the straight
line method over its estimated useful life. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1(v)(iv).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Investment properties (Continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis.

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1((i1).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or
loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated
over their estimated useful life, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance
leases is depreciated over the unexpired term of

lease.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements 1 -5 years

- Motor vehicles 5 - 10 years

= Office equipment and other fixed assets 3 — 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

()] Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see note
1(x)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
1(1)(ii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 1(I)(ii)).
and brands is recognised as an expense in the period in

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill

which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

= Software licenses 5 - 10 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

(k) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets which, for the Group are primarily
properties leased for own use which expiry within one year.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the group decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(i) and 1(l)

(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS
16 Leases. In such cases, the group took advantage of the
practical expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16
and recognised the change in consideration as if it were not
a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as
the present value of contractual payments that are due to be
settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and
equipment’ and presents lease liabilities separately in the
statement of financial position.

In the comparative period, as a lessee, the Group
classified leases as finance leases if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group. Leases which did not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group were classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property was classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, was accounted for as if held
under a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which could not be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, was accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building was
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease was the time that
the lease was first entered into by the group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.

Where the Group acquired the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets were recognised as property,
plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, were recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation was provided at rates which
wrote off the cost or valuation of the assets over the term of
the relevant lease or, where it was likely the Group would
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(i). Impairment losses were accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(I). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments were
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals were charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they were incurred.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

Where the Group had the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases were charged
to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis was more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received were recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals were charged to profit or loss in the

accounting period in which they were incurred.

(ii) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is

not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
The rental income from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with note 1(v)(iv).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases
are classified as a finance lease or as an operating lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described in note 1(k)(i), then

the Group classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(I)  Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables); and

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note

1(n)).

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
units in bond funds, equity securities measured at FVPL,
equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)
and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables
and contract assets: effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest
rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the

measurement of the lease receivable.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 180 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continuead)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 1(v)
(vi) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Wirite-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously

written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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(1)

(i)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at

the end of each reporting period to identify indications that

the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case

of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:

investment property;

property, plant and equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

intangible assets;

goodwill; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company's
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount

is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that

are not yet available for use and intangible assets that have

indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated

annually whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

130

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(iiiy  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see notes 1(I)(i) and 1(I)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

Inventories and other contract costs

(m)
(i) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value as follows:

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(m) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)
(i) Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in

which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

The fair value of inventories acquired in a business
combination is determined based on their estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of sale, and a reasonable profit margin based on the
effort required to complete and sell the inventories.

(ii) Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil
a contract with a customer which are not capitalised as
)(i)), property, plant and equipment
(see note 1(i)) or intangible assets (see note 1(j)).

inventory (see note 1(m

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained e.g. an incremental sales commission. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when incurred
if the costs relate to revenue which will be recognised in a
future reporting period and the costs are expected to be
recovered. Other costs of obtaining a contract are expensed
when incurred.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(m)
(i) Other contract costs (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance resources that will
be used to provide goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Costs that relate directly to an
existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable to
the customer and other costs that are incurred only because
the group entered into the contract (for example, payments
to sub-contractors). Other costs of fulfilling a contract,
which are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset exceeds the
net of (i) remaining amount of consideration that the group
expects to receive in exchange for the goods or services to
which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly
to providing those goods or services that have not yet been
recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to
profit or loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is
recognised. The accounting policy for revenue recognition is
set out in note 1(v).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(v)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note
1(1)(i) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to
the consideration has become unconditional (see note 1(0)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(v)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised (see note 1(0)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 1(v)(vi)).

(o) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 1(n)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

1)
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

(q) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

(r)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note

1(N(0).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) ~ Share award scheme

The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of shares is recognised as staff costs
in profit or loss with a corresponding increase in capital
reserve, which is measured based on the grant date share
price of the Company.

(iv)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

(t) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)y Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(h),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities
(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(i) Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract. Provisions for
onerous contracts are measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the net cost of continuing with the contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i) Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value
can be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at
fair value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 1(u)(i). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot
be reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at the
date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note

1(u)(i).

(v) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of watches, jewellery and related accessories

Revenue is recognised when goods are handed over to
individual customers or delivered at the warehouse or
corporate customers’ premises which is taken to be the
point in time when the customer has obtained the control
over the goods. Revenue excludes value-added tax or other
sales taxes.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(ii) Provision of shop design and decoration service

Revenue is recognised progressively over time using cost-
to-cost method, i.e., based on the proportion of actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs. The contract
asset (either partially or in full) is reclassified to receivables
when the entitlement to payment for that amount has
become unconditional.

(iiiy  Sale of commodities

Revenue from the sale of commodities is recognised at
a point of time when the control of the goods has been
transferred to the customers, being when the commodities
has been delivered to the agreed location. Revenue
excludes value added tax and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

(iv)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(v) Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments is

recognised when the share price of the investment

goes ex-dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(vi)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 1(1)(i)).

(vii)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”).

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollar, while the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). The directors consider that
choosing RMB as the presentation currency best suits the
needs of the shareholders and investors.

144 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

1 EBEAESHEE &)

(v) WaERkEMIEA

(vi)  FEYA

) B A R FERT B A B BRI KA TER o Bkl
AT EBERAEMEARARARETE
(IEAER) CAREREERENEREEM
T ERANEERARZEENRIREE - gt
REERENEREEMS  BEMNEEAR
ZEAEMEHEKA BAREAERESERE)
(B2 EMWFE1))) °

(vii) BRFFFEEL
EANEEBRERASE S W BN T S
AT AL 2 M A R 1B - BIEI AR R )
SHRABNMHAU - AR BEASEREELERE
ZHEBRRAXES MG ZRRM N EE N R
RN - HEREEEEXR N HAERERAE
EREERHNR  EERNZEEEZAAFH
IR EER RN BEABERER -

(w) SMNEBE
MAREBSERMBEHRRNIBIOUZER
REMENTELERENER ((WEEK])

HE o

ARRNPEEERER  MEEMBERRT
RARE (TAR%K]) 27 - EFR/ERAR
BEREREEEATABRRARKREENTE -



1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Renminbi
(“RMB”) at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss, which
comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(z) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a Group of which the other entity
is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or

an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(z) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).
(viii) The entity, or any member of a company of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 183,
assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment of

18, and 32 contain information about the

goodwill, impairment of trade and other receivables and fair
value of financial instruments. Other key source of estimation
uncertainty is as follows:

(i) Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a non-
current asset may not be recoverable, the asset may be
considered impaired, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in profit or loss. The carrying amounts of non-
current assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable,
except for goodwill which is tested on an annual basis.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount.

In considering the impairment losses that may be required
for certain of the Group’s assets which include property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
goodwill, recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs to sell and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate fair value less costs of disposal because
quoted market prices for the Group’s assets are not readily
available. In determining the value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to items
such as level of sale volume, selling price and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as sales volume, selling price
and amount of operating costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the carrying value of the
assets and could result in additional impairment charge or,
except for goodwill, reversal of impairment in future periods.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(ii)  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expense. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions. The Group will reassess the

estimates by the end of each reporting period.

(iii)  Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor.

circumstances indicate that the balances may not be

Impairments arise where events or changes in

collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.

(iv) Fair value measurement of level 3 financial
instruments

In the absence of quoted market prices in an active market,
the Group estimates the fair value of the Group’s other
investments categorised as level 3 financial instruments,
details of which are set out in note 32(f) to the financial
statements, by considering information from a variety of
sources, including the latest financial information, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the price and

industry and sector performance of the Group’s investments.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
of high-end consuming accessories, building up of high-
end consuming service platforms, international commodity
trading and its related supply chain services.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold to
customers, net of value added tax and deduction of any
sales discounts and returns.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and at the end
of reporting period 36% and 69% of the Group’s revenue
come from the largest customer and top five customers
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3

(Continued)

(a)

Revenue (Continued)

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are

disclosed in note 3(b).

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
major products or service lines is as follows:

(a)

U]

T -

WARDEBRE ()

WA (&)

L'ON i)

REEEBEB 2 — HFBERME3(D)HE -

BRIBERIARBREDZEFANVNKRAHAD

2023 2022
—FE—-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTIT
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZBA (B
within the scope of HKFRS 15 S B R R 5 ZE B 281555
HER)
Disaggregated by major products or BREEZEmMIRBGRAD
service lines
Continuing operations SIEIRE TS
- Revenue from manufacturing of — REREERLE
watches accessories EmZBA 359,761 358,952
— Revenue from provision of shop — RERHEEFHZT R
design and decoration service SR 2 WA 350,947 271,378
- Revenue from commodity trading =P
Bo5HZ WA 710,746 408,956
1,421,454 1,039,286
Discontinued operations BARIEREEK
— Revenue from sales of watches — REHEER R
and jewellery HKEZ WA 220,293
1,421,454 1,259,579
Revenue from other sources H b R WA
Gross rentals from investment properties REREMHE
wHEE A 2,064 1,484
1,423,518 1,261,063
Representing: He:
— Continuing operations — BEREER 1,423,518 1,040,770
- Discontinued operations — BRIEREER = 220,293
1,423,518 1,261,063
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

During the period under review, the Group’s business
was primarily focused on the manufacturing of high-end
consuming accessories, building up of high-end consuming
service platforms, international commodity trading and its
related supply chain services.

Revenue from provision of shop design and decoration
service is recognised progressively over time.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
geographic markets is disclosed in note 3(b)(iii).

(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence at
the reporting date

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for shop design and
decoration service as the remaining performance obligations
of the contracts had an original expected duration of one
year or less.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARSE®EE &)
(Continued)

—
O
~

(b) Segment reporting DEBERE

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are A&BZEBEER (EmRRD) RigwE (F
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and ZMAFBEAMRES) KLz DB EIRER ©
services) and geography (mainly in Mainland China and

Hong Kong).

The Group has identified the following reportable segments: ~ ANEEEREBILA T 2D 6 -

- High-end consuming — Manufacturing of watch — i HEBRE — FRILEE mBEN
accessories accessories and shop MIEFEEI REE
design and decoration R #5275

services business;

— Commodity trading — Trading of iron ore and coal;, — ARREmMES —HBEARERES
— Watches trading — Trading of watches and — BB S —ERNKRBEEFIEL

jewellery business

During the year ended 31 December 2022, in line with the REEZE-_ZT-_—F+A=+—HIFE "  RIE
established strategy, the Group liquidated its remaining BEFEBIRS - NEBE R EEREFET 75
watch stocks and completely cease its renowned watch - 2R T BEEBFHES - B E 7
operations. This segment is separately reported with the Z2RUDITREFEINELEHF -
comparative figures restated accordingly.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (Continued)

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group’s businesses
are separated into the two reportable segments on a
geographical and products and services basis, as the
divisional managers for each of these regions report
directly to the senior executive team. All segments primarily
derive their trading revenue through their own network. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
reportable segments.

(i) Segment results and assets

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the profit or loss and assets
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
basis:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.
However, other than reporting inter-segment sales,
assistance provided by one segment to another, including

sharing of assets, is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “gross
profit”.

Segment assets represent inventories only, without
eliminating the unrealised inter-segment profits.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARSDIHRE &)

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DHRE (&)
(i) Segment results and assets (Continued) (i) PEEEREE (&)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as &HEZZT-_-FEK_FT-_—_F+-HA=+—H
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management EFERERS R LD BRI THRAEEx
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of ®mETHEEBAEBREZAEEEZHHHER
segment performance for the years ended 31 December EFIZAT °

2023 and 2022 is set out below.

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RESERH BALLEEEH
High-end consuming
accessories Commodity trading Watches trading Total
BRHERE KFBRES EHES &3t
PRC PRC Hong Kong
hEl hE (3

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZECCE Eebmitial —3-- CEoCF bt —T-—F Wbl - —F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 UK  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT NSV ARETT ENRESTE ARETT ENRESEAE ARETT ENEEEE

Revenue from external customers  KESNER ZHA ANOCE 630,330 EATNZEN 408,95 220203 WRWOIWLT 1250 579
Inter-segment revenue DEERA 221327 150,597 = - N 2137 150,597
Reportable segment revenue ~ 2HAHUA 932,035 WNEVEZM 710746 [EAGKS 220,293 [IRTENEY

Reportable segment gross SRAPER/(28)
profit/(loss) 130,248 98,548 85,017 25,045 - (29,419) 215,265 g
Reportable segment assets ERNUEE 84,629 131,027 173,486 106,741 = - 258,115 237,768

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the high-end #HZE-TE-—=F+_-A=+—HIFE FH
consuming accessories segment in PRC is mainly engaged K &mEERESSEBERBEKEFHRRE
in the manufacturing of watch accessories and shop design  REA R EFHRT REBREER -

and decoration services business in PRC.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARDIHEE &)

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DHRE (&)
(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit (i) ZMmHOEWA  BREREE ZHIR

or loss and assets

Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total
HRLERK ERILEEER At

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Sl — T — ZEC-F i ZEC-F i

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT PNAol KT PGSl A\ RS T T PN

Revenue

Total revenue for reportable
segments

Elimination of inter-segment
revenue

Consolidated revenue

O
EHAHERA

1,642,781 JRRELELE 220,293 [RNIERCIN 1.410,176
B HBEEA

(221,327) IR B (221,327) AR

NN AWV 1 039,286 220,293 RNRAWEYE 1259 579

Profit/(loss)

Total gross profit/(loss) for
reportable segments

EHRIHEM/(ER)
ek ARl 123,593 o (29.410) EEALPEEE 94,174

Other revenue

Other net loss

Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Share of profits of associates
Finance costs

Hrl A 47,299 32,033 7,329 47,299 39,362
HiEEFE ((REON  (71,691) (12,656) (RN (84,347)

A HKA (CGARION  (55,481) (11,848) INERIOY  (67,329)
TBER Qe (133,323) (9,168) IMEREENDN (142,491)
ok kNl 16,358 76,457 = 16,358 76,457

519 (5,385) (3,807)

Consolidated profit/(loss)
before taxation

FIARA (5,385) (3,288) (
SaRBAET /(BR)

)
)

(56,281

(87,981)
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit

or loss and assets (Continued)
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3

(b)
(i)

WARDEBRE ()

DEBERE ()

S 785 i A B ik

EHRDFBA - BEREEZHR ()

2023
—mme =

e

RMB’000

ARET T

Assets

Assets for reportable segments
(inventories)

Trade, other receivables, prepayment
and deposits

Loans to associates

Current tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with banks

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

&E

EROMWEE (FH)

FEE Z AR - EAd BN
PR - EARERERE

Rt 2 AR 28R

ANER] Y B AR
ReMREFEY
RITER
BEME

W% -~ BB kR
BIZEE

258,115

604,779
33,789
469
990,815
318,437
266,398
551,137
2,727
52,611
137,386
379,236
3,259

Goodwill 2

Interests in associates N o vy
Other investments HiiE
Deferred tax assets RIEFIHE E
Consolidated total assets IREBEE

3,599,158

2022
—F=-=

RMB'000
ARETIT

237,768

705,375
67,273
168
1,050,187
272,701
126,694
512,032
3,415
52,014
132,780
362,667
2,721

3,525,795
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (Continued)

(iiiy  Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical locations of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
goodwill, interests in associates, prepayment and deposits
and other investments (“specified non-current assets”).
The geographical locations of customers are based on the
locations at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical locations of the specified non-
current assets are based on the physical locations of the
assets, in the case of property, plant and equipment, the
locations of operations to which they are allocated, in the
case of intangible assets and goodwill, and the locations
of operations, in the case of prepayment and deposits and
other investments.

The Group’s businesses are mainly managed in three
principal economic environments, Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Taiwan/Malaysia.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
(Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Geographic information (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Revenue from external customers
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Hong Kong (discontinued operations)

Total

Specified non-current assets
Mainland China

Hong Kong
Taiwan/Malaysia

Total

Revenue from major customers
Customer A
— high-end consuming
accessories segment

Customer B
— watch trading segment

Customer C
— commodity trading segment

Customer D
— commodity trading segment

REPORTING 3 WARZHEKEE &)
(b) DEBIRE (&)
(i) HEER (F)
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBETIT
REPBEE WA
H it 1,064,415 778,273
BB 357,039 261,013
B (BRIELEFET) - 220,293
gt 1,421,454 1,259,579
EEFRBERE
HR it 715,311 511,004
BB 620,287 577,026
=y ikt 89,950 95,984
4t 1,425,548 1,184,014
REFTEEZF WA
BEA
— B EBERED SR
412,285
=FB
— BB DI 127,616
BFC
— ARAEmE D 124,718
=FED
— RKRREmE D 209,456 N/A*
TEA*

Revenue from above customers individually contributed more

than 10% of the total consolidated revenue of the Group.

b’ Customers did not contribute more than 10% of the total

consolidated revenue of the Group.
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4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET LOSS 4 HtWAREEFHE
(@) Other revenue (@) EHmWA
2023 2022
—ZE_-= B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETIT
Continuing operations: HEREET .
Interest income LB A 15,377
Dividend income from other investments 2K B H A BRI AL B U A 9,298
Rental income from investment REZREDFE 2B A
properties 1,484
Rental income from operating leases, waEmHg s A BA -
other than those relating to BT B EB BERIN
investment properties 1,003
Government grants BT 6 B 2,613
Others HA 2,258
32,033
Discontinued operations: BARIEEE K
Interest income B A 23
Rental income from operating leases, REMEZHSWA -
other than those relating to B BB BERIN
investment properties 201
Others EAh 7,105
7,329

In 2023, the Group successfully applied for government R-ZT—-=4F AEFKINBFHTME - =
grants that mainly relate to funding support set up by the ZEfA B RAMEFREDSTTEREBRFD
Mainland China Government and the Hong Kong SAR RIZVHEBEHE - RIEEIEHE  KNEEE
Government respectively. Under the conditions of the #HFZEHIEERIEEZE  EBARERERE
funding support, the Group is required to maintain sufficient  RTISHIEZE NREER N -

value-added tax sales, enhance the visibility of brand and

product, and production capabilities in the Mainland market.
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4 OTHER REVENUE AND
(Continued)

(b)  Other net loss
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NET LOSS 4

(b)

HWAREIEFHE 2

HAtbE a8

2023
—E-=

RMB’000
AREBT T

Continuing operations:

Net foreign exchange loss

Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
and intangible assets

Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets
held for trading

Reversal of impairment of properly,

SN 3 IR B 1R R R
HEWE - BE K

REAR BT EE

BREFE

HIEXFGMEREEZ
~uEkE S (EE)
WE - BERREZ

(11,560)

(1,959)

3,164

3,961

(6,394)

plant and equipment RERE T
Discontinued operations: BRI
Net foreign exchange loss HNE H B 15 R

2022
—m—

o/

RMB’000
ARETT

(57,842)

(8,711)

(5,138)

(71,691)

(12,656)
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5  PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 5 BRBANER (EE)

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BRERDER S (E18) KHIBRIATIEB &S -

2023 2022
—E2-= ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREET T
(@)  Finance costs (@) B
Continuing operations: FEREHER
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 2,217
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 642
Bank charges RITEMA 429
3,288
Discontinued operations: BRI R T
Interest on bank loans IRITEFFIE 491
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 14
Bank charges RITE A 14
519
(b)  Staff costs (b) BIFK
Continuing operations: FEREHER
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMFE 88,159 72,714
Contributions to defined contribution TERREFURIRGT B (X
retirement plans 16,162 14,573
104,321 87,287
Discontinued operations: EARIERE T
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENEMFZ 472
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FURIRET B R
retirement plans 16
488
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 5

(Continued)

S 785 i A B ik

BRBANEFR (BE) &)

2023
—m— =

— =

RMB’000

ARBT T

(c) Other items
Continuing operations:

Amortisation of intangible assets (note 12)

Depreciation

— Investment properties and property,
plant and equipment (note 11)

— Right-of-use assets (note 11)

Impairment losses of
— Trade receivables

Expenses relating to short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets

Direct operating expenses of investment
properties that generate rental income

Direct operating expenses of investment
properties that did not generate rental
income

Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories*

Discontinued operations:

Depreciation
— Investment properties and property,
plant and equipment (note 11)

Impairment losses of
— Trade receivables

Expenses relating to short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets

Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories*

(c) HftEH
EEER
BIVEE#EE (HZ12)
e
- REVEEYE  BE
& (Hat11)
—EREEE (HiE11)

BB
— ERE SRR

EREPHEEREEE
BEMEEHIRX

ELERSWANREYFE
MERELER

WARELESWANRE
MENERELE N

2 Gllln
TFERAH

CAR LR T
e
—REMEEDE - BE
K&t (BfaE11)

REEE
— BRE SRR

BREHEEREEEE
EREMNRX

BB &
FERA

1,700

1,811
1,206,189

Cost of inventories includes RMB131,909,000 (2022: +#
RMB119,187,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation expenses and operating lease charges,
which amounts are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for

each type of expenses.

2022
—EE = —dE
RMB’000
ARBFIT

893

33,725
11,773

1,889

1,740

358

331

1,515
915,693

2,081

3,994

83

97
249,712

FEKRABEES THRA - ITER#HEMAS
A R&EFEERAFRBAARE131,909,000
T (ZE=——4F: AR#¥119,187,0007T) * %

T H IR AR SR
BRENSHESE -

S B EE5(b)E
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #SEBHZRZIEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Continuing operations (a) FEKEEK
(i) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (i) FEBERRAZHIES
represents:
2023 2022
—E—-= -z
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETIT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax NEABIIE — BEFEH
Provision for the year IR F R 1,963
Over provision in respect of prior years B FERBEEE =
1,963
Current tax — Overseas AERFHIE — 8o
Provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax RKEEHRBEPERSE
for the year TR 884
(Over)/under provision in BEFE (BERE)
respect of prior years BHETR 123
1,007
Deferred tax IEFERIE
Reversal of temporary differences (note 27) Eisz=R$EE (ff:727) =
Total #Et 2,970
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #IKESBZRZEH &)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(a) Continuing operations (Continued) (a) HELEXRK @)

(i)  Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense and (i)  HIE (ER) FIXEZBERABRRGEZ

accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

2023
—m— =

—mre—

RMB’000

ARBFT

Profit/(loss) before taxation

BEADEA(EE) 33,238

Notional tax on profit/(loss) before taxation,

calculated at the rates applicable to

BRBATEM S (B1R) 2 8%
IR - WERRAER G

profits in the jurisdictions concerned AiEAR R E 5,282
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEBHMA 2 BIH 2 (9,156)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PAHIF AT 2 FHIEFE 3,395
(Over)/under provision in BEFE (BRERE),

respect of prior years BET R (3,418)
Effect of tax losses not recognised W ARFER 2 FHIAETIE 2 o2& 1,944
Actual tax (credit)/expense BEHE (Ee), X (1,953)

BEF(B1R) 8k

2022
—EE = — s
RMB’000
ARET T

(31,700)

(3,435)
(15,757)
3,030

123
19,009

2,970
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #IKE8BZRZEH &)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)
(b) Discontinued operations (b) BRIKEEK
(i) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (i) mEBRRAZBIES
represents:
2023 2022
—|—= —s=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AREABIIE — BB FEH
Provision for the year INF E R -
Deferred tax IERERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary AR EA MR
differences (note 27) (Biiz27) (2,812)
Total 4BET (2,812)
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #IKESBZRZEH &)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(b) Discontinued operations (Continued) (b) EBRIEEXE® (&)

(i)  Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting loss (i) ~ BREEREZBEABRRFE G EHE

at applicable tax rates:

R

2023
—m— =

—mre—

RMB’000

ARBFT

Loss before taxation

BRI AT &SR

Notional tax on loss before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable to
profits in the jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Effect of tax losses not recognised

MERIEIE 2 BEHE - &E
B8 R AR 2 Jm 138 FA 7 R
e

AW A 2 B2

PAHIF AT 2 HIEFE

W ARFER 2 FHIAEIE 2 72

Actual tax credit

BERHEAEER

2022
—E=-=

RMB’000

ARBT T

(56,281)

(9,844)

(178)
3,857
3,353

(2,812)
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(b) Discontinued operations (Continued)

(iif) Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting loss
at applicable tax rates: (Continued)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
the Company is exempt from income tax in the Cayman
Islands. In addition, subsidiaries located in jurisdictions
other than Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Malaysia
are not subject to any income tax in these jurisdictions.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a
qualifying corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate
regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HKD2 million of assessable
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision of the Hong Kong
Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the same
basis in 2022.

The applicable income tax rate of the Group’s Mainland
China subsidiaries is 25% (2022: 25%) for the year.

The provision for Taiwan Income Tax is calculated at 20%
(2022: 20%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

The provision for Malaysia Income Tax is calculated at 24%
(2022: 24%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
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6 ZEBEZRZIMEBH &

(b) EBRIEKEER (&)

(i) HEEREZEARRIEZEHER
iR (&)

RIEFSHSHRAIOER - NARERRBM

MEBRESMBHR - i UREE - FERA

-~ B8R E R AN B R BB A B

INBABMNZ S B AR EAEHR -

EBFERBENREANZ G EERERN 2
16.5% (ZZE - —4F : 16.5%) st & ' EAEH
—EEANEFRMAHEERDEZHE QR
BrAN o

UM BARME @ B2A 8B TIERFE A A
8.25% KBt KEAF - MR T FERFUHEFILA16.5%
MR REAR - IWB AR Z BB SHEED
BRM T - —FRRMNEEE -

F RN B BB A 7A@ R TS B R
H25% (ZE =4 : 25%) °

BEMSHEBEDIRERN 2T BRE R 2
20% (ZE__4F : 20%) 5T & o

Bk ap TS R B (s TR E N 2 (st FE sR B 0
FZ24% (B = =4 : 24%) 5T & o



7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RiF(F B QA TEH) FE383(NIER AT (HE

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the E=FIFZEE) BHIFE2BFETECEEP S 0
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T :

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z_=F
tTZAZ+—-HLEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhang Yuping R’ E
Mr. Huang Yonghua EKERE
Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan E3)ied
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Shi Zhongyang LHETE
Independent Non-executive Directors BN FHTES
Mr. Cai Jianmin BERR%E
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William ) Vi
(resigned on 25 September 2023) (R=ZT==F
AA=T+ABEHME)
Mr. Liu Xueling BT L
Ms. Qian Weiging BEBRLT
(appointed on 21 March 2023) (R=—B-=F
A+ HEZMA)
Total st

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7 EEME

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
Directors’ and other to retirement

fee benefits  benefit plans Total
e RER BHEA
=k HitpFl % AR Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TR
(note 25)
(Hfzt25)
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7  DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 7 EEME (»)
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
Directors’ and other  to retirement
fee benefits  benefit plans Total
E =1 RRRER
EEYkn H A& FrEMER ey
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETT ARETTT AREFTT
(note 25)
(Hiz25)
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z__F
TZA=T+-HLEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhang Yuping RE T LA = - - .
Mr. Huang Yonghua EKELE 155 2,427 - 2,582
Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan FHBREE 155 1,876 15 2,046
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Shi Zhongyang EhR5EE 86 - - 86
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BM FHTES
Mr. Cai Jianmin BEREL 86 - = 86
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William HIPBILAE 86 - - 86
Mr. Liu Xueling BT EE 86 - - 86
Total K 654 4,303 15 4,972

Save as disclosed above, no directors’ remuneration
has been paid or is payable by the Group during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out
in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office.

172 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

BE_Z_=FKR-_FT__

R —

— = — —

=

BEXPBEEEIN BE_T_=FR_ZFT_
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8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 BEHALT

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two FEZEFHFATHEEREL (T2 —F: K
(2022: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed %) &% @ HEMHFHIAHEF7THEE - B T=%4
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the —FE 4 =&2) ATHEHBNEENT

—=

other three (2022: three) individuals are as follows:

2023 2022

—E=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Salaries and other emoluments FeRkEMmME 6,488 6,138
Contributions to retirement benefit plans RO FIET B 48 46
Discretionary bonuses YETEAT - =

6,184

The emoluments of the three (2022: three) individuals, other HEAEHEEMEr =% (— S - —F : =) AL
than directors, with the highest emoluments are within the (ZEERKRIN) 2SN F 5 &HE -

following bands:

2023 2022

—E_= —E-F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

Hong Kong Dollars ( “HKD" ) B (Bl A

1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1,500,001 — 2,000,000 =

2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2

2,500,001 — 3,000,000 2,500,001 — 3,000,000 1

3,000,001 - 3,500,000 3,000,001 — 3,500,000 =
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9 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 9

(a) Tax effect relating to other comprehensive (a)

income

No tax effect is credited to other comprehensive income for
the year ended in December 2023 and 2022.

Hth 2 H WA

a:l:— > — E'E&—g::
I E - SEREZEF AEM2EKA -

BEEMEEWRANRESE

#+=A=+—H

(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) HEZEWRALARILD (BIEEH
including reclassification adjustments DERARE)
2023 2022
—E=-= —T-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Equity investments at FVOCI: ABHEMEEmBAEARE
FTEZRARE
Changes in fair value recognised FANERZ AN EE
during the year (note 16) (Bi#£16) (59,515) (195,425)
Amounts transferred from fair value BARERKE (A
reserve (non-recycling) to Bz BREREEN 2
retained profits Gk 11,872
Net movement in the fair value Hiv 2 AR ARER 2 F A
reserve (non-recycling) during DA EFEEEFRE
the year recognised in other (Pareg A f8as)
comprehensive income (20,785) (183,553)
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10 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB33,885,000 (2022: loss of RMB80,022,000)
and the weighted average of 4,404,018,959 ordinary shares
(2022: 4,428,360,975 ordinary shares) in issue during the
year, calculated as follows:

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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10 BREFN (BR)

(a) EREAXRER (BE)
FREARNERN (EIR) HIREARRBROHES
AP A A R #33,885,0000T (— 2= —
518 AR#80,022,0007T) M ERNT 21T INREF
A% $4,404,018,959 @k (Z T ==

4,428,360,9750 E@M%) 5T & - HEWMT ¢
(i) 3 IR INRE S 2T B B
2023 2022
—Eo=F =T

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January
BRRHm 2 2

Effect of shares repurchased

R—A—BZERTEAER

4,404,018,959

4,464,806,959
- (36,445,984)

Weighted average number of ordinary

FHBE

shares at 31 December

TZA=1T—RAEBBRINE

4,404,018,959 4,428,360,975

(iif) Consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company

(iy A2rAEBRBEREEGGZSER(F
8)

2023 2022
—E—-= —E 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBTIT
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity RAERDFER A
shareholders of the Company FEMR s F (E518)
— continuing operations — RBELEER (26,558)
— discontinued operations — BRI EET (53,469)
(80,022)

s,
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10 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 10 BRERF (E#E) &)
(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (Continued) (a) BREXEF (EE) &)
(i)  Earnings/(loss) per share iy BRERN (&B8)

2022
=EEE =

Basic earnings/(loss) per share BRERAEF (FHE)

— continuing operations — FERERT RMB (0.006)
AR¥ (0.006)7T

— discontinued operations — BERIEREER RMB (0.012)
AR® (0.012)7T
RMB (0.018)
AR® (0.018)7T

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b) BREEEF (EE)

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the BZE-_ZE-_=Fk_T__F+-F=+—H
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, and therefore, IFEE TEHESBEELTREKR  WEREBEER
diluted earnings/(loss) per share are the same as basic I/ (E#8) BEREARRF (EE) HE -
earnings/(loss) per share.
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, 11 REYX Y%  BERRHE
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Office
equipment
landand  Right-of-use Leasehold Motor andother  Construction Investment
buildings assels  improvements vehicles  fired assels  in progress Sub-fotal properties Total
HAERER
HHRET  RREEE HERE AE AbEeEE FRIE g REnz &t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR  ARRTR ARETR ARBTn ARRTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR
Cost: ik
Balance at 1 January 2022 WE-—%-F-Hui% 304,344 47,698 57593 4332 109577 95,351 747,888 147,47 895,135
Exchange adjustments 35 3459 1,79 1078 3485 6,186 3 16,007 - 16,007
Additions g - 6,608 28 412 1,787 4723 64913 - 64913
Transfer from construction in progress  EARIEEA 21,807 . 2399 . 7 (30372) - - -
Disposals il - (15,164) (174) (1.494) (30,083) (46,915) - (46,915)
Balance at 31 December 2022 i o 2 425,700 40938 63,941 47,048 122,132 82134 781893 147,247 929,140

Balance a1 January 2023 HoB-=e-f-Aip 2570 122,132 Q1% 781893 1T A AT
Exchange adjustments EiE 3258 754 1323 - 5,888 - 5,888
Addiions #g 10 0 11,983 6 10048 YRR YVY )
Transfer from construction in progress ~ FEETEEA 82,886 - - (f14,501) - - -
Disposdls i (143%) M) (1225 - (37165) - (37165)
Balence ai 31 December 2023 e et 2 S A R K21 4780 123,183 BN WS 114268
Accumulated depreciaton: ZiflE:

Balance at 1 January 2022 RZFZ2F-A-Az&H 6607 (638 (%) (e () R T I 11121 N Y 1)
Evchange adjustments Enaz (1.497) (1,328) (@) (2.45) (3301) d (0.56) . (9.456)
Charge forthe year R (0% (177 (6472 052 (12705) . (43,897 06 W)
Writen back on disposals L . 14235 - 13% 1264 ! 16,635 . 16,63
Blance i 31 December 2022 3 St S A B 0479 (51 (50 (852 (67466 S (%) (05 (90414)

Balance at 1 January 2023 RZZ==F-f-Rzks (98479) (25,194) (¢5,200) (33522 (67466 (269,861) (0553 (29041)
Exchange adjusiments B (627) (246) (202) (556) (801) (26%2) - (2632)
Charge for the year L (11,461) (10,349) (12,374) (24%8) (11,257) (47939) (4589) (52522)
Reversal of impaiment loss HEBRRE 3,961 - - - - 3,961 - 3961
Written back on disposals HEEAE 1,735 2713 1,145 73 9,580 16,509 - 16,509
Balance at 31 December 2023 i v B e (105,071) (33,076) (56,031) (35,640) (69.944) (299,962) (325,099)
Net book value: RHFE:

At 31 December 2023 WE-=F+-A=1-A 392,550 53,239 551,137 266,398 817535
At 31 December 2022 WE-_F+-A=1-A 321,21 15,744 18741 1352 54,666 82,134 512,032 126,694 638,726
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S 5 i A B i
11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
(including leasehold right of use assets)

(i)

(i)

(iiif)

178

The land owned by the Group is located in Taiwan,
which has an indefinite useful life and therefore is
not depreciated. The carrying amount of the land
as at 31 December 2023 is RMB65,867,000 (2022:
RMB72,492,000). A reversal of impairment loss of
RMB3,961,000 was recognized in “other net loss”.

The buildings owned by the Group are located in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan.

As at 31 December 2023, land and buildings
in Mainland China with carrying amount of
RMB89,952,000 (2022: RMB91,901,000) and Taiwan
with carrying amounts of RMB89,950,000 (2022:
RMB95,984,000) were pledged to banks as security
for certain loan facilities (see note 23).
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REWME WX BEKRE

(&)

ME- -BERRE (BEEEERESR
E) WREEE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

NEBTEA 2 LN EE A ER
FARAFTH BLATEFRE R_T==
F+-_A=+—H8 %t zEEES
A R #65,867,000. (ZZE=ZZF : A
KR #72,492,0007T) ° BEBSERE AR
#3,961,000 0 /A Bt 518 F FERERR ©

AEBHREREZBFURTERM - BB

BAE -

NR-ZBE-=F+=-FA=+—08 ' fRF
B b AR (B A A R #89,952,0007T (=
T4 : AR¥91,901,00070) RALHA
BEREEAARMS9,950,000T (=&
——4&: AR¥095,984,0005T) 2t K
BFEERETENRECERERT
(1T (B2 R MIsE23) °



11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
(including leasehold right of use assets) (Continued)

(iv)  Investment properties

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

11 REYXE W% BERRHE
()

ME- - BELERE (BEHEEERREE

E) WRERR (&)

(iv) RENE

Net book value of investment properties

REWMFEZ REFE

Fair value of investment properties
(level 3 fair value measurement using

significant unobservable inputs) BAEH=E)

BEWMERZAARE (F=4&
RNAEFRBAEATAEE

2023 2022

T = —EE = — =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
266,398 126,694
197,603

As at 31 December 2023, the investment properties located
in Shanghai and Beijing, Mainland China, were rented
out under terms of operating leases or held for capital
appreciation. As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of the
investment properties stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses is estimated at approximately
RMB398,347,000 on an open market, existing use basis, by
reference to recent sales price of comparable properties
using market data which are publicly available and made
adjustments to reflect the differences in the characteristics
between the investment properties and the comparable
properties. The fair value of the investment properties has
not been evaluated by an independent firm of surveyors.
The Group has adopted the cost model under HKAS 40,
Investment property, to account for its investment properties,
and accordingly, the carrying amounts of the investment
properties were not adjusted to the revalued amount at the
end of the reporting period.

R-E_=F+_A=+—8 " ' LRFEAHL
BRI RNEEMERBLSHE RN EA
RIFEEAR KB RZE_=F+=_A=+—
B ERARRAITERREBSBREE TS
MAERABRNREMEN AR BEFTOBAR
#5398,347,0007C * %A ETRAFRTISE K
R@GREETR2ERAAARESEERFAZ
RELIEEYHEHEAIE LR E 2 ANEEER
WSS EMEHOA B RYERTREE
BmEE - WEMFER AR ERER RS
AR AREBEHABES S ERFEI05 - &
By ORNARAAREREYSE - Al
ERNREMRBEREVEREERAERZERS
R o

s,
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
(including leasehold right of use assets) (Continued)
(V) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

11 REWE WX BERRE
(&)
ME- -BERRE (BEEEERESR

E) WRERIE (#)
(v) (EREEE

HBAE S B ERREEEESEL T
mF -

31 December 1 January

2023 2023
—E=HF —ET-=

t=RA=+—-8 —F=E

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Hfat ARBT T ARETTT

Properties leased for own use, carried at FA{EERYE  RITER

depreciated and impaired cost B ATE

(i) 15,744
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

(including leasehold right of use assets) (Continued)
(V) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11 REYXE W% BERRHE
()

ME- - BELERE (BEHEEERREE

E) WRERR (&)

(v) FREEE &)

BRRBETHEANEECFAXHEBE AT

2023 2022
—E—-= —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use AR & E R E 5 Y
assets by class of underlying asset: FREEENERY :
Other properties leased for own use HIEB AR EMYE 11,773
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) HEaER B (Mits(a)) 656
Expenses relating to short-term leases RACHAE RMKER
and leases of low-value assets EEAENHAS 1,823

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
RMB28,880,000. This amount primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis
of lease liabilities are set out in notes 21(d) and 24,
respectively.

i Other properties leased for own use
The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as

its warehouses and offices through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years.

REER  BREFERAEEER AR 28,880,000
Lo 2RI BEMBERARTHENH
EfNER -

MEHRS R LeE HEaEIHA DTN

B9 BIE G R M FE21(d) K24 -
FAEERMEMmYE

FREEND  AEBDERFEHAEMYESE

RERBERBRENEN ZFWEZNFIH
EHR-—BA—ERF -
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

12 EEREEE

Software
licences
BRI
RMB’000
ARBTT

Cost:
Balance at 1 January 2022
Additions

AR :
R-EBE-_—F—F—BZ2&H%
e

6,415
1,447

Balance at 31 December 2022

R-EBE_—_F+_A=+—BHz&&%

Balance at 1 January 2023
Additions
Disposals

R-B_=F—R—HZ&&H
BE
&

Balance at 31 December 2023

RZBZ=F+_A=+T—HZH#&HR

Accumulated amortisation:
Balance at 1 January 2022
Charge for the year

R ETE -
R-EBE-_—F—F—B2Z&#%
FELH

(3,554)
(893)

Balance at 31 December 2022

R-EBE_—_F+_A=+—BHz&&%

Balance at 1 January 2023
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

R-B-_=F—A—BZ&H
FEXH
& & Bl

Balance at 31 December 2023

RZB_=F+__A=+—BZH#&H

Net book value:
At 31 December 2023

BRTEFE
RZBE—_=%+—_A=+—H

At 31 December 2022

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H

The amortisation charges for the year are included in

“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.
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13 GOODWILL 13 BHE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2022 IR = = fE= =g 218,738
Exchange adjustments M 5, B 18,705

At 31 December 2022

R—E—_—_F+-_A=+—H

237,443

At 1 January 2023
Exchange adjustments

N-ZE_=F—H—H
5 24

237,443
4,018

At 31 December 2023

RZE—=F+=A=+—8H

241,461

Accumulated impairment losses:

At 1 January 2022
Exchange adjustments

ZEHREEE :
RZF-_—_F—H—H
M 5 SR

(169,501)
(15,928)

At 31 December 2022

R_E-_—_F+_A=+—H

(185,429)

At 1 January 2023
Exchange adjustments

(185,429)
(3,421)

At 31 December 2023

(188,850)

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2023

BRMEE :
R_F-_=F+=-A=+—H

At 31 December 2022

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H

52,014
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13 GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
identified according to places of operations and reportable
segments as follows:

13 B8 (&)
SEBREZHSELE BN ZRERR

=imHERE

High-end consuming accessories

BESRETAESERETIEEHERERS
EBETREE 2 B & EEEBAL
2023 2022
—E-=F b S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARBFR
52,611 52,014

High-end consuming accessories

At 31 December 2023, before impairment testing, goodwill
of RMB32,925,000 (2022: RMB32,328,000), RMB 18,000,000
(2022: RMB18,000,000) and RMB1,686,000 (2022:
RMB1,686,000) were allocated to Born Talent Limited, _E
BFEERMIEERERAA and BMFHEEXEBEERA
Al within the high-end consuming accessories segment
respectively.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
are determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are the
discount rate and revenue/gross profit growth rate. The
Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the two
years financial budgets and extrapolates cash flows for the
following three years based on estimated annual average
growth rates in sales ranging from 1% to 13% (2022: 10% to
35%), growth rates in gross profit ratio ranging from 1% to
3% (2022: 1% to 5%), at a discount rate of 12.0% to 13.0%
(2022: 13.3% to 14.3%). Cash flows beyond five years
period are projected using 3% (2022: 3%) growth rate. This
rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant market. The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments. The
growth rates are determined by management based on the
performance of the relevant cash-generating units and their
estimated future development.
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SimHERE
ZTEZ=F+ZA=+—H  #TREIR
AT A& AR#32,925000 (Z T = —4F:
A K #32,328,0007T) * A R #18,000,0007T
(ZZT=——4%: ARK¥18,000,0007T) &k AR
1,686,0007T (ZZ==% : AK%1,686,0007T)
SRS EERWEERESBANESTER
/Aﬂ - LB ERMTEEERR A G REM
THEXEEAR AR

%En

ReEsBu2rMbOeBE N REREBENE
BE ERABEAEZEZHRX/URERK
A/ EFERE - REBEBBENF1%E13%2
BEHFEETFOHEERER (ZF__F : 10%2

35%) * NF1%E3%Z EFNEEREER (ZFT =
ZF 1% E5%) RN F12.0%=13.0% 2 BH 1R
K(ZBEZ_F : 13.3%%14.3%) HEIRME

MRBE HEenBAREREE=F 2%
e AFBENRESMREAI% (ZE ==
3%) B RXFEA o & H X B HEE TSN
BRAERR - ITAMRESHATMIRE - I

RIREBAYMEBA 2 FERMR - ZFIERE
THEREREBHBREEEEM 2 RE MG
AARRERMETE °



14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
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14 RHEBARzHEDR

TREFIEAEEEE BERAGBFERKN

which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities 2B AT ZEIE - BRIERHIER @ i

of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

B KRR A E A o

FEEEN
Place of Group's Held Particulars of
incorporation effective by the Held by issued and
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activity
rEEy  @ARE EHERR
e AMRERDE  BRER ¥ BB BEIRARALHE IEXHK
Elegant Jewellery Holding Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% 5,000,000 shares of  Investment holding
HKD1 each
—EREEEERAT A 100% - 100% 5,000,000%&% REEK
HBE1ETZRA
Alpha Key Investments Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
BRRARRAR AERAES 100% 100% - RIETZRG  RERR
Hengdeli Giant Dragon Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
ZEHERARAR AERAES 100% 100% - RIETZRG  RERR
Xinyu Hengdeli Investments Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
HTsRNREERAA AERAES 100% 100% - RIETZRG  RERR
Hengdeli International Company Limited  Hong Kong 100% - 100% 1 share of HKD1  Trading and
management service
FEHNERARAR A 100% - 100% RiBTZRG EHRERRE
Hengdeli Group Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
ZENERER AR ABRIES 100% 100% - RixT 2Rl REER

The directors are of the view that the Group has no
individually material non-controlling interest for the years

ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Y FFFER A ET

s,

215

H
¥

FBEBARA T =R =44

HE_Z_=FfRrR-_ZF-_—_F+-_A=+—H
IHFE BEERAAEETE@EF M BEAN

185



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

15 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 15
2022
—EE— —dE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Unlisted corporate entities FELEHEASE
Share of net assets L& EFE 132,780

The following table shows information of associates that are
material to the Group. These associates are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The summarised financial information presented is
based on the HKFRS financial statements of the associates.

TRINTHAGEEBEZ 2 HERREH -
ZEBERARNEAMBHRRAUERIEA
BRI BEMBMEBNERBE AR ZER
BT S L A T K

Name Hengdeli Deyesion Mark Ocean Limited  Deyi Diligence Maritime Limited
International Shipping Limited

4 SENEZHER G EER AT #8ABAF  Deyi Diligence Maritime Limited

Principal place of business/country of incorporation Hong Kong Hong Kong Hong Kong

IEERNY ERRIER £ &R &R

Principal activities Engaged in provision Engaged in Engaged in

of shipping services

vessel holding vessel holding

TEEH TS REMERS CESY e (= T
% of ownership interests/voting rights held by the Group 46% 46% 35%
REBBAfIEERR / REEAIN 46% 46% 35%
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

et T —F Eebdmlcl T —F Eetdmill T &

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT N

ARBT A ARTTT N

At 31 December: W+=A=1+—8:

Non-current assets ERBEE - = 93,811 91,933 139,279 146,208
Current assets MEEE 254,101 300,029 35,317 57,028 65,582 64,977
Current liabilities mEBE CIRPIN  (123,334) (53,000) (61,090) IERENGON  (186,341)
Net assets BEFE 162,976 176,695 76,128 87,871 68,101

Group's share of net assets A~EEELEEEFE

74,969 81,280 35,019 40,421 23,835
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15 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15 REBE QT 2z (2)
Name Hengdeli Deyesion Mark Ocean Limited  Deyi Diligence Maritime Limited
International Shipping Limited
4 SENEZHERGEEBR AT #/88R2A7 Deyi Diligence Maritime Limited

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
et T — gl T — —ECCE kil
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT NESTE ARETT INGESIE ARETT ENS-SH

Year ended 31 December: HZE+=A

=+-HLEEFE:
Revenue WA PAEIION 1,496,282 91,862 232,521 158,405 101,332
(Loss)/profit after tax B (B1R),/&H (17,263) 68,951 17,847 73,788 42,599 24,015
Other comprehensive income £ ft1 2 EUA 3,543 11,278 1,641 3,670 657 820

Total comprehensive income 2 EWA 58 (13,720) 80,229 19,488 77,458 43,256

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share  T~HRUATEA TV RAEEFHAEREARZ
of the amounts of all individually immaterial associates that frA{ER|IEE KBS N B FT(EEEE ©
are accounted for using the equity method.

2023 2022
—E=-= —E 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETTT
At 31 December: =B Er=E ¢

Carrying amounts of interests s AREE 2,384

Year ended 31 December: BE+T-A=1T—HLFE:
Profit for the year F 2 m A 2,392
Other comprehensive income H2mEmIKA -
Total comprehensive income ZHERABERE 2,392
Dividends received from associates B E A RIRE -

During the year, Mark Ocean Limited has declared and paid FE R @ %848R A 50 AAEET IR &R
dividends to the Group of USD2,034,000 (equivalents to  J& £.2 ,034,000% 7T (#8E A A R 14,367,000

RMB14,367,000). An immaterial associate has declared of Jf) o R=—FE——F  —IEFAREL N T AN
RMB2,250,000 in 2022 but not yet paid to the Group. EETIRREARK2 250 0007 AL T ©
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16
(a)

OTHER INVESTMENTS

Equity investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income

16 HRE
(a) BBEHEMEEKAZAIAEFEZ
RAERE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat ARBT T AREFTT

Equity securities designated at  EEABBEMEEmBAIR

FVOCI (non-recycling)

2RI E 5
— Listed securities — EWEH
— Unlisted fund investments —JELEMESKE

DNAERE (RATBAERR)

(i) 183,434 207,176

185,148 148,155

368,582 355,331

Notes:

(i)

188

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) comprise equity
securities which the Group intends to hold for strategic
purposes, and which the Group has irrevocably elected
at initial recognition to recognise in this category.
RMB4,989,000 of dividends were received on these
investments during the year (2022: RMB9,298,000).

The value of the above investments was individually

insignificant (individually less than 5% of the Group’s
total assets).
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BAHEMEARARAABIFENEREE
BEAEBEFESR B R AFS
AEE R MR EE S A HE B
WRZDERR - FANEXSTEERIE
BAR®4989,000T (ZE=—4F : AR¥
9,298,0007T) °
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16 OTHER INVESTMENTS (Continued) 16 Hfbir& @)

(b) Equity investments at fair value through profit (b) EBEZRBZAABIFEZRAKRE
or loss

2023 2022
—E== —ET-—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiiE ARETT AREBTIT
Equity securities, at fair value BAES  BRARE
— Listed securities — FWEHF (i) 7,336

Note: Hiat -

(i) During the year, no dividends were received on the (i) RAFELEBIBRBEBESZ DR EER
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss BARENRE (ZF==F : ) -
(FVPL) (2022: Nil).

17 INVENTORIES 17 =&

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) RHEAUBRRRZEEERE :

financial position comprise:

2023 2022
—E=F —E-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

Raw materials R %L
Work in progress &M
Finished goods and merchandise SRURK AN P

25,982 20,090
27,589 32,443
204,544 185,235

258,115 237,768
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17 INVENTORIES (Continued)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in
profit or loss is as follows:

17 #E (&)

(b) WRAARIALFABRZFERR

DT :

2023
—E=F
RMB’000
ARET T

1,206,189

Continuing operations: FHEEE
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHFEREE
Discontinued operations: HIbEE
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHFEREE
Reversal of write-down of inventories T E MR B
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2022
e —

—_—

RMB’000
ARBETT

915,693

565,566
(315,854)

249,712
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 BWE SRR HMEWIE
2023 2022
—E=HF —E-—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARET T ARBEFIT
Current assets RENEE
Trade receivables, IR E 5 BRFOR B 1B B
net of loss allowance 338,540 342,832
Other receivables, Lt i U SR TE R B 18 1
net of loss allowance (7) 124,562 178,106
PRC value added tax receivables JE Ui (B H2 (B 17,565 20,584
Receivables from B # 15 E W 5k T8
government authority (ii) 13,153 21,573
Interest receivables E YRS 6,650 8,111
Dividends receivable from U — M R E R E
an associate 4,050 4,050
504,520 575,256
Prepayment and deposits ENFEREE (iii) 53,552 128,371
558,072 703,627
Non-current assets FEREERE
Prepayment and deposits A FIE RiRE 1,748
705,375

All of the trade and other receivables in current assets are
expected to be recovered within one year.

Notes:

(i Other receivables include advances to third parties of
RMB46,237,000 (2022: RMB104,570,000), which are
interest bearing at 6% per annum as at 31 December
2023 and are recoverable within one year. The advances
to third parties are fully secured by collaterals obtained
by the Group as at 31 December 2023.

(i) The balance mainly represented a receivable in respect
of return of land use right to the Chenzhou Government.

(iii)

Prepayment includes freight charges to an associate of

RMB10,247,000 (2022: RMB26,441,000).

MENE B A P A e 5 R ok e L At B WK IR
BEAR —FRlkE -

Hfat

(i)

(if)

(iii)

HtWERREREE=ZFT2RARE
46,237,000 (= B = = F£: AR &
104,570,0007T) ' R-—E-_=F+_-_HF=+
—HFEA6%  WAIR—FAKE - RZF
—ZFE+-A=+—B ' F=ZHERBEAE
EESHETRREEIER -

A ERE B AR RPN BT 57 08 £ 2o i AR e R
Wik o

BNRESER —BHBHEAFAINNEE
AR¥10,247,000C (ZE=Z=F : AR¥
26,441,0007T) °

FRABEBRARATR R AR 191



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss

allowance) at the end of the reporting period, based on the

invoice date, is as follows:

18 FEWE S HRAKH M EWRRIE
(#)

BRI DM

RWCE 5 R (BB SRR RBE KR

BEEHS 2 ERATMT

Within 3 months

Over 3 months but less than 12 months

Over 12 months

2023 2022
—==-= B F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARETTT

3EAN 189,975 197,975
BiE3E AR R12(EA 136,997 140,723
BiE121E A 11,568 4,134

338,540 342,832

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 360 days from the

date of billing. Further details regarding the Group’s credit

policy are set out in note 32(a).

19

LOANS TO ASSOCIATES

FEWE 5 AR A B ET30£360H & o
ERAAEECEERRZE—THBHANMFE
32(a) °

19 RHUHBEQATZER
2023 2022
—ZE_= —EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Loans to associates

B 33,789 67,273

The loans to associates are unsecured, interest-free and are

repayable on demand.
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20 DEPOSITS WITH BANKS
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20 SRITER

Deposits with original maturities

2R

over three months

JREIEAR R =18 H

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERS

As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents of
approximately 19% (2022: 25%), 49% (2022: 58%) and 32%
(2022: 17%) were denominated in RMB, HKD and other
currencies, respectively.

2023 2022
—ZE_-= —EE = s
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
318,437 272,701
21 BERBEZEY
(a) BERBEEEVEIRE
2023 2022
—ZE_= ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBETIT
990,815 1,050,187
RZE-_=F+-_A=+—H ' #19% (=& =

T4 1 25%) c 49% (ZZF = — 4% : 58%) M32%

(ZF=—F:17%) RS FASFEY D HI
AARE - BTREMEREE -
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to  (b)
cash generated from operations:

HERBESEEY &)

BRBANER (BB REEME

REMHER

2023
e

e

RMB’000
ARBT T

Note
k=2

Profit/(loss) before taxation
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of investment properties
and property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Finance costs
Interest income
Reversal of impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment
Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net realised and unrealised (gain)/loss
on investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Share of profits of associates
Dividend income from other investments

BBEDET(ER)

— BB

— R IPEE
AN :
BREMEEDE  BEK
RiBITE
B EEEE
FATERAN

MEMA

WE - BEREREZ
(BB 1R
HEWE - BB MR
BRI
BRBREARENEZ
REZBEEHLREHR
(Wak) /BRI
FEIEEEE R A G A

KB EHMRERBRBRA

5(c)
5(c)
5(a)
4(a)
4(b)

4(b)

4(b)

4(a)

Operating profit/(loss) before changes
in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and
other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

SEESRBANEEE
F,(&518)

78 (#m), B
JE B 5 8RR S HoAth
JENRIER A (35 0)
eI E 2R A K

Ho At FE A SRIRIE N

29,534

(19,042)

49,476

24,690

Cash generated from operating activities

RERHERE

84,658
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2022
== —E
RMB’000
YN ST

(31,700)
(56,281)

47,579
893
3,364

(15,400)

8,711

5,138
(76,457)
(9,298)

(123,451)
379,119
(64,962)

48,351

239,057



21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Continued)

(c)

financing activities:

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

from financing activities. Liabilities arising from financing

activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.
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21 BERBEZEEY &)

(c) MEIZBELEZREHK:

TRAXREERERDELZBBEZHFIE -
MEEDELAZABNRACREDKLRNE
BenERNAEE L GARERERDI AR
REEBREREZBIE °

Lease
liabilities Total
#st
RMB’000

ARBTT

Bank loans
RITEM
RMB’000

ARBT T
(note 23)
(PBfzE23)

RMB’000
AR®ET T
(note 24)
(BzE24)

At 1 January 2023

81,721 17,344

(11,509)
(388)

(11,897)

Changes from financing cash flows: MERERELE
Proceeds from new bank loans L RITERAEFIR
Repayment of bank loans BRBTER

Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEHSNERE D
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERSHFEID
Interest paid BERFE

Exchange adjustments BE 5 R B

Other changes: Hith2 g

Increase in lease liabilities from entering
into new leases during the period

REAET I E M 2 ey
MERR

98

Decrease in lease liabilities from HEHERBEEAN
disposal of lease liabilities HEABRD
Interest charged FHRFIE
At 31 December 2023 RZTZ=F
+-A=+—~H

123,758
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21 BERBREZEEY &)

(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) ®RMETBEEZEGEHER (&)
financing activities (Continued):
Lease
Bank loans liabilities Total
RITER HEARE mBEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT ARET T
(note 23) (note 24)
(Hf7223) (Kist24)
At 1 January 2022 = B 73,879 23,853 97,732
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRELE .
Proceeds from new bank loans L RITERAEFIR 54,900 = 54,900
Repayment of bank loans EBERITER (46,665) = (46,665)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHERSNERE D = (12,736) (12,736)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENHEEREHFEIHD = (656) (656)
Interest paid BT S (2,708) - (2,708)
9,021 (13,392) (7,865)
Exchange adjustments P 0 A= (393) 613 220
Other changes: Hitt2 g :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering  MEIRET 2 # S ML In&Y
into new leases during the period HEBE - 6,608 6,608
Decrease in lease liabilities from HEHEEEEER
disposal of lease liabilities HEABRD = (994) (994)
Interest charged TS 2,708 656 3,364
2,708 6,270 8,978
At 31 December 2022 i S—e
+=ZA=1+—H 81,721 17,344 99,065
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases
comprise the following:
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21 BERBEZEEY &)

(d) HERSRHALEE
REEFARERERZEEREATRE

2023 2022
—E_=F ====

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

Within operating cash flows KERERE
Within financing cash flows BEHERE

(2,243) (1,823)
(11,897) (13,392)

(14,140) (15,215)

These amounts relate to the following:

ZESRENTIHEE AR

2023 2022
—EC-=F ===

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

Lease rentals paid ENHEHES

14,140 15,215
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND

22 ENEZRIRAREMENRE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES URENEE

2023

—_E-=
RMB’000
ARET T
Trade payables FERTE 5 8RR 144,580
Contract liabilities BREE 20,874
Other payables and accrued expenses H fth B~ 5RIE KR FEET B F 61,466

226,920

Ageing analysis
The ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

ARER DA

2022
—EE = —
RMB’000
ARET T

119,366
16,861
65,708

201,935

RBEMR - REZBHFENESRR R

BT

2023

—EC=F

RMB’000

AR¥T T

Within 1 month EIS 86,562
Over 1 month but less than 3 months BiE11E BB L R3E A 53,228
Over 3 months but less than 12 months HBA3ME A B 12ME A 115
Over 12 months FRiE121E A 4,675

144,580

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

When the Group receives a deposit before the shop design
and decoration service commences, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised on the project exceeds the amount of the
deposit. The amount of the deposit is negotiated on a case
by case basis with customers.
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2022
e

—_—=

RMB'000
ARETIT

56,995
54,926
7,426
18

119,366

BIMTHE

BARE BT E R AT RS RS 5 46 BT KB E
e IXRTEANRKRBELANAE &
EHAEANBABEESNEE  TENE

BRREABEREETSHE -
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 22 EFNEZERRHEMENFIE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) UREHNER &)

Movements in contract liabilities SHBEET

2023
—m— =

— e

RMB’000

ARBTFT

Balance at 1 January R—A—R & 16,861

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result  FAERWAFFEH T AEL]
of recognising revenue during the year ZERNEERD
that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year (14,851)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of FRWEIEE F S FrEHR
receiving sales deposits during the year ZAEHEEEM 18,864

Balance at 31 December Rt A=+—Hz&% 20,874

2022
—m—

o/

RMB’000
ARETT

3,282

(574)

14,153

16,861

No sales deposits received are expected to be recognised MEEWHETSBHAKNER - FRERR

as income after more than one year. YA
4= 5 Ep
23 BANK LOANS 23 HRITEX
As at 31 December 2023, the bank loans were repayable as R-T-_=%+-_A=+—H8"
follows: AT
2023
—===
RMB’000
AREET T
Within 1 year or on demand 1F AR IR E Sk 76,653
After 1 year but within 2 years 1B ER2F A 1,283
After 2 years but within 5 years 2EBBNSER 4,029
After 5 years 5% 1% 12,171

17,483

94,136
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23 BANK LOANS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the bank loans were secured as
follows:

23 SRITER (&)

Bank loans within one year or on demand
Secured

BHEHA

—FARAIRBREENRITER

Bank loans after one year
Secured

BHEHA

—EREENRITER

R-ZB-=F+-A=+—8 " RITEZHK
AT
2023 2022
—E =8 =E===
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
56,799
24,922
81,721

Certain secured bank loans are all drawn down under certain
bank facilities secured by certain land and buildings of the
Group with aggregate carrying values of RMB179,902,000
(2022: RMB187,885,000).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the banking facilities
were not subject to the fulfilment of the covenants based on
the lending arrangements with financial institutions. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set
out in note 32(b).

NAREEESREBEE AARK179,902,000
T(ZE=——%F : AR¥187,885,0007T) M &
T REFEERNE TRITEEETHE
THERRITERD 2RI -

KRB =FR-_F__F+-_H=+—H"
RITEEHAXRNEBETREESRBBER L
ZERLHHEL M EE - ARAKERBES
R E I B — RSB M FE32(b) ©

24 LEASE LIABILITIES 24 HEE®E
At 31 December 2023, the lease liabilities were repayable as R-ZE_=F+-_A=+—H BEEHEA
follows: BT :
2023 2022
—E_=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETIT
Within 1 year 1R 8,313 10,802
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBER2F A 7,347 3,272
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F B BREFR 12,994 3,270
After 5 years 5% 1% 968 =
21,309 | XoT
29,622 17,344
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25 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by the labour regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by municipal and provincial governments for its
employees. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans at rates ranging from 14% to 16% of the
eligible employees’ salaries for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: from 14% to 16%).

Pursuant to the labour regulations of Malaysia and Taiwan,
the Group joined defined contribution retirement plans for
its employees. The Group is required to make contributions
to the retirement plans at the applicable rates ranging from
2% to 15% based on the eligible employees’ salaries (2022:
from 2% to 15%).

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HKD30,000 (2022:
HKD30,000). Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other obligation for the payment of its
employees’ retirement and other post-retirement benefits

other than the contributions described above.
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25 EERKEF
KEFESTRORE AEEAHEESR
% (B T R R & R & 32 0 5 B A FOR IR AR

Fetdl e XEBERBE_ZS-_=F+=-A=
+—BHBUIEFENEGEREZZNEBEEI ZEEZ
HIR N F14%E16% (Z B = ZF : 14%E

16%) Z Lb R BLRRETBIHK -

AEBRBERALZRAENS AN AHE

B2 MERBEITRNKTE - HEAEBENE

BREXNENCEE 2HFMAER - WD

%Ez%iw% (B —F : 2%%15%) 2@
EL R RETEI K o

AEETREFERHIERTESFT IR - &
RIEFEERBRIIZEZEBERLAHMEATE
T8 ([BEEFE)) - BB & A B
VIERAEEZEBEHFORNKETE - RIFRTE

58 EEREREESEEAKEEZABK
AZ5%HF - HELA30,0008 T (=& ==

30,000%87t) BERABEBAZ LR -
AR EEFTA ©

sHBIR

B BTN NEBEBEAREEE 2RAKKR
H R BN FAREEBEAE -
FRAEERARAR R SRR 201
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

(@) The 2015 share option scheme

On 19 May 2015, a share option scheme was established
which will be used to grant option to selected participants
including but not limited to directors and employees of the
Group in order to provide incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. As at 31 December 2023, no
option was granted under the 2015 share option scheme.

(b) Share award scheme

Pursuant to a share award scheme approved by the Board
in 2015, the Company may purchase its own shares and
grant such shares to certain employees or consultants of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
no share has been granted to the Group’s employees and
directors under the share award scheme.

The consideration paid for the purchase of the Company’s
shares is reflected as a decrease in the capital reserve
of the Company. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of shares is recognised
as staff costs in profit or loss with a corresponding increase
in capital reserve, which is measured based on the grant
date share price of the Company.
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26 LUEmGHE ROERIAX
2

(a) =ZE-OFBREE
R-ZZE-RFREATNABR  RARRIL BB
gt E - BARMERE2EE (BRETR
RAKEEERESR) ROBRE - L)L
BRSAAKEMERR R_F_=F+=
R=+—H BERE_ZT-HFBRETZ
BB -

(b) MKRpREEE
REEEEN_T—AFHEZRDER
g ARRAIBEEESROERAAEES T
EESKEMTRLABRG RBE-T=_=F
F=ZZBE-_—F+-_A=1+—HLFE HER
BROEZEEFEETAEEREREERG -

REEAAABRBEN ZRERRARATE
ARBRD « 8 B RRIEER IR (60 BRI
ZRREHRARTRRARINA  RET
B E8 2 A28 R B 48 At 84 2 PR S AL
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27 #SZEHMBRRERZFEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) #&& B AR R 2 75 2 FE 4 %1 16

of financial position represents: 1B
2023 2022
—E_= —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax REABIIE — BB FEH
Provision for the year REFEE 1,963
Tax refund B -
Tax paid BHE =
Exchange adjustments bE H SRR 76
L e
Current tax — Overseas REABIIE — o
Provision for the year REFEAE 884
Tax refund B 38
Tax paid [ERNE (1,709)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (787)
Balance of Profits Tax provision BEFE 2 NEHREER
relating to prior years 3,541
4,793
Represented: 3
2023 2022
—E_= —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
Current tax recoverable ZN BT Y [B] 7 TE (469) (168)
Current tax liabilities REATI IR B & 2,846 4,961

2,377 4,793
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27 SZREMBRRARZFAEH &)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) CEERIAELEHEEERAE
(i)  Deferred tax assets recognised () CEIEEHEEE

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in RHEZFT_=FK_T__F+_A=+—
the consolidated statement of financial position and the AL ERELRE M SRR AR Z BT

movements during the years ended 31 December 2023 and REE 2MARE D REBHEI AT
2022 are as follows:

Tax losses
not utilised
RA AT IEEE
RMB’000
ARET T
Balance at 1 January 2022 KRB —F—F—HZ&EH 323
Credited to profit or loss A= 2,365
Exchange adjustments B 5, 3 X 33
Balance at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—B2#&t 2,721
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-ZBE-_=F—A—H2&&%
Credited to profit or loss A=
Exchange adjustments PE b 5 =&
Balance at 31 December 2023 REE—=F+=-HA=+—Hz&&%
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27 SREMBRRERZFAEH ©)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) ERRELHEEERARE (&)

(Continued)

(ii) Deferred tax liabilities recognised

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the years ended 31 December 2023 and

2022 are as follows:

(i) CEIAELERESE

REBEE_E_=FR_FE_—F+_A=1+—
BIEFERESATBRARABBRZELER
HAEZARISD RESESIMT

Depreciation
allowances in
excess of related
depreciation

mERE

HBBEREITE

RMB’000

AR¥TT

Balance at 1 January 2022 RZTEZ—F—-—H—Bz#&H 454
Credited to profit or loss FFAE = (447)
Exchange adjustments b 5 A% (7)

Balance at 31 December 2022

R-ZE_—F+-_A=+—Bz&%

Balance at 1 January 2023
Credited to profit or loss
Exchange adjustments

W=B-=F—f—A2#H
PN
e

Balance at 31 December 2023

RZBZ=F+__A=+—RHz&#
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(t), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
of RMB117,069,000 (2022: RMB120,171,000) in respect
of cumulative tax losses as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will
be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. The
tax losses for subsidiaries in Mainland China and Taiwan
will expire during the periods from 2023 to 2027 and from
2023 to 2032, respectively. The tax
in Hong Kong and Malaysia do not expire under current tax

losses for subsidiaries

legislation.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Pursuant to the tax laws in Mainland China, 10% withholding
tax is levied on foreign investors (5% for foreign investors
who are registered in Hong Kong provided they meet certain
criteria) in respect of profit distributions arising from a
foreign investment enterprise’s profit earned after 1 January
2008.

At 31 December 2023,
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted to
RMB211,792,000 (2022: RMB210,559,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of RMB10,589,000 (2022: RMB10,528,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that would be

temporary differences relating

payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
in Mainland China and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.
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(C) RERZEERIEEE
RIEFTEE( )Fﬁﬁﬁ‘%ﬂlﬁ - AR B RARE RDA

flm M E RN AR e A B 5 A R sH B R A
R R E N H&K%lﬂﬂ?ﬂiﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁlﬁ%

BEHERELERIEEEARK117,069,0005T (=

T_-_F: AR¥120,171,0007T) ° L A B
AR ENMBARMKEIEEEED IR
T =FE T AFRIEF=FEF=

“FERY - RBERABRYOER - URBERSF
KA EARNRARBE SRR -

(d) REIZELEHIREE

REFERHEE - INEREEBRINGRE
TERZZTTNF— A — B BRI Z %A im
EEZRADREHR10%EHENR - RE
Bz INEREEWMAFA R TRERIZEMR X
5% BRI -

RZFE_=F+=-A=+—0 ' E@EKNEBEA
%nM@ﬂZ%%%EﬁAEMmmmzmo
T(ZZE = ZF: AR ®210,559,0007T) °
ARAREZEHMRPEANZZENBA
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28
(a)

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end of

the year are set out below:

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

Movements in components of equity
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28 BX - #HERKRE
%Eﬁ&%ﬁZ%

(a)
AEBRE

=¥ 2|

E)Z:‘ZB/'\

ZF N FRER

HERFNGE DR Ebi% $’ATB/\¢%D&¢
Rz gz (8B ER D

The Company VAN
Fair Value
Capital reserve
Share Share  redemption  Capital (non-  Exchange  Accumulated
capital  premium reserve  reserve  recycling) reserve losses Total
U MERE
BR RGEE  BERE E5RE (FIEAER) EXGE ESy At
Note  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
M ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2022 RIBZZE-A-RAzés 21516 2,570,571 1,582 - 47,396 (346,726)  (1,267,529) 1,026,810
Changes in equity for 2022: REBZERHEED .
Profit for the year ER & - - - - - = 7,991 7.991
Other comprehensive income EEEHRERA
for the year - - - - (161,340) 89,889 - (71,451)
Total comprehensive income FENALE - = = - (161,340) 89,889 7991 (63460)
Shares repurchase khEm (262) (16,592 262 - - - - (1659)
Amounts transferred from fair value ~ HERBREAAL ERE
reserve (non-recycling) to retained (FEEA\ER) BRZ
profits upon disposal of investments ~ REEF| 2 8% - - - - 12,789 - (12,789) -
Balance at 31 December 2022 RZFZZE+ZA=1-H
Lt 21,254 2,553,979 (101,155)  (256,837)  (1,272,327) 946,758
Balance at 1 January 2023 WoB-zE-f-RueH 21254 2553979 (101,155)  (256,837)  (1272.327) 946,758
Changes in equity for 2023; REBZZERRED .
Profit for the year ER &
Other comprehensive income EEEBEENA
for the year
Total comprehensive income FEMALE
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZBZZE
TZR=t-Reht 21,254 2,553,979 (239,299)  (1,263,169) 975,871
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Dividends

The directors do not recommend or declare the payment of

any dividend in respect of the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

(c) Share capital

Authorised and issued share capital

28 EBXFX - HERRE @)

(b) BRE
EE T ERRERBEE T _ZFR_FT =
F+-_A=1+—HLEFENIMERE -

(c) MB’=R
AT M EBITIRA

2023 2022
—EC=E —E-C
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares HKD shares HKD
REGE SHET BingE LEETL
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HKD0.005 each ~ &REE0.005/8 T 2 L i@k 10,000,000,000 OO/ 10,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRIRAR
At 1 January ®—R—H 4,404,018,959 22,020,094 4,464,806,959 22,324,034
Share repurchased EEERR - - (60,788,000) (308,940)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 4,404,018,959 PPXPIOCEN  4404,018,959 22,020,094
equivalent equivalent
e iKe)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
21,254 21,254

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

During the year, the Company repurchased no listed shares
(2022: 60,788,000 shares) on the Stock Exchange.
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium and the capital
redemption reserve is governed by the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands.

(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

- The excess of the consideration paid by the Company
over the aggregate of the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the Group’s
reorganisation;

- The difference between the consideration paid by
the Group to non-controlling interest holders and the
carrying amount of the respective non-controlling
interests; and

- The consideration paid for the purchase of the
Company’s shares under the share award scheme.

(iiiy  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the entities within the Group whose functional
currency is other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(v).

(iv)  Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments
designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held at the
end of the reporting period (see note 1(f)).

(v) PRC statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to PRC statutory reserves
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and were approved by
the respective boards of directors.
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28 EBXFX - #ERRE @)

(d) BENUEERBDN

(i) IR E & IR A BB ) 4
BRipEERRABERFENEAZFAESRESD
AEE I o

(i) ERHE
BREEBEATSE :

— ARRZENREBBASEEMAME
RN AR 2 AN E{EARER

- AKECNFERESFBEAZKER
MRRASHER S 2 BREECERE &

- MARBR O REFEEEARRRN Z
ENRE -

(i) EAHEE

[E R EEREREREENEEERARE I
INEMZAEBBERBZMBERREEZFABII
KD N 258 o 2B IR (V) FTE S 5T X
R -

(iv) 2AnERE (FIEAER)

R ERFHE (TAIEARR) BRRHBE RS
B2 REBRAMBHREERFONRIE T BBEM
EHBPAZRAEFENRAREZAAER
AEFFE (F2EME) -

(v) HEERERE
ARAKRPBEARBRRNERARARRAR
REEMAZAMNEBARNZERZMA - BRE
EMNEREPBEDAE G BRELSESTSH
fE °

77

N
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v) PRC statutory reserve (Continued)

PRC statutory reserves include general reserve, enterprise
expansion fund, and statutory surplus reserve.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group, which are wholly foreign-
owned enterprises in the PRC, are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation, as determined under PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the general reserve fund until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of
a dividend to shareholders. Moreover, they are required to
transfer a certain percentage of their profit after taxation, as
determined under PRC GAAP, to the enterprise expansion
fund.

The general reserve fund can only be used to make good
previous years' losses upon approval by the relevant
authority. The enterprise expansion fund can only be used
to increase the entity’s capital or to expand its production
operations upon approval by the relevant authority.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to reduce previous
years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-up
capital, provided that the balance of the reserve after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital of
the subsidiaries.

(vi)  Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company may be applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves of the
Company as at 31 December 2023 was RMB1,192,072,000
(2022: RMB1,180,497,000).
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(v) HECRERE (&)
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns to
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to the finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of a net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is
defined as total debt (which includes total interest-bearing
borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with banks. Capital comprises all components of equity.
The net debt-to-capital ratio as at 31 December 2023 is
(87)% (2022: (39)%). During 2023, the Group’s strategy was
unchanged from 2022.

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

29 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2023
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
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(e) EAXRERE

AEEEEEAZEZRENNREAEENR
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RIRRAERR - AEAMAZAEEEBIET = o

A5 A R AR T IR AR A
B IR SR R T T B P B 2 B K
TR T H0 A HOR A R T R R AR 2 R
BT - I A IR B (L B E A
3 -

AEERFEABEALEREBEERNERE - 3t
mE KARFEABERTERBELE (B
B BEERS) RRSKBECZEY RIRIT
TR BERBEMERRARSD -RZT=
=F+ZA=+—H ' FAEEARLEARE7)%
(ZZEZZF : (89)%) - RZE_=F ' £5E
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KD T sk EAT A M B A 511 7 4 S & AN
ERZ R A o

29 R

B EE

R-E-_=F+_A=+—BHEABTARR
WIS SRR NEHR B E 2 EAAESH IO T ¢

Contracted for S

2023 2022
—E=F ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
39,598 64,792
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30 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, in line with the
established strategy, the Group liquidated its remaining
watch stocks and completely cease its renowned watch
operations. This segment is separately reported with the
comparative figures restated accordingly.

The results of the discontinued operations which have been
included in consolidated profit or loss, are as follows:

30 DRIEKEEK
BE_ZT_—_F+-_A=+—HBItFE 1B
BEER AEBYURGNEBEREFET TS
B 2EAERTEZEEBNES  WHERZ
WUt D EE AR EEFT 25 BB E o

ERIEREEBCEXBEEHARSER  #F8
LN

2023 2022
—E-=F ===

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARBTTT

Revenue KA 220,293
Cost of sales SHE KA (249,712)
Gross loss Ei8 (29,419)
Other revenue H U A 7,329
Other net loss E 5185 58 (12,656)
Distribution costs 2 SHR AN (11,848)
Administrative expenses THER (9,168)
Loss from operations KEEE (55,762)
Finance costs U I (519)
Loss before taxation RREE AT 518 (56,281)
Income tax credit FristiE e 2,812
Loss for the year FERBE (563,469)
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Key management personnel compensation and
post-employment benefit plans

Remuneration for key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors

as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid

employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:
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31 BERBEEIRZS

(a) FEEEASHMREBREANT
-

AEBEEERABFMRRENTALAES

(R E7HE) RETREFHIESR (N8

BE) 2&8  HEWT -

SR SRR
BER 212 A

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

2023 2022
—E=F ===

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

11,123 10,441

64 60

10,501

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
5(b)).

FINEBeERNIEIRA] A (F2RME

5(b)) °
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Recurring transactions

31 EXBEAIRS (&)

The Group REE
2023 2022
—E=F —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Shop design and decoration services MR & B Rt 2 [E R R R
provided to Primetime Group REERTS 11,786
Goods purchased from Primetime Group  BEKEBEEE 2 &S 3
Payment made on behalf of the BREERKRME QRN
subsidiaries by Primetime Group Z A 44 96
Goods and services purchased e N AEE 2 m R RS
from associates 126,104 80,311
Rental and electricity income REBERARZHEERE KA
from associates 54 52

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above transactions with related parties were conducted
in the ordinary course of business, on normal commercial
terms and in accordance with the agreements governing
such transactions.

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of the directors’
remuneration and shop design and decoration services
provided to Primetime Group constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, and the Company confirms that it has
complied with the applicable disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the relevant
transactions.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its
equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with banks is limited because the counterparties are
major banks and financial institutions, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored
on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 360 days from the
date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than
1 month past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 32 B H¥EREERAAE (&)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERMR (&)

Trade receivables (Continued) EWE SRR (&)

The following table provides information about the Group’s F&RJIITNABAAREEREWE 5 EFEENE
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: ERkREAEEEEER

2023
—— =

T

Expected Gross carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance
SEE LD ES IREAE BiEaE
% RMB’000 RMB’000

Aokt ARBT T ARBT T

Current (not past due) BVER (R El) 0.01% 319,236 32
Less than 3 months past due B EF D HA3E A 0.1% — 2% 7,301 102
More than 3 months but less than B HiB:E31E A
12 months past due B 1218 A 1% — 20% 868 109
More than 12 months past due wHIER B 1218 A 25% — 100% 24,382 13,004
351,787 13,247
2022
—EF -
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEERBR X AREAE B A
% RMB’000 RMB’000
Epzlsd ARBT T ARBTT
Current (not past due) BIHEA (R7@1H7) 0.01% 293,520 29
Less than 3 months past due w1 HA D3 {E A 0.1% - 2% 10,164 144
More than 3 months but less than I HiB:E31E A
12 months past due BAL 1218 A 1% — 20% 40,245 5,058
More than 12 months past due w HA R B 121E A 25% — 100% 11,366 7,232

355,295 12,463
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past three years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:
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32 HXEREERAALEZ)

(a) fEERE #)

FEW B 5 8RR (42
BHERAERZBE=FNERBBELRITE -
% RSB TR A R R W R B S SR BT 2
ROBEAR ~ BRI A R AN R B U R IR TR
HERZEBERANBEZZENEZR -

FRNEBEBRWE ZREFNERRER 2 Z80
I

2023 2022

—E=F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARET T
Balance at 1 January R—A—Rz#&Es% 12,463 6,580
Impairment losses recognised during the year FRAE R EREE 4,964 5,883
Amounts written off bl (4,180) =
Balance at 31 December RT+ZRA=+—Bz&# 13,247 12,463
The following significant changes in the gross carrying PATEWS FERERAERE EATEEHR —

amounts of trade receivables contributed to the increase in
the loss allowance during 2023:

- decrease in days past due over than 3 months but
less than 12 months resulted in a decrease of loss
allowance of RMB4,949,000; and

- increase in days past due more than 12 months
resulted in an increase in loss allowance of
RMB5,772,000.

Other receivables

Impairment of other receivables are measured as either
12-month ECL or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition.

T -FHRE 2 BEBEIE N

= B HAR B3(E A8 D p 218 B B R EUR
B EEEER D AR4,949,0007T ¢
K&

= 160 B AR B 1 21 B /Y oK BRI A0 2R RS 48
BN AR%S5 772,000 ©

H i fE W =08

H e W R IBR B 0 R 128 A TR E E 183k
EETENENEEERFE REERRE
BENTERAREE EFME
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 32 B H¥EREERAAE (&)

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) REELE
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to REBIESRARIEARSEEEZNHAETHHEEE
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s ®ER - AEENBEREHERERBE S
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements ®mRXKREBETEERH @ UBRREETFHHR
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure GRERRARTIEGHNEAZEERE  BUE
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate HNEREHMNRSHESHFRK °
committed lines of funding from banks to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE--=EoAt-ALEE
Within Within Within Undiscounted
fyearor  2yearshut 5 years but Over  contractual Carrying
ondemand  over1year over2 years 5 years cash flow amount
1E5R N 5EHR AHRAH
BEEX  ERBIE BB BiB5E Reng L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR  ARETn  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR

Trade and other payables excluding BB HEAR MR FE

contract liabilties (TeEEHER) 206,046 = 206,046 206,046
Secured interest-bearing loans BERTEEH 79,709 5,006 13,351 99,735 94,136
Lease liabilities HEBRE 8,976 13,643 973 31,490 29,622

294,731 18,649 14,324 337,271 329,804
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 32

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b)
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MERMREERANE #)

REETERE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-Z-__S1-A=+-HI4R

Within Within Within Undiscounted
Tyearor  2yearshut 5 years but Over  contractual Carrying
ondemand  over Tyear over 2 years 5 years cash flow amount

1EAR 2EHR 5ELAA AMREH
FEER  ERRIE  EEEE RO Heng KM
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR ARETT  ARBTR ARETR  ARETR

Trade and other payables excluding ~ ENE SRR EbEMNFE
contract liabilities AfEaNaR) 185,074 - - - 185,074 185,074
Secured interest-bearing loans BEREEH 59,264 5,042 14,581 6,925 85,812 81721
Lease liabilties HERE 11,160 3,410 3,371 - 17,941 17,344
255,498 8,452 17,952 6,925 288,827 284,139
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from interest-bearing loans.

Borrowings issued at variable rates and fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The interest rates and maturity
information of the interest-bearing bank loans disclosed in
note 32(c)(i) and note 23 respectively.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk to
ensure there are no undue exposures to significant interest
rate movements and rates are relatively fixed. The Group
does not account for any fixed rate financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, and the Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its debt obligations.

(i) Interest rate profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing financial instruments was:

32 HMEKEKMEERAAME ®)

(c) F=@Ek
MEEBA—EBESRITIENAAERRKES
REERMSHESEHMEBMNER - AEBE 2
MERREZREFFEERK °

LA SR EEEEMEELINEESAEES
AlERRIRERE N ER R R AR ENERE
T RRITE R Z AR K E 8 & & 5 Bl R M &
32(c)(i) R M E23 4 % °

AEE 2 R AEEEN R R ARG A A
REAMNZEHLAHBEENXZAR - XK
B EET AT RBERRRAARBIRZERE
NMNESBREE  TEUATESRTASDMEE
BEE

i) FEEH
AEERBESAWZHASMIATEER M

2022
—ECCE —E__F

Effective Effective
interest rate RMB’000 interest rate RMB’000
L ilEs ARBT T BA|= ARBTT

% %

Variable rate instruments AEFETE

Secured interest-bearing loans BEEAEER 2.30% — 3.70% 2.00% - 3.70% 81,721
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit/(loss)
after tax and retained profits would have been decreased/
increased by approximately RMB753,000 (2022: loss
increased/decreased by RMB680,000). Other components of
consolidated equity would not be affected in response to a
general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group’s interest expense that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
floating rate instruments which expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk at that date. The analysis does not take
into account exposure to fair value interest rate risk arising
from fixed rate instruments as the Group does not hold any
fixed rate instruments which are measured at fair value in
the financial statements. The analysis is performed on the
same basis as 2022.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risks primarily through
sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily RMB and HKD. In respect of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the
Group’s policy is to ensure that its net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates when necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange
rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the
PBOC rates.
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32 HMEKEARMEERAAE#

(c) F=EEbs (&)

(i) SHRBEDN
R-B-_=F+_"A=+—H8 " fWfxxgg
A THR100EEL MAEHEM T TRE#
BAE  Gras@ofirEs,(F8) kR
B AL s ARE753,000T (==
ZZF : EiEgm R AR680,0000T)
RAERNEMER SIS BTEEM RN BE
EA S TRMZREE -

NEBRESHET  BRENBEHRLEN
g YERZAHNEREAKEEHRES
MEMNERRRNZETAR  AEEMNFSH
XAREHBENFLEE AR ARELERFE
EARMBEREANRAABFENEEN KT
B oMY ESAREEMNETAELENAA
BENXRER - SME_Z__FHRE-—EEHE
17°

(d) E¥EkE

AEBAXNEERERFZERE AEBERE
ENREBUINNEETENHE  BERE
B - EEXRRBHEEZZERARBERAETT -
RUINBHENELEEERABENS - A5H
NERZRERRANEANEEZINE - DAERR
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 32 B H¥EREERAAE (&)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d)  Currency risk (Continued) (d) EEREkE &)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) B RO

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the TRFMASERBEHAREEREENAE
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from (ABREEENEEE UG ELE) EEDN
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency E¥EEHO o

other than the functional currency of the entity to which they

relate.
As at 31 December 2023
(expressed in RMB)
R-E-_=F+=-H=+—H
(AAR®Z5)
RMB’000 HKD’000
AR%T T FE T
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREFEY 269 8,007
Overall net exposure FEE R F R 269 8,007
As at 31 December 2022
(expressed in RMB)
RZB__F+-_A=+—H
(AARKZ3)
RMB’000 HKD’000
ARETTT FHTT
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBEEED 278 28
Overall net exposure gk F R 278 28
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d)  Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit/(loss) after tax and retained profits for the
year that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant. The sensitivity analysis
includes balances between Group companies where the
balances are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower.
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32 BIBEREERAAEE)

(d) E¥mEk &)

(i) BRBREDIN
TRETAEEFAREERET,(BE) RRE
St ) B AN &= B BT B KR B O B R 3R 5 R
REZ (BREMBEEMERS LT TE) A8
HIRM AR 8 - FRAES N BEEEQ FM
2R MZSEHTIUERASE R AT
EE AN EWEEHE o

2023 2022
—E_= ===
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease)  Effect on profit (decrease) Effect on loss
in foreign after tax and in foreign after tax and
CYCHEREN G CICT RG]l exchange rates retained profits
E= HHERF R fEE i EE R
EH(TRE) RBEINZE EA(TRR) REBHEMNHZE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥ETTT
HKD ETT 400 5% 1
(400) -5% (1)
RMB AR 13 5% 14
(13) -5% (14)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency
risk for financial instruments in existence at that date, and
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rate over the period until the end of next annual
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2022. Other components of consolidated equity
would not be affected in response to a general increase/
decrease in exchange rates.

BA_E BB 50T B IR R 8 4 H R o 1413
B TERARSEEERRAFEZSRT
EMEHER - ARFAEBER (RE2F
%) BB TRMEE - F5IEDIEETREHES
RENEE T — A5 EREHRA RS
R - SR =B~ FME—ERET -
GAMNNEMARBHBETERELHRE
R TRTEHYE -
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments held for strategic purposes (see note 16).

The Group’s major equity investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange and are included in the Hang Seng Index.
Listed investments held in the equity securities designated
as FVOCI portfolio have been chosen based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

At 31 December 2023,
decrease of 10% (2022:
have increased/decreased the Group’s fair value reserve by
approximately RMB19,409,000 (2022: RMB21,451,000).

it is estimated that an increase/
10%) in the share price would

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change on the Group’s fair value reserve that would arise
assuming that the changes in the share price had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments which expose the
Group to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period.

(f)  Fair value measurement
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

= Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the

Level 1

measurement date.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 —

inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level

1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.

Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data

are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using =

significant unobservable inputs.

The Group REH

Other investments (note 16):  H#i&'&E (41:%16) :
Listed investments EmigE

Unlisted fund investments FETESKE

Fair value at

31 December
2023
R-ZTE—=
+=A=t+-H
ZANRE

RMB’000
ARBT R

194,088
185,148

379,236

S 785 i A B ik

HBEREERAALE ®)

EERAE (&)
F_MEE: PAERAE-_REB AR
BFtE BIRENAFE R BES
ABEER RTeRABEATAHEGA
BHE - NAIBRBARB SBEZENEM
BBIBEZBARR -

FE-RHE: AAEBRAERTAITHE
BWABBEE -

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2023 categorised into
R-BZ=5+ZA=t+—-H
RTIDEZDAEHE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

£
RMB’000
AR®T R

L
RMB’000
ARBT R

E=®
RMB’000
ARBT T

194,088 =
= 122,484

194,088 122,484
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 32

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued) (f)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (i)
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

HMRREERARE &)

AR EFEREE ()

Fair value measurement as at

31 December 2022 categorised into

RZZ__F+-HA=+—H
BT DBz A ERE
Fair value at
31 December
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
N2
+=A=+-*
ZRRfE e E= =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETFTT
The Group REE
Other investments (note 16):  HHMHRE (#fi716) :
Listed investments S 214,512 214,512 - -
Unlisted fund investments FEMESEE 148,155 - 58,186 89,969
362,667 214,512 58,186 89,969

At 31 December 2023, the financial instruments of the
Group carried at fair value were equity securities of
RMB194,088,000 (2022: RMB214,512,000) listed on the
Stock Exchange (see note 16). These instruments are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis and their
fair value measurements fall into Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no

transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out
of Level 3.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

The valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements were determined by the Group’s
share of the amounts of net asset value of the fund portfolio
investment.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform
the valuations.

Disclosure of valuation techniques and inputs used in level 3
fair value measurements:

As at 31 December 2023

Valuation
Description technique
g fhER T

FLMEERA

Unlisted fund investments

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

32 BIBEREERAAEE)

) DAEFE @)

() RBOIREFEZEREENREE (F)

FZMRIAEFTEMBNGEERNkE AR
HASERGEESHECREEEFESHERE °

M EF=MOAENE  AEE—RBZE
BEEERAIBREROIRERNIINBEHESR
RETHE -

FE=WA R ETE PR EERMN LA SUE R
Eg a
RZBE_=F+-_A=+—H

Effect on

fair value for

increase

Inputs

Range

of inputs
BABEEM
HARENTE

BAHE &2

USD1.3 million to

Market approach
5%

Equity value
EDEE

Discount for Lack

of Marketability
RZm5
RBMERLR

FRBERARAT %A

USD4.2 million
1.38BET
Z42BHBET

5%-15%
5%%15%

Increase
2

Decrease
"L
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

32 HMEKEKMEERAAME ®)

(fy DAREFE &
(i) RANETECZEREERERS (B)

R-ZE-_—F+—-_A=+—H

Effect on fair

value for
Valuation increase
Description technique Inputs Range of inputs
BABEEM
it BRI BARE gE HARENTE
Unlisted fund investments ~ JEETESHE Market USD1.8 million
approach Equity value to USD3.4 million Increase
misA Em(EE 1.8A&ET bl
E34REET
Discount for Lack
of Marketability 5%-15% Decrease
% 5%Z15% wy
Dibi:Reaze)
Unlisted fund investments EEMESRE Net asset value  Net asset value N/A Increase
BEFE BERE N 1

(ii) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based

(i) REBE=RULIAEFENEEZHRK :

on level 3:

2023

—=—=
RMB’000
AREET T
At 1 January n—A—H 89,969
Additions NE 108,648

Net loss recognised in other REMEE WA FERNEEFE

comprehensive income (85,490)
Settlements w1 (42,478)
Exchange realignment M 5, e B 1,835
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 122,484
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2022
—em— —

=

RMB’000
ARETIT

119,161
13,427

(26,420)

(25,889)
9,690

89,969



32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(ii) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based
on level 3: (Continued)

The total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive
income are presented in equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income — net movement in fair
value reserves (non-recycling) in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

(iiiy ~ Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost were not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

(g) Estimation of fair values

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and
based on relevant market information and information about
the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in
nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgement and therefore cannot be determined with
precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect
the estimates.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value for each class of financial instruments:
(i) Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, and trade and other payables

The carrying values approximate fair value because of the
short maturities of these instruments.

(ii) Interest-bearing bank loans

The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair
value based on the borrowing rates currently available for
bank loans with similar terms and maturity.
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33 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

RAFRKI BN R

Note
Kt
Non-current assets FRBEE
Other investments B E
Interest in subsidiaries RSB R Rz s 14
Current assets RENEE
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 B8R 3 % b R I 5K T8
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESFEY
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade and other payables FE1T B 5 BR AR R A FE A~ FRIE
Net current liabilities RENEEFEE
TOTAL NET ASSETS EEFEASE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR#E 28(a)
Share capital &z
Reserves i
TOTAL EQUITY FER AR

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 20 March 2024.

Zhang Yuping
Executive Director

Huang Yonghua
Executive Director

230 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

—

REF
HITEE

2023

—EC=F

RMB’000

ARETFT

149,206
1,679,667

1,828,873

4,670

445,787

450,457

1,303,459

(853,002)

975,871

21,254
954,617

975,871

HKE

2022
S

—_—=

RMB’000
ARETT

144,116
1,859,881

2,003,997

4,707
401,972

406,679

1,463,918
(1,057,239)

946,758

21,254
925,504

946,758

T_NE-A-_THEEEeHENRERE

HITEE



34 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

As at 31 December 2023, the directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Best Growth International Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does
not produce financial statements available for public use.

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the

HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, which are

not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023 and

which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

These developments include the following which may be

relevant to the Group.
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 35 ®BEZ-—ZE_=f+=-HA=1+-—

NEW STANDARDS AND HlEEsTFECHEMEREN
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT BEET - FHIEER R BB T
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL BEE ()

ACCOUNTING YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2023 (Continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
KA B H#isk 2 12
PR Y & 5T BRI A AL

Amendments to HK-int 5 (Revised), Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of 1 January 2024
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause (HK Int 5 (Revised))

B — BEESR (KBET) (BFTX) - BEZE — 2BESH (KFEFT) 25 —Z_MFE—-HA—H
KR — EXAHOEREKERRKTHEK M (BF — REESW (K1EET)) BEaT
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
BEETERE 1R (BFTX) BRERBRIFRER ED BN —E-_mME—-H-—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
BEBIERE 15 (165T8) — BN HRA T IERE B EHEET —E_MFE—-HA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BB BHEERE 169 (BFTK) - BEHEREEHEEER BEHEET —Z-_MFE-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
BEBEERIET R REBHBHEERETH (BFTF)  FHEEBRELHAET] —Z_MFE-HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 21, Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
BEBIERE2159 (BFTA) - FEHRS A2 B AEET “Z-_h¥—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BB EHEERIE 105 RE B BT ERIFE285% (B5]4)  BHREEZ AR ER A% FE

BRETRZEHEEL EXTEMELT

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of AREFE IFAEI(HIBEZES &SR EERE®E
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in A ELMFE - S5 HE THREBZEE2FH T
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that KAJAE @ H4FEMERERELT ASZE o

the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact

on the consolidated financial statements.
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